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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
20,732 2,536,146 22,171 2,712,178 25,364 3,102,778 23,939 2,928,458 22,728 2,780,316
3,561 435,617 2,950 360,874 4,302 526,264 4,816 589,141 4,491 549,384
2,328 284,784 1,937 236,953 2,866 350,598 3,158 386,318 2,951 360,996
3,260 398,796 3,149 385,217 3,616 442,345 120 14,680 5,493 671,959
66 8,074 66 8,074 67 8,196 67 8,196 67 8,196
) 469,661 466,310 467,786 459,413 442,445
10,540 1,289,358 12,946 1,583,684 15,978 1,954,589 14,620 1,788,465 18,347 2,244,389
100,243 12,262,726 116,237 14,219,272 131,094 16,036,729 121,307 14,839,485 119,767 14,651,097
10.5 11.1 12.2 12.1 15.3
1
/) 22.44 2,745 27.76 3,396 34.16 4,179 31.82 3,893 41.47 5,073
1
1.14 139 1.23 150 1.34 164 1.42 174 1.50 184
/)
1
4.96 607 4.16 509 6.14 751 6.80 832 6.54 800
/)
1
4.92 602 4.12 504 6.11 747 6.76 827 6.50 795
/
23.2 29.9 21.9 21.0 23.1
)
2,121 259,462 2,249 275,120 2,041 249,676 2,543 311,085 4,658 569,813
6,989 854,964 10,842 1,326,302 14,952 1,829,078 10,547 1,290,215 6,550 801,262
7,432 909,157 10,829 1,324,712 16,952 2,073,738 11,001 1,356,762 4,241 518,802
161 19,695 64 7,829 1,945 237,932 1,136 138,967 147 17,983
8,211 8,562 8,965 9,141 9,525
2011 2012 1 1
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1955 1956
1973 1974 10 2
1991
1974 1987
1990
1993 4 5 1996 2 3 1998
1 2 2001 1 2
1974
2 11
1981
2001 1
2005 2007
10 2007
2008
2012 4 2012 10 1
2013 7
2008
2014 6 79
2014 10 1
2014 4 1
2016 1 2
1974
2007 12
2014 371
90
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2014 12 31 14,500 121,100
70,800
12 31
GAAP
( )
2014 2013 2012
3,458 3,628 3,904
1,073 1,038 997
@) @ (©)
4,529 4,665 4,898
(198) (198) (184)
() (68) (56)
4,253 4,399 4,658
1711 o 389 (349)
67 28 )
4,491 4,816 4,302
2014 44 2013 10
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a
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2014 12 31

)

(Aflac International, Inc.) $1,000 100

)

$1,000 100
(Aflac Information
Technology, Inc.)(1)

(American Family Life $3,879,605 100
Assurance Company of
Columbus) ( ) (D)

(American Family Life $2,000,000 100

Assurance Company of New
York) (2)

(Communicorp, $500 100

Incorporated) (1)

Continental American $2,500,000 100

Insurance Company
CAIC (D)

Continental American $0 100

Group, LLC  (3)

(Aflac Insurance Services ! 100

Company, Ltd.) (4)

(Aflac Payment Services 1 100

Company, Ltd.) (4)

(Aflac Technology Services 1,000 100

Company, Ltd.) (4)

(Aflac Heartful Services 1,000 100

Company, Ltd.) (5)

(Aflac Benefits Advisors, $0 100

Inc.) (1)

a
@
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(3 CAIC
(4
G 70%
10% 10% 10%
€
4

(G 2014 12 31

10

$ 16,555
5,859

$ 3,458
1,073

$ 14,665
6,719

$ 98,525

18,383

¢!
2014 12 31

4,526
4,709
290 (1)

9,525

@ 112

2
2014 12 31
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CAIC

2013 1

105.46

2014

6.50

2013

2014

2014

31

47

6
1
2 2014
105.39 2014 12.6
2013 1 97.54
2014 2013 239
2013 32 1
399
215
215 140
20
2013 12 31 10
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2014 7.5 1
5.1 227
6.76 30 1
259
140
31 20
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2014 11 750
2014 10 364
1
9 6
2013 13.2 2014
19.7 12
3
GAAP FASB
FASB GAAP FASB ASC
GAAP
DAC
2014 12 31
93 73
VIE
VIE

VIE
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12 31

2014 2013
$ 57,916 $ 61,780
2,120 2,342
14,539 16,180
$ 74,575 $ 80,302
$ 7,728 $ 7,354
1,511 1,421
117 323
$ 9,356 $ 9,098
$ 65,646 $ 69,136
3,630 3,763
14,657 16,503

$ 83,933 $ 89,402

29/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)

Ogoooood
GAAP
2014 12 31
78 4
GAAP
GAAP
2013 2014
2012
2012 81
2014
2012 2013
2012 2013 20
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 7,728 $ 7,354 $ 6,931
5.1 % 6.1 % 6.9 %
$ 57,916 $ 61,780 $ 69,530
(6.3) % (11.1) % (4.5) %
$ 65,646 $ 69,136 $ 76,463
(5.0) % (9.6) % (3.6) %
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120.55 105.39 86.58
\ 6,982 \ 6,511 \ 6,020
7.2 % 8.2 % 6.4 %
2014 12 31 2013
12 31
2014
12 31
(
2 1 1 2
2 $ 0 $ 23 $ 47 $ 70 $ 94
1 (23) 0 23 47 70
(46) (23) 0 23 47
1 (68) (46) (23) 0 23
2 (91) (68) (46) (23) 0
2014 12 31 18
2013 12 31 53 2014 12 31 47
4
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2014 12 31
10
3
1
4
GAAP
1
GAAP
GAAP
12 31 1
1
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$ 2,797 $ 2,887 $ 3,097 $ 6.16 $ 6.18 $ 6.60

119 41 (326) 0.26 0.09 (0.69)
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@4 @an ®) (0.05)  (0.04)  (0.01)
16@ e 105 0.03 0.49 0.22
43 18 ®) 0.10 0.04  (0.01)
$ 2,951 $ 3,158 $ 2,866 $6.50 $6.76 $6.11
(€Y
2014 2013 28 6
ALM
2014 215 140
31
20
2013 262 170
199 129
2012 474 309
2012 3
977 635
3
12 31
( 2014 2013 2012
$ 0 $ 70 $ 243
31 102 345
0 0 3
0 26 386
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0 1 0
@ $ 31 $ 199 $ 977
(1) 2013 2012 12 31 45 597 2013 2012 12 31
26 27 2014 2013 2012 12
31 31 128 353
VIE
2012 2013 2014 154
100 336 218 31 20
5
4
3 4
2012  33.4 2013  34.4 2014
34.3 2012 2008 2009
29.5 2012 14
2013 17 2014 15
10
2014 1 2013 2 5
3 4 2014 1

6.50 1 0.24

34/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)

OOooOoOoOoo
1 0.10 1 0.26
2014 1 3.9
2014 2015 2015
1 2014 2 7
2015
2014
2015
1
2015 1 1
1
2014
100 $ 6.47 - 6.77 5.0 -9.9 % $ 0.18
105.46 (2 6.29 - 6.59 2.1-7.0 0.00

115 6.01 - 6.31 (2.4) - 2.4 (0.28)

125 5.77 - 6.07 (6.3) - (1.5) (0.52)

135 5.56 - 5.86 9.7) - (4.9) 0.73)
(D 2015 2014
10 2014

GAAP
12
12 31
( 2014 2013 2012
$ 13,861 $ 14,982 $ 17,151
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1,429 1,497 1,902
1,233 1,154 043
2,662 2,651 2,845
32 55 57
16,555 17,688 20,053
10,084 10,924 12,496
649 641 716
845 044 1,174
1,519 1,551 1,763
3,013 3,136 3,653
13,097 14,060 16,149
@ $ 3,458 $ 3,628 $ 3,904
105.46 97.54 79.81
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
5% @2 9.8 % 0.1% 6.8 % 9.9 %
0.4 (6.8) 5.8 8.8 13.9 6.1
(6.4 (11.8) 9.3 1.3 7.8 9.4
@ @.7 &) 2.0 3.1 13.6 2.0
@)
2013 2014 2013 2014
2014 12 31
2012 1 4,900 2013 1 5,700 2014 1 5,900
2012 11.1 2013 5.0 2014
1.7
2012 172 2013 149 2014
132
RDC
2012 33 2013 44 2014
46 2013 2014

2012 33 2013 39 2014 44
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@
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
8.8 % 13.9 % 6.1 % 4.8 % 4.7 % 5.9 %
1.3 7.8 9.4 0.7 6.4 9.3
@ 3.1 13.6 2.0 0.3 7.0 1.7
(€Y
@
12 31
2014 2013 2012
60.9 % 61.7 % 62.3 %
3.9 3.6 3.6
5.1 5.3 5.9
9.2 8.9 8.7
18.2 17.8 18.2
@ 20.9 20.5 19.5
@
2014
2013 2013 3 2014 4
2014 50
5
2014
2014 2013 2015 2013
2014
12 31
( 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$ 1,080 $ 1,539 $ 2,641 114.5 149.3 210.6
() (29.8) %  (41.7) % 30.3%  (23.3) %  (29.1) % 30.8 %
12 31
2014 2013 2012
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31.8 % 27.9 % 17.5 %
30.3 17.0 13.1
10.2 11.7 11.6
WAYS 14.0 27.5 44.9
8.3 10.3 8.5
5.4 5.6 4.4
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
2014 2013 6.1 2 7
2013 4
2014 9
Days
2014 4 176
2014 2013 47.3
2015 2014
2014 12 31 371 90
2014 WAYS
2013 47.3 2014
21.5 2013 31.3
2014
76.1 2014 900 2014 12 31
14,500
121,100
2013 7 2008
2014 6
79
2014 10 1 2014 4
1 2016
2
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2015
9 15
2015 4
2015 1
2005 2007 10
2007
2008
2012 4 2012 10 1
2013 7
2008
2014 1 16
2015 4 30
2013 6

2014 3
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2012 2.7 2013 2.5 254 2014
1.0 100
12 31
2014 2013 2012
0.4 % 0.4 % 2.3 %
74.1 76.2 73.8
1.0 0.0 0.0
2.6 3.3 3.4
0.0 0.0 0.1
21.9 20.1 20.4
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
2013
2014
2013
2014
2014 4
S&P
2
12 31
2014 2013 2012
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AAA 7.7 % 0.3 % 0.3 %
AA 78.6 77.7 74.9
A 5.4 10.9 8.5
BBB 6.6 9.4 15.1
BB 1.7 1.7 1.2
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
2014 AAA
2012 2013 2014 AA
2012 BBB
2012 2013 2014 BB
2011
12 31
2014 . 2012 1
2.16 % 2.40 %
2.80 2.89
2.83 2.87
@
2014
12 31
2013 936 2014 851
2014 2013
&) 13.2 % 14.3 %
43.9 45.3
0.8 0.7
9.3 9.7
4.1 4.4
0.5 0.7
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@ 26.0 24.1
97.8 99.2
0.2 0.2
2.0 0.6
100.0 % 100.0 %
1 2014 2013 12 31 2.6 2.9
2 2014 2013 12 31 0.2
3 5
2013 12 31 78.3
2014 12 31 75.7
12 31
2014 2013
AAA 1.3 % 1.2 % 1.4 % 1.4 %
AA 5.3 5.4 51.3 52.2
A 66.4 67.4 20.7 20.9
BBB 23.0 22.0 22.5 21.6
BB 4.0 4.0 4.1 3.9
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
AA A 2014 4 AA A
2014 12 31
96.0
3 5 5
12 31
( 2014 2013 2012
$ 5,211 $ 5,153 $ 4,99
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645 632 613
3 6 19
5,859 5,791 5,628
2,853 2,889 2,834
459 433 400
590 583 570
884 848 827
1,933 1,864 1,797
4,786 4,753 4,631
@ $ 1,073 $ 1,038 $ 997
1.1 % 3.1 % 5.4 %
2.1 3.2 4.2
1.2 2.9 5.4
@ 3.3 4.1 10.3
o
2012 5.1 2013 2.2 2014 1.8
12 31 2012 55 2013 56 2014
57
12 31
2014 2013 2012
48.7 % 49.9 % 50.3 %
7.8 7.5 7.1
10.1 10.1 10.1
15.1 14.6 14.8
33.0 32.2 32.0
@ 18.3 17.9 17.7
¢D)
2014 2013
2014 2013
2014 2013 2015

2014

12 31
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2014 2013 2012
$ 1,433 $ 1,424 $ 1,488
0.7 % 4.3) % 0.8 %
12 31
2014 2013 2012
22.4 % 21.2 % 20.3 %
5.8 5.3 5.4
28.1 27.3 29.5
@ 21.4 20.8 23.1
16.4 16.9 15.3
5.9 6.2 6.1
0.0 2.3 0.3
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
1
2014 3.7
6.0 3.9 2.0
2014 9,300
2014 3 4

2014 10 1
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12 18

2014 4 14.1
0.7

2015 3

2014 1 1

2013 4 3

2014
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12

2013 12 10

2014 12 18

F10

F10

2014 1 14
CDO

2013 12 31

2017 7 21
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(CFTC)
F10
2013 12 F10
18
2013
2015 1
619
2014 4 1
2015

2016 7 21
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2012 15 2013 14
2014 11 12 31
2014 2013 2012
3.3 % 4.8 % 8.5 %
1.0 0.1 4.7
0.1 0.0 0.8
14.8 11.9 23.5
0.2 0.0 0.9
5.0 4.5 0.0
75.6 78.7 61.6
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
S&P
2
5
12 31
2014 2013 2012
AAA 0.0 % 0.6 % 4.3 %
AA 8.0 5.1 9.1
A 50.8 46.2 51.4
BBB 41.2 48.1 35.2
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
12 31
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2014 2013 2012
4.32 % 4.06 % 3.96 %
5.46 5.70 6.25
5.89 6.01 6.28
2014
12 31
2013 120 2014 127
2014 2013
@ 12.0 % 14.2 %
0.7 0.7
5.6 5.9
17.0 16.7
1.6 1.8
0.3 0.3
52.5 53.6
89.7 93.2
0.1 0.0
10.2 6.8
100.0 % 100.0 %
1 2014 2013 12 31 0.4 0.9
3 5
12 31
2014 2013
AAA 1.0 % 0.9 % 1.0 % 1.0 %
AA 8.1 8.4 8.4 8.9
A 47.8 48.8 45.9 46.4
BBB 39.8 38.7 40.7 39.9
BB 3.3 3.2 4.0 3.8
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
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2014 12 31
96.7
3 5 5
2012 76 2013 79 2014 91
2012 20 2013 11 2014 13
5
2014 12 31
2013 12 31
(
@ 120.55 105.39
$ 107,341 $ (9,567) $ 116,908
8,273 (750) 9,023
119,767 (10,706) 130,473
83,933 (10,727) 94,660
101,420 (12,024) 113,444
(1) 2014 12 31 1 120.55 2013 12 31 1 105.39
12.6%
12 31
( 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 52,196 $ 46,448 $ 12,940 @ $ 11,290 w
2,609 2,839 60 108
23 21 5 0
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54,828 49,308 13,005 11,398
34,242 44,415 0 0
34,242 44,415 0 0
$ 89,070 $ 93,723 $ 13,005 $ 11,398
D) 2014 437 2013 332
2014 12 31 631
2014 12 31 132
2014 12 31 70
2014
54
2014 7 12
525 500
2014 12 31
1,575
RDC
RDC
28 RDC
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5
12 31
( 2014 2013
105.55 120.55 % 135.55 90.39 105.39@ 120.39
2 $ 32,178 $ 28,174 $ 25,056 $ 27,893 $ 23,923 $ 20,942
VIE® 1,273 1,114 992 2,419 2,075 1,816
2,458 2,153 1,914 2,734 2,345 2,053
vie® 390 341 304 443 380 333
19 17 15 20 17 15
39,013 34,159 30,379 51,509 44,178 38,673
VIE® 95 83 74 277 237 208
370 324 288 479 411 360
596 802 1,266 1,467 488 737
159 139 124 166 143 125
76,551 67,306 60,412 87,407 74,197 65,262
372 325 290 814 699 611
992 2,423 3,881 489 837 2,504
1,364 2,748 4,171 1,303 1,536 3,115
75,187 64,558 56,241 86,104 72,661 62,147
8,212 7,190 6,394 9,327 8,000 7,003
92,902 81,342 72,341 104,704 89,801 78,613
@ $ (9.503) $ (9.594) $ (9,706) $ (9,273) $ (9,140) $ (9,463)
@
@
®) VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE
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10
100 10
100 10
12 31
2014 2013
100 100
(

$ 67,785 $ 58,596 $ 71,844 $ 62,708
36,285 32,865 32,072 29,061
2,494 2,304 2,725 2,524
175 168 222 212
$ 106,739 $ 93,933 $ 106,863 $ 94,505
$ 802 $ 692 $ 487 $ 809
@ $ 5,835 $ 5,450 $ 5,241 $ 4,908
2,423 2,101 833 800

@
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12 31
2014 2013
13 13
14 14
10 10
12 31
2014 2013
11 10
8 8
6 6
12 31
2014 2013 2012
@
3.65 % 1.87 %(1) 3.65 % 2.00 4@ 3.75 % 2.00 %
4.16 2.09 3.93 2.40 3.90 2.24
5.69 3.76 @ 5.84 3.91 D 5.95 4.00
5.73 2.76 5.88 2.72 6.22 2.83
@
2
2.09
12 4.16
2011 7 2014 7 55

VIE
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4
NRSRO
NRSRO S&P
2
12 31

2014 2013 2012
AAA 7.6 % 0.6 % 0.5 %
AA 74.5 74.2 72.1
A 8.0 12.6 10.3
BBB 8.3 11.0 15.9
BB 1.6 1.6 1.2

100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
2014 AAA
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2013 2014 AA
2013 A 2012 BBB
4
2013 2014 BB
BB- Ba3 B B2
3
12 31
2014 2013
AAA 1.3 % 1.3 % 1.4 % 1.4 %
AA 5.7 5.8 46.7 47.5
A 64.1 65.1 23.4 23.7
BBB 25.0 23.9 24.4 23.6
BB 3.9 3.9 4.1 3.8
100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
AA 2014 4 AA
A 2014 12 31
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
Lower Tier Upper
Tier Lower Tier LT
Upper Tier ut Tier 2
12 31
2014 2013
(
$ 89,308 93.9 % $ 97,165 93.5 %
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Lower Tier 2,751 2.9 3,156 3.1
Tier @ 131 0.1 139 0.1
301 0.3 330 0.3
) 85 0.1 85 0.1
51 0.1 51 0.0
3,319 3.5 3,761 3.6
Upper Tier 1,554 1.6 1,920 1.9
Tier 703 0.8 858 0.8
183 0.2 209 0.2
2,440 2.6 2,987 2.9
$ 95,067 100.0 % $ 103,913 100.0 %
(€Y
3
2014 12 31
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
15 14
2014
12 31
29 27 8 8 9 19
2014 12 31 20
( sep
@ $ 37,021 38.94 % Senior Al AA- A+
498 0.52 Senior Baa2 BBB- BBB
377 0.40
207 0.22 Senior Baa2 A- A
166 0.18 LT Baa3 BBB+ BBB+
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BTMU

JP
JP

JP
JP
JP

URJ
FNBC
NBD
CAP FDG
(SmBC
Proj FDG
USA

NV

TR

373
373
357
357
336
295

17
13
11
332
199
120
13

332
207

83
42
332
166
166

332
166
166
311
249

61

307
300
249

51
290
288
274

14

0.00
0.39
0.39
0.38
0.38
0.35
0.31

0.02
0.01
0.01
0.35
0.21
0.13
0.01

0.35
0.22

0.09
0.04
0.35
0.18
0.17

0.35
0.18
0.17
0.33
0.26

0.07
0.00
0.32
0.32
0.26
0.06
0.31
0.30
0.28
0.02
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LT

Senior

Senior

LT
Senior

LT

LT
Tier |

Tier 1

uT

LT
ut

Senior

Senior

Senior

Senior

Senior

Senior
LT

Senior

Senior
Senior

Senior

Senior

Senior
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A2

A2

Ba2

A3

Baal
Aal

A2

Bal
Ba3
Ba3

A3

A2
A3

A3
A3

Bal
Bal

Baa2

Baa2
Baa3
A3

A3
A3
Al

Baa3
Baa3

BB
BB

BBB+

BBB+

A-

BB+
BB+

BBB+
BBB+

BBB+

BBB
BBB

oOoOooodn
A

BB

A+

BBB-
BBB-

BBB-
BBB-

BBB+

BBB+
A+

BBB
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280 0.29
213 0.22 Tier | Baa3 BBB BBB+
66 0.07 ut Baa2 - -
1 0.00 Senior Aa3 AA- AA-
278 0.29
207 0.22 LT Aaa AAA AAA
KFW 71 0.07 Senior Aaa AAA AAA
SLM) 278 0.29 Senior Ba3 BB BB
275 0.29
- UAP 224 0.24 ut A3 BBB BBB
51 0.05 CC FNB A3 BBB BBB
270 0.28
249 0.26 Senior Baal BBB+ BBB+
21 0.02 Senior Baal BBB+ BBB+
$ 43,167 45.40 %
$ 95,067 100.00 %
)
20
12 31
2014 2013
(
$ 39,804 41.9 % $ 45,224 43.5 %
28,884 30.4 28,167 27.1
3,121 3.3 3,385 3.3
2,657 2.8 3,070 2.9
1,747 1.8 2,085 2.0
2,925 3.1 3,365 3.2
200 0.2 230 0.2
1,674 1.8 1,914 1.8
332 0.3 410 0.4
719 0.8 811 0.8
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2,198 2.2 2,564 2.5
973 1.0 1,109 1.1
513 0.5 641 0.6
332 0.3 380 0.4
380 0.4 434 0.4
2,711 2.8 3,313 3.2
1,497 1.6 1,838 1.8
225 0.2 236 0.2
415 0.4 474 0.5
184 0.2 315 0.3
224 0.2 254 0.2
166 0.2 196 0.2
3,575 3.8 4,163 4.0
2,121 2.2 2,579 2.5
2,622 2.8 2,911 2.8
2,262 2.4 2,594 2.5
440 0.5 493 0.5
$ 95,067 100.0 % $ 103,913 100.0 %
2008
ECB IMF

ECB

2011 2011 2012
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NRSRO

2014 12 31

262 2014 12 31

491 22

20 42
486 57

12 31

2014 2013
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(
$ 65,830 $ 74,190 $ 69,934 $ 72,179
107 154 117 150
12 19 9 14
65,949 74,363 70,060 72,343
26,797 29,880 30,992 31,737
2,333 2,515 2,870 2,797
7 9 8 7
29,137 32,404 33,870 34,541
$ 95,086 $ 106,767 $ 103,930 $ 106,884
12 31
( 2014 2013
30.6 % 32.6 %
$ 26,468 $ 31,040
27.8 % 29.9 %
roc @
( 2014 2013
RDC $ 6,196 $ 7,087
RDC 1,470 2,348
RDC $ 7,666 $ 9,435
RDC 8.1 % 9.1 %
(€)
S&P
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12 31
1
2014 2013

(
@ $ 378 $ 332 $ 3/4 0§ 2 ¢ $* $* $
357 357 332 (25) 401 401 327 (74)
332 332 352 20 380 380 328 (52)
332 213 327 114 380 244 336 92
307 185 219 34 446 275 284 9
278 278 178 (100) 314 314 227 (87)
UPM 257 257 251 ®) 204 204 233 (61)
KLM @ 249 183 231 48 285 209 209 0
@ 228 148 295 77 64 47 62 15
166 166 125 (41) 190 190 134 (56)
149 55 129 74 171 63 113 50
EDP 118 116 124 8 137 135 142 7
108 84 88 4 * * * x
IKB 108 46 70 2 123 55 55 0
@ 83 61 67 6 237 212 198 (14)
76 77 102 25 * x * x
25 25 2 1 163 164 166 2
* * * * 417 316 316 0
(REN) * * * * 95 95 89 )
@ 0 0 0 0 60 60 52 ®)
50 & 336 353 368 15 367 359 354 ®)

$3,887 $3,268 $ 3,568 $ 300 $4,524 $3,813 $ 3,625 $ (188)
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@
)
(3) 2014 17 2013 15
10
(
@ $ 332
332
213
UK @ 207
166
EDP 116
I 105
@ 102
84
BNP @ 83
@
BB-  Ba3 B B2
3
2013 12 31
451 2014 12 31 501
2013 12 31 2014
12 31
3.7 3.4 2013 12 31 2014 12 31
2013 12 31 27
2014 12 31 22 2013 12 31
2.6 2014 12 31 2.3

VIE

VIE
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3
2014 12 31
$ 57,080 $ 64,125 60.0 % $ 7,517 $ 472
3,745 4,117 3.9 610 238
34,242 38,497 36.1 4,379 124
$ 95,067 $ 106,739 100.0 % $ 12,506 $ 834
2014 12 31
6 6 12 12
$ 11,136 $ 472 $ 2,356 $ 73 $26 $ 0 $ 8,754 $ 399
1,339 238 59 6 3 0 1,277 232
2,638 124 390 4 0 0 2,248 120
$ 15,113 $ 834 $2,805 $ 83 $29 $ 0 $ 12,279 $ 751
2014 12 31
20 20 50 50
$ 11,136 $ 472 $ 11,005 $ 438 $ 131 $ 34 $ 0 $ 0
1,339 238 903 92 436 146 0 0
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2,638 124 2,472 86 166 38 0 0
$ 15,113 $ 834 $ 14,380 $ 616 $ 733 $ 218 $ 0 $ 0
2014 12 31
10
(
BB $ 278 $ 178 $ (100)
BB 166 125 (41)
BBB 166 128 (38)
BB 357 332 (25)
A 144 122 (22)
@ BBB 275 253 22)
@ BBB 203 183 (20)
A 377 359 (18)
BBB 207 194 (13)
A 118 108 (10)
@

VCS VCS

2013 12 31 25 2.3
2014 12 31 47 4.3
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12 31
2014 2013
$ 5,211 $ 5,819 0.4y % @
3,062 2,979 2.8
$ 8,273 $ 8,798 (6.0) %
1 2014 12 31 1 2.4
2012 1 1 1
12 31
2014 2013
$74,575 $ 80,302 a1y 4 @
9,356 9,098 2.8
2 2 0.0
$ 83,933 $ 89,402 (6.1) %
1 2014 12 31 6.2
2013 12 31 49 2014 12 31 53
2014 11 750
2014 7 287 55
335
9
14
2011 12 27 2017 3
2012 1 27
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2012 3 30 2014
400 330
100
1 1
2012 2013 2014 12 31
VIE
VIE
12 31
2014 2013
$ 14,665 $ 12,315
(8.672) (7.621)
$ 5,993 $ 4,694
2013 12 31 11 2014 12 31
16
VIE
2014 12 31

VIE
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2011 7 2014 7 55
1.475
2012 12 31 2013 12 31 2014 12 31
4
2014 12 31
15
6
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 1,473 $ 962 $ 0
267 292 249
2012 5 SEC 2015 5
1 2014 3
2016 3 1,000
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2014 10 364 1
3
2014 12 31 1
2015 10 15
3
500
LIBOR 1.125
0.125
2018 3 29
2014 12 31 500
2014 12 31
13 4
90
2014 12 31 2014 12 31
1
@ 1 4 5 5
( 7 @ $ 65,646 $ 237,568  $ 7,765 $ 15,202 $ 15,204 $ 199,397
7 CX 3,630 3,630 2,685 583 214 148

7 € 6,031 9,568 327 335 377 8,529
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( 9 ) 5,268 5,271 424 847 850 3,150
( 9 ) 47 3,422 253 468 402 2,299
3 2,193 2,193 2,193 0 0 0
( 15 ) nA@ 177 126 51 0 0
( 15 ) nA@ 129 55 48 18 8
( 9 ) 14 14 4 7 3 0
$ 82,829 $ 261,972 $ 13,832 $ 17,541 $ 17,068 $ 213,531
15
[€)) 2014 12 31
@
237,568
65,646
(6))
(O]
12 31
( 2014 2013 2012
$ 6,550 $ 10,547 $ 14,952
(4,241) (11,091) (16,952)
147) 1,136 1,945
@n (90) (153)
$ 2,115 $ 502 $  (208)
2014 37.9 12 31
( 2014 2013 2012
$ 5,711 $ 9,410 $ 13,949
839 1,137 1,003
$ 6,550 $ 10,547 $ 14,952
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2013 2014 WAYS
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ (4,129) $ (10,293) $ (15,823)
(112) (798) (1,129)
$ (4,241) $ (11,091) $ (16,952)
2012 15 2013 16 2014 6 2014 10
14 2014 12 10
2012 2013 19 11
2014 147
2014 11 750
2014 7
287 55
335
2013 6 700
2014 2015 8
300
2012 2 750 2012 6
266 337 2012 7
250 2012 9
450 2012 10

50
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2012 2013 2014
721 14 19
2013 3 500 5
2014 10 364
1 6
2014 12 31 500 1
2014 12 31
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 1,210 $ 813 $ 118
19,660 13,212 1,948
157 222 360
19,817 13,434 2,308
2014 2013 2012
$ 33 $ 88 $ 32
65 65 63
$ 98 $ 153 $ 95
1,763 3,254 2,184
2014  19.7
2012 1.9 2013 13.2 2014 12 31
29.6 2015 13
11
2014 1 1.50 2013 5.6 2013
1 1.42 2012 6.0 12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 654 $ 635 $ 603
26 25 24
$ 680 $ 660 $ 627
2015 2 2015 1 1 0.39 2015 2

17 2015 3 2
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NAIC
CAIC
NAIC
2014 12 31
112
2015 24
13 NAIC
SMI
500
SMR
GAAP
550
3 4 8
2014 12 31 857 2013 12 31
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GAAP

SMi

NAIC

2014

10

4
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10

945
2014 12 31
12 100

SMI
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NAIC ORSA
2015 1 1 ORSA 1
ORSA
ORSA
ORSA
2015 ORSA
12
31
/ 2014 2013 2012
$ 39 $ 37 $ 30
71 74 58
1,704 771 240 @
181.4 76.8 33.1@
@) 209 4 168
2014 4
2014 12 31
2014 7 525 2014 12 500
7 45
13

15
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2008

2009 2010

ECB

ECB

2012 12
2014 12
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500
2018 3 29

FF
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ECB

NRSRO 1

CDO
MBS
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2014 12 31 2.6 24

Form 10-K SEC

FASB 1ASB
FASB
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683
24

2014 12 31

27

GAAP

72

2014 12 31

87
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GAAP
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2008

2012
2014 10 12 14 10

2014 12 31 202

131
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2014 12 31 951 39.4
370 38.9 2014
AA A 2014 12 31
14
5
2012
2013 74 2014 72
2013 12 31 85 2014 12 31 82 2015 1
NRSRO
NAIC

NRSRO NAIC
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5
2012
2014 12 31
131
25 27
13
1SDA
1SDA
CSA CSA

2014 12 31 371
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2014 21.5

10
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SEC NAIC
FI10
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ACA

2014 1 1 ACA

2010

2012 4

2013 4 3

2013 2014
2014 12 18
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7
CFTC
FI10
2013 12 FI0
18 /
2013 12 FI0
2015 1
FI10
2013 12 10 619
2014 4 1
2015 7 21
2014 1 14
CDO CDO
2014 12 18
2013 12 31
2016 7 21

1 2017 7 21
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NRSRO

NRSRO

NRSRO

NRSRO

NRSRO
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IT

IT

FASB

FASB  IASB

IFRS

2012 SEC
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

FASB 1ASB

2014 7 1ASB

IT
FASB
SEC
IFRS
GAAP
2014 2 FASB
FASB 1ASB
2012 12 FASB
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IT
2010 SEC
IFRS
GAAP
IFRS 9



IFRS

FASB 1ASB
IFRS

1996 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Accountability

Health Insurance

business associate
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Gramm-Leach-Bliley

Portability and



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

91/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

2014 12 31

2014 12 31
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CAIC

D.C.
36
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2014 12 31
1,900,000 668,132 1,231,868 2
1 2014 12 31 668,132 225,687
2 1,231,868
9,307
668,132
0.10
)
1 1
1 10
1 1 0]
1 10
)
12.75
2,300,000
@
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1980



(b)

1 0.90 6 1 2.20
1 3.69 9 1 4.36
5.18

12

15

0.10

© 5 5

30 90
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5
1 2.60 8
10 1
3 6 9
3 6
0.90
(b)



(

)

360

(

)

1

14.00
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30



(D)

©)

)

@

Q)

(b)

1 12.75
3 6
360
(h)
©)
®) (©

50
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9 12

30

(D

30 90

(D

@
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2009 12 31 661,209 66 8,074
2010 1,451 0
2010 12 31 662,660 66 8,074
2011 979 0
2011 12 31 663,639 66 8,074
2012 1,600 1
2012 12 31 665,239 67 8,196
2013 1,807 0
2013 12 31 667,046 67 8,196
2014 1,086 0
2014 12 31 668,132 67 8,196
2014 12 31
1
9,307 48.84 931 ()
454,554,000
1 931,000
2014 12 31
75,813 87.2 29,841,470 6.7
9,411 10.8 6,666,638 1.5
4 0.0 405,209,742 91.6
1,762 2.0 727,028 0.2
86,990 100.0 442,444,878 100.0
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2014 12 31
* *
26,571 6.0
23,559 5.3
22,671 5.1
22,446 5.1
9,804 2.2
8,887 2.0
8,228 1.9
P 8,188 1.9
7,683 1.7
7,428 1.7
145,465 32.9
60
2014
12 31
* *
P 73,218 9.8
33,768** 4.5
26,571 3.5
S 23,570 3.1
23,559 3.1
22,671 3.0
22,446 3.0
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ooO00000
9,804 1.3
8,887 1.2
8,228 1.1
252,722 33.6
* 60
2014 1 2014
2 4 2014 3 3 170 2014 2
2014 4 29 2014 6 2 168 2014 3
2014 7 29 2014 9 2 167 2014 4
2014 10 28 2014 12 1 175
12 31 1
2014 2013
4 0.39 0.37
3 0.37 0.35
2 0.37 0.35
1 0.37 0.35
2015 1 1 0.39 2015 2 3 2015 3 2
171
¢!
(a 5
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
5,300 4,910 4,670 7,070 7,480
3,730 2,400 2,982 4,420 5,930
(b 6
2014 7 8 9 10 11 12
6,600 6,400 6,480 6,680 7,150 7,480
6,260 5,940 6,300 5,930 6,700 6,700
(¢
(a 5
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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58.31 59.54 54.93 67.62 66.69
7,133 7,284 6,720 8,272 8,158
39.91 31.25 38.14 48.17 54.99
4,882 3,823 4,666 5,893 6,727
(b 6
2014 7 8 9 10 11 12
64.20 61.64 61.76 61.02 60.30 62.46
7,854 7,540 7,555 7,465 7,376 7,641
59.64 58.50 57.70 54.99 58.43 57.05
7,296 7,156 7,058 6,727 7,148 6,979
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€Y)
2015 2 25 2015 2 25
@ @ ) )
faled 1983 5,832,192 1.3 53,748,723 6.9
CEO 2011
1951
8 13
2013 2007 2,187,049 0.5 20,892,843 2.8
1975 €00
7 19
W 2011 2013 10,243 * 15,123 *
CEO
1956
12 3 2008
2010
2001 993,780 0.2 6,729,871 0.9
CFO
1947
10 21
2014 1990 93,548 * 779,843 0.1
J
D.C.
1949 2000
7 16 2014
D.C.
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w 2004 49,174 * 383,968 0.1
1941
5 19

B PR 2002 36,387 * 176,174 *
1944
7 14

J 2011 2015 0 * 0 *

/
TIAA-CREF
1963 TIAA-CREF
3 27
1990 84,984 * 767,346 0.1

B 2013 2014
1946 2011
8 13 CF

K 1995 44,219 * 359,696 *
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2014 1 FASB
2014 12 16
2
12 31
) 2014 2013 2012
$ 5,596 $ 6,123 $ 7,537
3,770 4,282 5,244
4,495 4,577 4,370
( 2,662 2,651 2,845
32 55 57
16,555 17,688 20,053
2,303 2,284 2,213
1,279 1,283 1,282
1,371 1,334 1,259
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12 31

(

(

)

)
(

)
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OoOoOoOoOodno

258 252 242

645 632 613

3 6 19

5,859 5,791 5,628

43 49 46

22,457 23,528 25,727

111 ® 3ggH (349)

281 302 269

(248) (308) (276)

67 28 0

$ 22,728 $ 23,939 $ 25,364

2014 44 2013 10
2014 2013 2012
$ 3,458 $ 3,628 $ 3,904
1,073 1,038 997
@ @ A
4,529 4,665 4,898
(198) (198) (184)
(78) (68) (56)
4,253 4,399 4,658
171® 3ggD (349)
67 28 %)
$ 4,401 $ 4,816 $ 4,302
$ 1,456 $ 1,512 $ 1,561
(117) (357) 8
2014 44 2013 10
2014 2013 2012

98,525 $ 102,973 $ 113,678
18,383 16,112 16,122
128 155 154
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117,036 119,240 129,954
) 24,636 19,909 20,318
(21,905) (17,842) (19,178)
$ 119,767 $ 121,307 $ 131,094
12 31
2014 2013 2012
/ 105.46 97.54 79.81
() @7.5)% (18.2)% (0. 1)%
) $ (180) $ (534) $ 11
2014 2013
120.55 105.39
() (12.6)% (17.8)%
) $ (10,706) $ (17,836)
) (12,025) (19,806)
12 31
13
) 2014 2013 2012
$ 39 $ 37 % 30
71 74 58
1,704 771 422
$ 1,814 g 882 g 510
50
20
12 31
) 2014 2013
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$ 168 $ 168
393 444
305 329
866 941
437 460
C ) $ 429 $ 481

12 31 2013 731

82.9 2014 386 45.8
12 31
) 2014 2013 2012
$ 3,249 $ 3,210 $ 3,248
141 153 253
7 7 17
2 1 2
3,399 3,371 3,520
80 78 47
$ 3,319 $ 3,293 $ 3,473
12 31
2014
)
( )
$ 17,341 $ 1,740 $ -3 19,081
88 9 - 97
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Ogoooood
351 35 - 386
1,691 226 5 1,912
799 163 - 962
2,752 325 189 2,888
3,479 531 48 3,962
26,501 3,029 242 29,288
100 17 - 117
961 201 2 1,160
185 31 - 216
5,061 960 36 5,985
343 111 - 454
2,943 775 8 3,710
22,291 2,682 330 24,643
31,884 4,777 376 36,285
58,385 7,806 618 65,573
2,132 223 92 2,263
183 48 - 231
125 50 - 175
2,440 321 92 2,669
19 9 - 28
60,844 g 8,136 g 710 68,270

2014

20,023 $ 3,195 $ - 23,218
346 71 - 417
43 3 - 46
3,342 281 20 3,603
2,556 272 14 2,814
4,932 231 78 5,085
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3,000 326 12 3,314
34,242 4,379 124 38,497
34,242 $ 4,379 $ 124 % 38,497

2013
14,936 $ 431 $ 33 $ 15,334
558 29 - 587
2,261 100 18 2,343
978 85 28 1,035
2,799 220 242 2,777
3,956 151 185 3,922
25,488 1,016 506 25,998
92 10 4 98
992 71 12 1,051
163 21 - 184
4,931 471 183 5,219
404 85 1 488
3,318 447 33 3,732
21,123 1,347 1,170 21,300
31,023 2,452 1,403 32,072
56,511 3,468 1,909 58,070
2,582 151 217 2,516
209 - - 209
196 35 9 222
2,987 186 226 2,947
17 5 1 21
59,515 g 3,659 § 2,136 ¢ 61,038
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2013
)
( )
$ 27,362 % 1,347  $ 1 % 28,708
399 41 - 440
58 3 - 61
3,900 150 122 3,928
2,941 171 72 3,040
6,310 146 328 6,128
3,445 183 87 3,541
44,415 2,041 610 45,846
$ 44,415 $ 2,041 % 610 $ 45,846
5
2014 3
424
54 2013
2
492 153 2012
7
12
290
2014 12 31
)
$ 369 % 390 $ 65 $ 69
5 1,519 1,771 628 724
10 10,351 10,979 1,472 1,561
34,018 38,595 9,103 10,540
405 461 36 46
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$ 46,662 $ 52,19 $ 11,304 $ 12,940

1 5 1,520 1,631 - -

5 10 1,937 2,130 - -

10 30,742 34,690 - -

43 46 - -

$ 34,242 $ 38,497 $ - % -

2014 12 31 419
437
2014 12 31
)

1 $ 306 $ 300 $ 5 $ 5
1 5 624 674 - -
10 1,466 1,635 39 55
$ 2,39 $ 2,609 $ 44 $ 60

12 31 10
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ooooodd
2014 2013
( )
(€)) A $ 37,021 % 41,878 AA $ 41,924 $ 43,619
@
2014 12 31
12 31 )
2014 2013
( ) )
$ 10,627 11 % $ 12,427 12 %
11,683 11 12,637 12
Upper Tier
$ 1,554 2 % $ 1,920 2 %
1,645 1 1,913 2
Tier
703 1 858 1
793 1 825 1
$ 12,884 14 % $ 15,205 15 %
14,121 13 15,375 15
12 31
( : ) 2014 2013 2012
)
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$ 192 316 $ 427
(12) (87) (48)
) 34 34 2
(31) (128) (734)
() 1 - 4
184 135 (349)
- - 127
- @ (98)
) - - 60
- (70) (243)
- (71) (154)
- (1) -
- (]_) -
() 31 326 151
- 10 3
31 336 154
) $ 215 399 $ (349)
1
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12 31
« - ) 2014 2013 2012
$ - $ 70 $ 243
31 102 345
- - 3
- 26 386
- 1 -
@ $ 31 $ 199 $ 977
o013 2012 12 31 45 597 2013
2012 12 31 26 27
2014 2013 2012 12 31 31
128 353
12 31
« ) 2014 2013 2012
)
$ 5,62  $ (2.281) $ 1,624
(10) (©)] 14
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12 31
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269 (129) 547

5 1 -

$ 5,893  $ (2,418) $ 2,157

2014 2013
) $ 7,426 $ 1,523
_ 11
(2,754) (499)
) $ 4,672 $ 1,035
2014
12 12

75 2 53 1 22 1
1,001 36 164 7 837 29
805 25 98 1 707 24
359 14 - - 359 14
205 8 53 5 152 3
1,828 267 166 - 1,662 267
8,072 330 1,901 62 6,171 268
1,151 60 122 2 1,029 58
13,496 742 2,557 78 10,939 664
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783 92 194 5 589 87
783 92 194 5 589 87
$14,279 $ 834 $2,751 $ 83 $ 11,528 $ 751
2013
12 12
$ 8,869 $ 34 $ 8,869 $ 34 $ - $ -
177 12 145 8 32 4
2,023 183 1,740 143 283 40
2,519 140 1,816 54 703 86
12 1 12 1 - -
1,152 100 791 34 361 66
547 33 454 23 93 10
4,533 570 2,322 107 2,211 463
11,588 1,170 8,504 733 3,084 437
3,372 272 2,296 152 1,076 120
36 4 36 4 - -
34,828 2,519 26,985 1,293 7,843 1,226
59 9 52 8 7 1
1,322 217 748 74 574 143
1,381 226 800 82 581 144
5 1 5 1 - -
$36,214 $ 2,746 $27,790 $ 1,376 $ 8,424 $ 1,370

NRSRO
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12 31
2014 2013
( )
-% -% -% 25% 1% 100%
13 7 100 13 12 98
3 2 100 3 4 100
14 33 31 14 22 64
65 47 88 41 53 91
95% 89% 96% 92%
5 11 100 4 8 90
100% 100% 100% 100%
Upper Tier Tier
Upper Tier Tier
Tier Tier
12 31
2014 2013
( ) ) )
Upper Tier
A $ 61 $ 87 $ 26 $ 145 $ 183 $ 38
BBB 1,330 1,333 3 1,563 1,532 €
BB 163 225 62 212 198 (19)
Upper Tier 1,554 1,645 91 1,920 1,913 @)
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Tier
BBB 519 556 37 746 706 (40)
BB 184 237 53 112 119 7
Tier 703 793 90 858 825 (33)
( )
BB 183 231 48 209 209 -
$ 2,440 $ 2,669 $ 229 $ 2,987 $ 2,947 $ (40)
(VIE)
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
12 31 VIE
2014 2013
( )
$ 3,020 $ 4,166 $ 4,109 $ 4,843
405 429 463 468
83 84 237 236
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106 106 106 106
$ 3,614 $ 4,785 $ 4,915 $ 5,653
$ 318 $ 318 $ 207 $ 207
$ 318 $ 318 $ 207 $ 207
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
« )
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
CDO
VIE
VIE
CDO CDO
VIE
CDO
VIE
12 31 VIE
2014 2013
( )
$ 6,104 $ 6,937 $ 6,724 $ 6,916
324 330 370 378
2,564 2,829 2,949 3,039
$ 8,992 $ 10,096 $ 10,043 $ 10,333
VIE
VIE VIE

VIE VIE

160/331



VIE

2014 12 31

102

VIE
(LVIE
VIE
BBB 191
12 31
2014
$ 2,149
2,193
4
13
1
1
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VIE

CDS
CDS VIE
CDS VIE
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VIE
VIE
2014 12 31
16 5
80
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
)
AA $ 1,098 $ 39 $ 36) $ 161 $ 1 $ D
A 22,564 763 (2.,387) 22,314 487 (830)
$ 23,662 $ 802 $ (2,423) $ 22,475 $ 488 $ (837)
1SDA
1SDA
CSA CSA
2013 12 31 8
7 1 2014 12 31
16
2013
12 31 18 2014 12 31 21 2014 12 31
482
2013 12 31
295 2014 12 31 619
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VIE
VIE
12 31 VIE
2014 12 31
) 1 3 3 5 5 10
A - $ - $ - $(83) $ - $ - $ - $(83) $ -
- $ - $ - $(83) $ - $ - $ - $(83) $ -
2013 12 31
) 1 3 3 5 5 10
A - s112)  $ 1 $ - $ - $ - $ - %112 $ 1
BBB - - - - - (95) O] (95) )
- $(112) % 1 $ - $ - $(95) $ (4 $07) $(®
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€Y
@ (©))
12 31
2014 12 31
C )
$ 7% 8 15) $ -3 (15)
75 (15) - (15)
12,388 (1,791) - (1,791)
697 (32) - G2
2,502 (159) - (159)
15,587 (1,982) - (1,982)
1,307 54 56 @)
1,307 54 56 @)
5,765 443 746 (303)
CDS 83 - - -
784 (119) - (119)
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OooooOodd
53 @ - @
8 @ - @
6,693 322 746 (424)
$ 23,662 $ (1,621) $ 802 § (2,423)
$ 6,531 $ 802 $ 802 $ -
17,131 (2,423) - (2,423)
$ 23,662 $ (1,621) $ 802 $ (2,423)
2013 12 31
C )
$ 75 $ 3 3 3 $ -
52 - - -
127 3 3 -
11,249 (582) - (582)
4,500 12) 20 (32)
15,749 (594) 20 (614)
356 17 17 -
95 3 4 @
451 20 21 @
5,829 224 442 (218)
cDS 207 ®) 1 )
112 1 1 -
6,148 222 444 (222)
$ 22,475  $ (349) $ 488§ (837)
$ 5,308 $ 488 $ 488 % -
17,167 (837) - (837)
$ 22,475  $ (349) $ 488 $ (837)
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VIE
(
) 11
VIE
( )
2011 7 55
2014 7 ( 9 )
1.475
12 31
2014 12 31 12
« = )
) ) ) )
$ (1,835 $ (38) $ @,797) $ 1,819 $ 22
(41) ) @7 38 1
(318) (36) (282) 316 34
2013 12 31 12
« = )
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) ) ) )
$ (1,735) $ (25) $ (1,710) $ 1,700 $ (10)
17 17 - - -
2012 12 31 12
(G- )
) ) ) )
$ (535) $ @ $ (527) $ 528 $ 1
( 9
2014 7 525 12
500
2014 12 31 1,575
2012 2013 2014
VIE
VIE
2024 11 750 2023 6
700 2017 2 400 2022 2 350
2052 9 500
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12 31
2014 2013 2012
( ) () (H) @ () (H) @ ) (H) @
$ (@ $ (17) $ (@ $ (10) $ 3 $ (22)
@ an @ (10) ©) (22)
@ (16) - (35) - Q) -
0 (©)) - - - - -
@ (@) - 17 - - -
D - 18) - @ -
- 39 - 155 - 9%
- - - (104) - -
- 89 - 24 - -
- ©) - 4 - -
_ 125 - 79 - 9%
151 - 346 - 111 -
(11) - - - - -
- - 11 - - -
CDS 3 - 31 - 64 -
(€D - ©) - (14) _
1 - (29) - i} i}
(89) - 5) - - -
54 - 346 - 161 -
$ 31 $ 108 $ 326 $ 69 $ 151 $ 74
(€))
() 4
12 31 2012 2013 2014
2014 12 31 12
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3
1
12 31
GAAP
2014 12 31
)
$ 746 $ - $ 746 $ - $  (568) $ 178
56 - 56 B, (51) 5
802 - 802 . (619) 183
2,149 - 2,149 . (2,149) .
$ 2,951 $ - $ 2,951 $ - $ (2,768) $ 183
@ 153 466
2013 12 31
)

$ 445 $ - $ 445 $ - $  (276) $ 169
17 - 17 - (16) 1
4 - 4 - ®) 1
cDs 1 - 1 . . 1
1 } 1 ) _ L
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ooooooo
20 - 20 - - 20
488 - 488 - (295) (@) 193
5,656 - 5,656 - (5,656) -
$ 6,144 $ - $ 6,144 $ - $ (5,951) $ 193
@
2014 12 31
)

$ (318) $ - $ (318) $ - $ - $ (318)
(1,912) - (1,912) - 1,439 (473)
(33) - (33) - 24 ©)
(160) - (160) - 158 @)
(2,423) - (2,423) - 1,621 (V) (802)
(2,193) - (2,193) 2,149 - (44)
$ (4,616) $ - $ (4,616) $ $ 1,621 $ (846)

2,149
()
2013 12 31
)

$ (218) $ - $ (218) $ - $ 1 $ (217)
(582) - (582) - - (582)
(€Y - @ - - @
CDs 4 - C)) - - O
32 - (32) - 7 (25)
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(837) (837) - 8 (1) (829)
(5,820) (5,820) 5,656 - (164)
$ (6,657) $ (6,657) $ $ 8 $ (993)
5,656
7 1
13 5
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GAAP
2 3
1
2
3 1
12 31
2014
)
( 1 ( 2 ( )]
):
$ 18,683 $ 515 $ - $ 19,198
- 1,257 - 1,257
- 379 223 602
- 7,897 - 7,897
- 1,416 - 1,416
- 6,572 26 6,598
- 28,605 - 28,605
18,683 46,641 249 65,573
- 2,289 149 2,438
- 231 - 231
- 2,520 149 2,669
19 6 3 28
- 640 106 746
- 56 - 56
- 696 106 802
171 - - 171
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ooooooo
4,658 - - 4,658
$ 23,531 $ 49,863 $ 507 $ 73,901
$ - $ - $ 318 $ 318
- 1,912 - 1,912
- 33 - 33
- 160 - 160
$ - $ 2,105 $ 318 $ 2,423
2013
)
( 1 ( 2 ( 3)
):
$ 14,928 $ 504 $ - $ 15,432
- 1,051 - 1,051
- 402 369 771
- 7,562 - 7,562
- 1,523 - 1,523
- 6,486 23 6,509
- 25,222 - 25,222
14,928 42,750 392 58,070
- 2,686 52 2,738
- 209 - 209
- 2,895 52 2,947
14 4 3 21
- 341 104 445
- 17 - 17
- 4 - 4
CDS - - 1 1
- - 1 1
- 20 - 20
- 382 106 488
463 - - 463
2,543 - - 2,543
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$ 17,948 $ 46,031 $ 553 $ 64,532
$ - $ 15 $ 203 $ 218
- 582 - 582
- 1 - 1
CDS - - 4 4
- 32 - 32
$ - $ 630 $ 207 $ 837
12 31
2014
)
( 1 ( 2 ( 3)
):
$ 20,023 $ 23,218 $ - $ - $ 23,218
346 - 417 - 417
43 - 15 31 46
3,342 - 3,603 - 3,603
2,556 - 2,814 - 2,814
4,932 - 5,085 - 5,085
3,000 - 3,314 - 3,314
$ 34,242 $ 23,218 $ 15,248 $ 31 $ 38,497
$ 6,031 $ - $ - $ 5,905 $ 5,905
(
) 5,268 - - 5,835 5,835
$ 11,299 $ - $ - $ 11,740 $ 11,740
2013
)
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):
$ 27,362 $ 28,708 $ - $ - $ 28,708
399 - 440 - 440
58 - 20 41 61
3,900 - 3,928 - 3,928
2,941 - 3,040 - 3,040
6,310 - 6,128 - 6,128
3,445 - 3,541 - 3,541
$ 44,415 $ 28,708 $ 17,007 $ 41 $ 45,846
$ 5,861 $ - $ - $ 5,715 $ 5,715
(
) 4,891 - - 5,241 5,241
$ 10,752 $ - $ - $ 10,956 $ 10,956
GAAP
GAAP
DCF
CDS
1 2 CDS
CDS
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VCS VCS
3
3
12 31
2014
( 1 ( 2 ( 3
(

$ 18,683 $ 515 $ - $ 19,198
18,683 515 - 19,198
- 1,257 - 1,257
- 1,257 - 1,257
- 379 - 379
- - 223 223
- 379 223 602
- 7,897 - 7,897
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- 7,897 - 7,897

- 1,416 - 1,416

- 1,416 - 1,416

- 6,514 - 6,514

- 58 26 84

- 6,572 26 6,598

- 28,605 - 28,605

- 28,605 - 28,605
18,683 46,641 249 65,573
- 2,289 - 2,289

- - 149 149

- 2,289 149 2,438

- 231 - 231

- 231 - 231

- 2,520 149 2,669

19 6 - 25

- - 3 3

19 6 3 28

$ 18,702 $ 49,167 $ 401 $ 68,270

2014
1 ( 2 ( 3)

$ 23,218 $ - $ - $ 23,218
23,218 - - 23,218
- 417 - 417

- 417 - 417
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- 15 - 15
- - 31 31

- 15 31 46

- 3,603 - 3,603

- 3,603 - 3,603

- 2,814 - 2,814

- 2,814 - 2,814

- 5,085 - 5,085

- 5,085 - 5,085

- 3,287 - 3,287

- 27 - 27

- 3,314 - 3,314

$ 23,218 $ 15,248 $ 31 $ 38,497

2013
1 ( 2 ( 3)

$ 14,928 $ 504 $ - $ 15,432
14,928 504 - 15,432

- 1,051 - 1,051

- 1,051 - 1,051

- 402 - 402

- - 369 369

- 402 369 m
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- 7,562 - 7,562
- 7,562 - 7,562
- 1,523 - 1,523
- 1,523 - 1,523
- 6,486 - 6,486
- - 23 23
- 6,486 23 6,509
- 25,220 - 25,220
- 2 - 2
- 25,222 - 25,222
14,928 42,750 392 58,070
- 2,686 52 2,738
- 2,686 52 2,738
- 209 - 209
- 209 - 209
- 2,895 52 2,947
14 4 - 18
- - 3 3
14 4 3 21
$ 14,942 $ 45,649 $ 447 $ 61,038
2013
1 ( 2 ( 3)
$ 28,708 $ - $ - $ 28,708
28,708 - - 28,708
i} 440 - 440
- 440 - 440
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- 20 - 20
- - 41 41
- 20 41 61
- 3,928 - 3,928
- 3,928 - 3,928
- 3,040 - 3,040
- 3,040 - 3,040
- 6,128 - 6,128
- 6,128 - 6,128
- 3,509 - 3,509
- 32 - 32
- 3,541 - 3,541
$ 28,708 $ 17,097 $ 41 $ 45,846
VIE
VIE
VIE 3
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(

2014

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)

23

(60)

149

$

12 31
$ 369
)
(134)
(12)
©) _
$ 223

26

$ 149

OooooOodd
3
@
cDS
1 $(9) $@ $ 346
@  @191) 3 (189)
- an - (140)
- - - (60)
- 95 - 83
- - - 149
- $(12) $- $ 189
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)
3
() $ - $ - % - $ - % - $§ - $- $1 S$@) $3 $ (189)
W
@
2013
)
CDS
$338  $420 $418 $1,024 $986 $215 $4 $29 $(172) $(65) $ 3,197
) - - - - - - - ®) 84 29 105
)
) 72) (20) - “4) - 3 @ - 11 - (105)
- (400) - - - - - (0) - 33 (387)
@ - - - - Y ¢
3 @ 125 - - - - 49 - - - - 174
3
® ) - (418)  (997) (986)  (215) . - - - (2.625)
$369 $ - $ - $ 23 $ - $5 $3 $ 1 $(9) $(@3) $ 346
)
3
() $ - $- % - % - $ - $ - $- $(B $ 84 $20 $ 105
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)
@
®
3 3
2013 3 2
( RDC ) RDC
RDC
2011 12 31
3 2013 1
2013 1
3 2
2013 1 RDC
3 2
RDC
2013 2014 12 31 1 1 2
3
12 31 3
2014 12 31
( ) ( )
( )
$ 223 N/A (@)
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26 N/A (D)
149 N/A (D)
3 $1-$677 ($6)
8 2.28%-2.70% ()

0.53%-1.34% (b

CDS 16-105 bps
20.50% (©
98 2.28%-2.70% (@

0.53%-1.34% (o)

20.50% (©)
$ 507
@
()
© 10
@ y/a
2014 12 31
)
( )
$ 176 ( ) 2.284-2.70% (@
( ) 0.53%-1.34%  (b)
cDS 16-105 bps
20.50% (0
111 ( ) 2.28%-2.70% (@
( ) 0.53%-1.34% ()
cDS 13-145 bps
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31 ( ) 2.28%-2.70% (@
( ) 0.53%-1.34% ()
20.50% ()
318
@
®
© 10
2013 12 31
( )
)
369 N/A  (®)
23 N/A - (®)
52 N/A - (®)
3 $1-$774 ($7)
30 3.09%-3.96% (b)
0.93%-2.02% (©)
cDS 16-141 bps
21.16%  (d)
9 3.09%-3.96% (b
0.93%-2.02% (©)
cDsS 17-149 bps
65 3.09%-3.96% (b
0.93%-2.02% (©)
21.16%  (d)
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DS 65%-76% (72%)  (2)
65-106(92)
CDS bps
37.00%
65%-76% (72%)  (2)
65-106(92)
CDS bps
37.00%
$ 553
@
)
©
(D) 10
© n/a
2013 12 31
)
( )
$ 99 ( ) 3.09%-3.96% (0
( ) 0.93%-2.02%  (©)
DS 16-141 bps
21.16%  (d)
24 ( ) 3.09%-3.96%  (®
( ) 0.93%-2.02% ()
CDS 11-189 bps
80 ( ) 3.09%-3.96% (0
( ) 0.93%-2.02% (©)
21.16% (D
DS 4 65%-76% (72%) ()
DS 65-106(92) bps
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$ 207

@

®

©

@ 10

3
cDs
cDs
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CDS
CDS
CDS
CcDS
CDO
CDO CDS
CDO CDS
CDX iTraxx
CDO
CDO
CDS
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CDO
CDS
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2014 77

2012
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17 2013 14 2014 13
2014 2013
$ 5,819 $ 2,979 $ 6,801 $ 2,857
790 548 893 555
(649) (459) (641) (433)
(749) (6) (1,234) -
$ 5,211 $ 3,062 $ 5,819 $ 2,979
2012 84 2013 81
2012 2013 51 2014 52
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 103 $ 112 $ 127
126 128 127
$ 229§ 240 254
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 47 $ 56 $ 60
8 13 7
$ 55 $ 69 $ 67
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 52 $ 55 $ 71
15 10 9
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1 1 1
$ 68 $ 66 $ 81
2012 2013 2014
2014 12 31 78 4 11 7
12 31
)
2014 2013 20
2002-2014 $ 3,900 $ 3,370 1.25-2.5 % 1.25-2.5 %
1974-2013 3,449 3,889 2.7-2.75 2.25-2.75
1998-2014 10,641 11,763 3.0 3.0
1997-1999 2,461 2,842 3.5 3.5
1994-1996 3,023 3,483 4.0-4.5 4.0-4.5
1987-1994 14,394 16,727 5.5 5.5
1985-1991 1,923 2,262 5.25-6.75 5.25-5.5
1978-1984 2,260 2,699 6.5 5.5
2012-2014 588 345 3.0-3.75 3.0-3.75
2011 276 243 4.75 4.75
2005-2010 2,951 2,897 5.5 5.5
1988-2004 706 725 8.0 6.0
1986-2004 1,293 1,301 6.0 6.0
1981-1986 183 190 6.5-7.0 5.5-6.5
1998-2004 1,260 1,237 7.0 7.0
21 22
2013-2014 312 59 1.5-1.75 1.5-1.75
2001-2013 3,674 3,009 1.65-1.85 1.65-1.85
2011-2014 2,298 1,584 2.0 2.0
2009-2011 1,890 1,648 2.25 2.25
2005-2011 1,214 1,211 2.5 2.5
1985-2006 2,006 2,303 2.7 2.25
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2012 6.0
12 31

(
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2007-2011 1,010 1,025 2.75 2.75
1999-2011 1,944 2,164 3.0 3.0
1996-2009 633 721 3.5 3.5
1994-1996 884 1,021 4.0-4.5 4.0-4.5
1956-2014 452 396 3.5-6.0 3.5-6.0
$ 65,646 $ 69,136
2012
3.9 2014 3.8
2013 5.8 2014 5.7
2014 2013 2012
$ 3,537 $ 3,781 $ 3,749
9 10 -
3,528 3,771 3,749
6,866 7,215 8,013
(301) (236) (173)
6,565 6,979 7,840
4,532 4,834 5,453
1,873 1,931 2,082
6,405 6,765 7,535
(283) 457) (283)
3,405 3,528 3,771
7 9 10
3,412 3,537 3,781
218 226 253
$ 3,630 $ 3,763 $ 4,034
2014 12 31
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
82 80
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2013 2014 12 31
2013 12 31 93 2014 12 31 98
8.
2013 9 30 2014 10 1
33.3 16.7
2014 12 31
820
2014 12 31 838
2014 12 31
8.35 CAIC
2014 12 31
12 31
( : ) 2014 2013
$ 19,412 $ 20,233
(311) (76)
(39) 34
10 12
$ 19,072 $ 20,135
$ 13,235  $ 13,903
(276) (67)
@n 31)
5 8
$ 12,937 $ 13,813
9.
12 31

« ) 2014 2013
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.45
.65
.50
.00
.625%
.625%
.90
.45
.50

2.26

1.47

1.84

3.60
3.00

2014

853

2013

698

2015
2017
2019
2022
2023
2024
2039
2040
2052 9

2016 9

2014 7
2016 7

2014 7

2015 7
2015 8

11

( 3.

6

11
12

80

287
158
(2013 1.30 55
100
50
2019

750
625 )

3.625

700

( 3.625 )

3.625
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300 $ 300
653 (1 655 (1
850 850
350 @ 349 @
700 700
749 @ -
397 @ 396 (@)
448 @ 448 @
500 500
66 76
- 272
131 150
- 52
83 95
0 48
_ 14 _ &
_ 5.2 $__ 489
10
20
750
1.00
10
20
700
1.50



2012 9
450 S
25
450
5.50 4.41
2012 10
4.42
2012 2
400 5
( 4.00
350
4.00 2.07
250
2.65 )
2011 7 3
55 2014 7
1.84
2009 2010
2010 8 30
2009 12 30 400
850
(€D)
2006 9 100 10
2

20

2014 12 31

40
2017 9 26

353

50

2.65

2.65
270
2012 7

500

20
450

14
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( 5.50 )
2017 9 26
5
50
39
5.50
750 1
) 2 350 10
ii
400 309
1.22
2012 2
5 (
1 287 3
158 5
300
2009 5 10
2009
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( )
2015 $ 424 $ 4 $ 428
2016 197 4 201
2017 650 3 653
2018 - 2 2
2019 850 1 851
2020 3,150 - 3,150
$ 5,271 $ 14 $ 5,285
2014 10 364 1
3
2014 12 31 1
2015 10 15 3
5 500
LIBOR 1.125
0.125
2014 12 31 500
2018 3 29
2014 12 31
2013 2014
10.
12 31
( )
2014
$ 995 $ 84 $ 1,079
125 336 461
$ 1,120 $ 420 $ 1,540
2013
$ 934 $ 302 $ 1,236

299 123 422
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2012
2012 4 1
33.3
12 31
( )
¢ )
12 31
( : )
)
)
)
)
(
(
(

2015 1 1

374

)

)

1,233

513
950

1,463

30.8

744

35
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$ 425 $ 1,658
$ 303 $ 816
(330) 620
$ @n $ 1,436
2012 4 1
2011 12 31
744
2012 12 31
374
2013 2012
1,572 $ 1,685 $ 1,506
(32) €1)) (53)
5 6 8
®) 4 (25)
1,540 $ 1,658 $ 1,436
2014 2013 2012
1,540 $ 1,658 $ 1,436
(419) 253 363
2,237 (904) 904
19 19 174)
(©)) @® ®
31) 55 @
1,803 (581) 1,078
) ® (12)
3,33 § 1,069 $ 2,502
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2012 492 2013
614
1 2013 10 1
2012 32 2013
31
12 31
( : ) 2014 2013
$ 2,209 $ 2,406
2,584 533
139 134
1,376 1,451
51 54
20 22
6,379 4,600
1,331 1,129
16 16
4 23
99 111
327 189
226 182
26 514
2,029 2,164
4,350 2,436
943 1,282
$ 5,293 $ 3,718
35
2031 18 2032 17 2033 2 2034 1
2014 12 31
73 2016

2010
2011
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12 31

2014 12

31

2013

2014 12

11.

12 31

AFL

31

2013 12

31

2014
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2014 2013
$ 328 $ 401
2 1
1) (74)
$ 309 $ 328
307
31 327
2014
2
2012 7
11 2013 12 31 26
2014 12 31 30
1
2014 2013 2012
667,046 665,239 663,639
1,086 1,807 1,600
668,132 667,046 665,239
207,633 197,453 197,329
19,660 13,212 1,948
157 222 360
(1,251) (1,365) (1,670)
(391) (1,734) (387)
(121) (155) 127
225,687 207,633 197,453
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12 31
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12 31
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1
13.2
1
12 31
)
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442,445 459,413 467,786
1
1
2014 2013 2012
1,215 2,198 5,880
1
2014 2013 2012
451,204 464,502 466,868
2,796 2,906 2,419
454,000 467,408 469,287
2012 2013 1.9
2014  19.7 2014 12 31
29.6
48
48 1 10
2014
)
) )

$ (1,505) $ 1,035 $ 12 $ IR (563)
(1,036) 3,672 (14) (44) 2,578
- (35) - o (36)
(1,036) 3,637 14) (45) 2,542
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( )

12 31
( )

)
)

@O 55
@

)

OoOooOodnd
(2,541) $ 4,672 26) $ (126) $ 1,979
2013
)
) )
333§ 2,570 G) $ 183) $ 2,715
(1,833) (1,499) 0 92 (3,247)
) (36) - 10 (31)
(1,838) (1,535) 0 102 (3,278)
(1,505) $ 1,035 12 s @61 $ (563)
2014
57
(€))
54
(19) [6H)
35
(15) @
17 @
€H) @
1
36
( 14
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( ) 2013
) $ 7
©) (€
$ 5
) $ 255
(199)
56
(20) @
$ 36
$ (19) o)
4 @
5 (€))
$ (10)
$ 31
@) ( 14
)
12.
2014 12 31 2
2007 2 1
1S0
NQSO NQSO
10
2 1SO NQSO
NQSO
1SO NQSO 10
3

2014 12 31
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1

12 31
( )
2011 12 31
2012
2012
2012
2012 12 31
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) 2014 2013 2012
$ 41 $ 37 $ 37
41 37 37
28 25 26
$ 0.06 $  0.05 $  0.06
0.06 0.05 0.06

2012 16.84 2013 14.25 2014 16.24
2014 2013 2012
6.3 6.6 6.5
30.0% 34.0% 38.0%

2.7 1.6 1.6

2.8 1.8 2.1

2.3 2.6 1.3

14,563 $ 42.76

784 47.25

(134) 48.59

(2,476) 32.27

12,737 45.00
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2013 703 52.86
2013 (179) 44.79
2013 (3,281) 40.52
2013 12 31 9,980 47.03
2014 678 61.81
2014 (115) 52.01
2014 (1,236) 41.04
2014 12 31 9,307 $ 48.84
( ) 2014 2013 2012
7,497 8,042 10,635
2014 12 31
( )
1 1
1
$14.99-$43.07 2,028 3.8 $ 34.46 1,945 $ 34.20
43.28- 47.25 2,144 3.1 45.93 2,046 45.93
47.33- 51.91 1,883 5.4 48.97 1,109 48.86
52.14- 61.81 2,479 4.5 58.65 2,296 58.79
61.84- 67.67 773 8.5 62.85 101 64.63
$14.99-$67.67 9,307 45 % 48.84 7,497 $ 47.51
2014 12 31 61.09
2014 12 31
116 4.5
103 3.6
12 31
) 2014 2013 2012
$ 25 $ 66 $ 41
39 113 35
17 30 24
12 31
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2012
2012

2013
2013
2013

2014

2014
2014

2014

13.

2011

2012

2013

2014

12 31

1.2

SAP

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31

20

SAP

849

NAIC
NEDOI
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1,350 $ 40.92
637 48.18
(56) 48.22
(568) 26.13
1,363 50.19
782 52.77
(56) 48.63
(418) 47.49
1,671 52.12
584 62.12
@n 52.66
(348) 56.95
1,880 $ 54.33
45

NEDOI

NEDOI
NEDOI
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SAP
2013 12 31 35
SAP
)
NAIC
2014 12 31
12
2013 2014 24
42 2014 12 31 56
10

24

2014
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2014 6
2014 2013
10,839 $ 9,630
(36) (41)
- 35
10,803 $ 9,624
2012 23
2013 12 31
GAAP
2015

15
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12 31
/ ) 2014 2012 2014 2013 2012
$1,704 $771 $422 181.4 76.8 33.1
2014 7 2014 12 500
7 45 2014 12 31
1,575
14.
2013 10 1
2013 401(K)
2015 1 1
2013 10 1
2014 1 1 @
80 80 (2)55 15
(3)5 (4)55 5
15 (5) 2013 10 1
51
AOCI 2013 3
2013 10 1 4.75%
12 31
) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$ 270 33 $ 601 $ 613 $ %6 $ 98
15 16 20 22 1 5
9 10 38 23 2 3
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) 21 @) 74 @n @A) @)
(©)] () (16) (16) ) )
(39) (58) . - - -
267 270 717 601 44 46
182 187 313 261 - .
() 12 13 26 39 - -
24 26 18 29 2 2
(©)] () (16) (16) ) (@)
(26) (36) . - - -
183 182 341 313 - -
) $ (@) $ () $ (376) $ (288) $ (44 $  (46)
() $ 40 $ 33 $ 167 $ 111 $ 9 $ 25
C ) ) ) “4) O] (28) (45)
- 1 - - - -
$ 38 $ 32 $ 163 $ 107 $ ©@ $ (0)
¢ 235 ¢ 239 § 611 § 514 A @ NA @
W
@
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(
)
2256 2.25%  2.25%  A4.75%  4.25%  4.75% 4.75% 4.25%  4.75%
1.75 2.25 2.25 450  4.75 4.25 4.50 4.75 4.25
2.00 2.00 2.50 7.50 7.50 7.50 n/AD naAD A ®
va® D a® 400 4.00 4.00 RE vaD  a®
A wa® D naa® D v ® 57209 6.40® 5709
W
@ 2014 2013 2012 77 4.6% 78 4.7% 79 4.2%
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AA 20 17
85
10
15
ASOP
ASOP
2014 12
31 1
( )
1
$ -
3
1
$ -
2
12 31
) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$ 15 $ 16 $ 18 $ 20 $ 22 $ 18 $ 1 $5 $ 6
9 10 7 38 23 24 2 3 4
@ ® @ @ an @ - : -
1 2 3 11 15 11 3 2 1
. k - g k - an @ -
$21 $ 25 $ 24 $ 49 $ 43 $ 37 $ (11) $6 $ 11
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51
2013

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2015

)

2013
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2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$ 12 $(14)  $ (10) $67 $(59) $45 $@ $(O $5
@ @ (©) (11) (15) 11) (©)) @ @
- - - - 0 ) - (51) 2
- - - - - - 17 4 -
$ 11 $(16) $ (13) $5  $(78) $33 $11  $ (56) $6
2014 2012
2014 2015
1 15
2 2013 2015
17
2015
)
$ 7 $ 20 S 2
11 21 2
8 28 3
7 26 3
9 27 4
63 159 22
19 10
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2014 12 31
-% 40%

15 20

70 40

15 -

100% 100%
12 31 1
2
) 2014 2013
$ 34 $ 34
72 60
44 43
- 21
22 24
11 -
$ 183 $ 182
12 31
1
) 2014 2013
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$ 116 $ 110
14 19
10 9
61 68
136 103
4 4
$ 341 $ 313
1
2
401
401
50 2012 2013 2014
6
2014 1 1 401 k 2
2013 401(k)
2013 9 30
401 k 2012
2013 5 2014 7 2014 12 31
2
2012 2013 38 2014 36
15.
3 1
1 48 2014 12 31 40 2
1 39 2014 12 31 32
3

3 44 2014 12 31 36
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2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

16.

38
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2014 12 31 31
2 1
23 2014 12 31 19 2
23 2014 12 31 19
2022
2014 12 31
$ 55
29
19
11
7
8
$ 129
2014 2014 2014 2014
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
$ 4,854 $ 4,888 $ 4,841 $ 4,489
827 843 841 808
(46) 102 16 143
5 5 38 74
5,640 5,838 5,736 5,514
4,536 4,600 4,662 4,439
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1,104 1,238 1,074 1,075
372 428 368 372
$ 732 810 706 703
$ 1.61 1.79 1.56 1.57
1.60 1.78 1.56 1.57
1 2013 2013 2013 2013
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
$ 5,184 5,013 5,028 4,910
833 813 821 826
156 201 22 20
35 17 15 45
6,208 6,044 5,886 5,801
4,847 4,686 4,817 4,773
1,361 1,358 1,069 1,028
469 469 367 353
$ 892 889 702 675
$ 1.91 1.91 1.51 1.46
1.90 1.90 1.50 1.45
17.
2015 1 1

750

500 300

700 135
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12 31
2014 2013
¢ 1,483 962
) 272 292
13 11
6 7
45 10
314 274
11) 1
2,122 1,557
243 208
88 79
331 287
1,791 1,270
1 -
120 98
121 98
1,670 1,172
1,281 1,986
¢ 2,951 3,158
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249

20

154

424

184

72

256

168

50

51

117

2,749

)
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2014 419

(

(

(
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12 31

2014 2013 2012
$ 2,951 $ 3,158 $ 2,866
39 48 95
(1,494) (1,636) (382)
9 (12) 15
5,938 (2,350) 1,645

)
(54) (56) 497
an (10) 22)
(76) 157 (20)
) 4,345 (3,859) 1,828
1,803 (581) 1,078
) 2,542 (3,278) 750
$ 5,493 $ (120) $ 3,616
12 31
2014 2013
)
2013 322 ) $ 437 $ 332
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2014
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(
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2014
668,132
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21,430 17,678
24 313
1,638 1,081
23,529 19,404
116 128
766 464
$ 24,411 $ 19,996
$ 6 $ (120)
282 246
5,285 4,910
491 340
6,064 5,376
2013 1,900,000
2013 667,046 67 67
1,711 1,644
22,156 19,885
(2,541) (1,505)
4,672 1,035
(26) 12)
(126) (81)
(7,566) (6,413)
18,347 14,620
$ 24,411 $ 19,996
12 31
2014 2013 2012
$ 2,950 $ 3,158 $ 2,866
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12 31
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(1,281) (1,986) (2,749)
115 155 111
72) 11 (242)
1,713 1,338 (14)
38 8 13
(105) (206) (26)
290 (298) ®3)
223 (496) (16)
(1,210) (813) (118)
750 700 1,506
(335) - (380)
(654) (635) (603)
33 88 70

23 41 21

14 28 (1)
(1,379) (591) 475
557 251 445
1,081 830 385
1,638 $ 1,081 $ 830

2014 2013



( )
3.45 2015 8
2.65 2017 2
8.50 2019 5
4.00 2022 2
3.625 2023 6
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12 31
( )
2014
$ 5,211  $ 60,036  $ 8,509  $ 6,030
3,062 9,239 117 -
- 1 - 1
$ 8,273 & 69,276 8,626 g 6,031
2013
$ 5,819 $ 64,122 $ 10,520 $ 5,660
2,979 8,775 122 201
- 2 - -
$ 8,798 & 72,899 ¢ 10,642 g 5,861
12 31
« )
¢ - )
2014
$ 13,861 $ 2,662 $ 10,084 $ 649 $ 2,364 $ 13,352
5,211 645 2,853 459 1,474 5,198
- 12 - - 354 -
$ 19,072 ¢ 3,319 ¢ 12,937 ¢ 1,108 ¢ 4,192 ¢ 18,550
2013
$ 14,982 $ 2,651 $ 10,924 $ 64 $ 2,495 $ 15,960
5,153 632 2,889 433 1,431 5,144
- 10 - - 310 -
$ 20,135 ¢ 3,293 ¢ 13,813 ¢ 1,004 ¢ 4,236 ¢ 21,104
2012
$ 17,151 $ 2,845 $ 12,496 $ 716 $ 2,97 $ 23,662
4,99 613 2,834 400 1,397 4,988
1 15 - 1 281 -
§ 22,148 g 3,473 $ 15,330 § 1,117 ¢ 4,615 ¢ 28,650
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12 31
( )
2014
¢ 144,374 ¢ 3,298 g - $ 141,076 - U
$ 14,648 $ 339 % 10 $ 14,319 - %
4,764 11 - 4,753 -
$ 19,412 ¢ 30 ¢ 10 $ 19,072 - %
2013
¢ 157,022 ¢ 3,245 g - ¢ 183,777 - %
$ 15,393 $ 98 $ 12 $ 15,307 -%
4,840 12 - 4,828 -
$ 20,233 g 110 ¢ 12 $ 20,135 - %
2012
$ 173,791 g 3,867 g - ¢ 169,924 - %
$ 17,541  $ 19 $ 14 $ 17,536 -%
4,626 14 - 4,612 -
$ 22,167 g 3 g 4 ¢ 22,148 - %
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{In rnillions, except for share and per-share amounts) 2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Met premiums, principally supplemental heslth insurance $ 19,072 5 20135 3 22,148
Met investment income: 3319 3,293 3473
Realized investment gains (losses):
Ciher-than-temporary impairment losses realized (31) (199) (S7TY
Sales and redemptions 215 262 474
Dervative and other gains (losses) K| 336 154
Total realized investment gaing (losses) 215 399 (349)
Other income 122 112 92
Total revenues 22,728 23,939 25,364
Benefits and expenses:
Benefits and claims, net 12,937 13,813 15,330
Acqguisition and operating expenses:
Amortization of defermed policy acquisition costs 1,108 1,074 1,117
Insurance commisgions 1,436 1,528 1,744
Insurance expenses 2,261 2222 2415
Imterest expense 7 293 261
Ciher operating expenses 178 193 195
Total acquisition and operating expenses 5,300 5.310 5,732
Total benefitz and expenses 18,237 19,123 21,062
Eamings before income taxes 4,491 4 816 4302
Income tax expense:
Current 1,079 1,236 816
Defemed 461 422 620
Income taxes 1,540 1,656 1,436
Met earnings $ 2,951 % 3158 % 2866
Net earnings per share:
Bagic $ ©6.54 5 680 5 614
Diluted 6.50 676 611
el -average o ng common shares used in
computing earnings per share {In thousands):
Bagic 451,204 454 502 456, 568
Diluted 454,000 457 408 459 287

See the accompanying Notez fo the Consolidafed Financial Sfatementz.
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Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Congolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Years Ended December 31,

{In mmillicns) 2014 2013 22
Met eamings $ 2,951 $ 3158 $ 2866
Other comprehensive income [-Iuas:- before income taxes:

Unrealized foreign currency franslation gains (losses) during
period {1,455) (1,588) (287)

Urrealized gains {losses) on invesiment securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on invesiment securities during

period 5.947 (2,362) 1,660
Reclazsification adjustment for realized (gains) losses on
investment secunties included in net eamings. (54) {S6) 497
Unrealized gainz {losses) on derivatives during period (17) {10} {22)
Pensicn liability adjustment during pericd (76) 157 {20)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) before income taxes 4,345 (3,859) 1,828
Income tax expense (benefit) related to items of other comprehensive
income {loss) 1,803 {5B1) 1,078
Other comprehensive income (logs), net of income taxes 2,542 (3,278) 750
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,493 5 (120) % 3616

See the accompanying Notes fo the Consolidafed Fnancial Sfatementz.
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Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31,
{In rnillicns) 2014 2013
Assets:
Investments and cash:
Securities available for sale, at fair value:
Fixed maturiies (amortized cost $55,365 in 2014 and $52,402 in 2013) $ 61,407 ¥ 53227
Fixed maturities - consclidated variable interest entities (amortized
cost $3,020 in 2014 and 54,109 in 2013) 4,166 4843
Perpetual securities (amortized cost 52,035 in 2014 and 52,524 in 2013) 2,240 2479
Perpetual securities - consolidated variable interest entities
{amortized cost $405 in 2014 and $463 in 2013) 479 468
Equity securities (cost $19 in 2014 and $17 in 2013) 28 21
Securities held to maturity, at amortized cost:
Fl:ad maturities (fair value $358,413 in 2014 and $45,610 in 2013) 34,159 44 178
xed maturities - consolidated varniable interest entities (fair value
.‘iiE-llm 2014 and 5235 in 2013) 83 237
Oher investments 17 463
Cash and cash equivalents 4,658 2543
Total investments and cash 107,341 108,459
Receivables 842 1,165
Accrued investment income 62 798
Deferred policy acquisition costs 8,273 8,798
Property and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation 479 481
Other'™ 2120 1,606
Total assets $ 119,767 $ 121,307

T Inciudez 5106 in 2014 and 2013 of derivatives from consolidated vaniable inferest entifies
See the accompanying Notes fo the Consolidafed Financial Sfafementz.

{confinuwed)

227/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

December 31,
{In millions, except for share and per-share amounts) 2014 2013
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Liabilities:
Puolicy liabilities:
Future policy benefits % 65,646 3 69136
Unpaid policy claims 3,630 3,763
Uneamed premiums 8,626 10,642
Other policyholders’ funds 6,031 5,861
Total policy liabilities 83,933 89,402
Income taxes 5,293 38
Payables for retum of cash collateral on loaned securities 2,193 5,520
Motes payable 5,282 4 397
Cther™ 4,719 2,850
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Mote 15)
Total liabilities 101,420 106,687
Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock of $.10 par value. In thousands: authorized 1,200,000
ghares in 2014 and 2013; isgued 668,132 shares in 2014 and 667,046

shares in 2013 &7 67
Additional paid-in capital 1,711 1,644
Retained eamings 232,156 19,885
Accumulated octher comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized foreign cumency translation gains (losses) (2,541) {1,505}
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment secunties 4,672 1,035
Unrealized gains (losses) on denvatives {26) {12}
Pension liability adjustment {126) {81)
Treasury stock, at average cost (7,566) (6,413)
Total shareholders’ equity 18,347 14,620
Total liabilities and sharehalders' equity % 119,767 3 121,307

HIrw:ﬁ'u::ﬂr:usi £318 in 2014 and 5207 in 2013 of derivatives from consofidated varable inferest enfifies
See the accompanying Notes fo the Consolidafed Financial Sfatementz.
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Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31,

{In rillions, except for per-share amounis) 2014 2013 2012
Common stock:
Balance, beginning of period 1 67 § 67 % GE
Exercise of stock oplions 0 0 1
Balance, end of period 1) 67 67
Additional paid-in capital:
Balance, beginning of period 1,644 1,505 1,408
Exercise of stock oplions ] S0 K
Share-bazed compensation (3) 32 &
Gain (logs) on treasury stock reizsued 4 =T 3z
Balance, end of period 1,711 1,644 1,505
Retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of period 19,885 17,387 15,148
Met eamings 2,951 3,158 2,566
Dividends to shareholders ($1.50 per share in 2014, $1.42 per share in 2013,
and $1.24 per share in 2012) {680} (660) (B27)
Balance, end of period 22156 19,885 17,387
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Balance, beginning of period [563) 2715 1,965
Unrealized foreign currency franslation gains (losses) during
period, net of income taxes {1,036) (1,838) (631)
Unrealized gains {losses) on invesiment securities during pericd,
net of income taxes and reclassification adjusiments 3,637 {1,535) 1427
Unrealized gains {losses) on derivatives during period, net of
income taxes (14} {7y (14}
Pengion liability adjustment during period, net of income taxes [45) 102 (12)
Balance, end of period 1,979 {563) 2,715
Treasury stock:
Balance, beginning of period {6,413) (5,6096) {5.641)
Purchases of treasury stock {1,210} (B813) (118)
Cost of shares issued L) 95 63
Balance, end of period {7,566) (6,413) {5,60E)
Total gshareholders' equity § 18347 5 14620 § 15978

See the accompanying Notez fo the Consolidafed Financial Sfatementz.
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Aflat Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Congolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,

{In milons} 2014 2013 21z
Cash flows from operating activiiies:
Met earnings $ 2351 § 3158 5 1,666
Adusiments to recanclle net eamings to net cash provided by operating activitles:
Change In recelvables and advance premiums 7y 8y {15}
Increase in deferred policy acquisition costs [225) {404} (643}
Increase in policy labiities 3,614 6,606 12,005
Change in income fax llabiliies 123 9o3 fa
Reallzed Investment (gains) losses [215) (3e9) 349
ofther, net 309 401 {128}
Net cash provided {used) by aperating activities £.550 10,547 14,952

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Proceeds from Investments sold or matured:

Securities avallable far sale:
Flxed maturitlies sold 4178 9,631 7365
Flxed maturities matured or called 1.001 2,907 1,959
Perpetual secunties 5ok 0 264 1,559
Perpetual securties matured or called 203 256 ITE
Securitles held to maturity:
Flxed maturities matured or called 8,475 6,515 1,659
Costs of Invesiments acquired:
Avallable-for-sale Nxad maturiies acquired (10,578) {22,967} {19,533}
Avallable-for-sale equity securties acquired ] 0 0
Hedd-to-maturity Teed maturities acquired |3.564) {6.756) {16,550}
oiner invesiments, nat 272 (313} (6}
setiement of dertvatives, met (636) {1.624) (1]
Cash recelved (pledged or returned) a5 collateral, net 3,217} 1,037 5,433
other, net 30 (35} 520
Net cash provided (used) by Invesiing aciviies 4,241} (11,081} (16,952}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchasses of treasury siock 1.210} {E13) {118}
Proceeds from bormowings Ta0 T 1,506
Princlpal payments under debt abligations {335) L (341}
Dividends pald to sharehoiders (654) {635} {603}
Change In Investmant-type contracis, net 1.253 1,780 1457
Treasury stock relssued 33 B8 32
Other, net 16 B 12
Net ¢ash pravided [used) by financing actvities {147} 1,136 1,845
Effect of exchange rabe changes on cash and cash equivalents (47} [E {153}
Met change In cash and cash equivalents 2,115 502 (208}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of perad 2,543 2,041 2,249
‘Cash and cash equivalents, end of perlad $ 4,658 § 2543 5 2041
Supplamental disclosures of cash fiow Informaflon:
Income faxes pald 5 1418 3§ ™ 3 7B
Interest paid 241 210 178
Moncash Intenest™ T& B2 B3
Impalrment loeses Inciuded In realized Invesiment IxE6E6 Bl 199 a77
Honcazh financing activitias:
Capltalized lease obligafions 3 L 4
Treasury stock Issued for:
Assoclate stock banus 35 36 35
Sharehalder dividend relnvesiment 26 23 24
Share-based compensaiion granis 4 4 4

™ Consists primanly of sccreted Interest on Mscounted S0VaNce premiums
See the accompanying Notes to the Consoldated Financial Sfatemends.
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Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

Aflac Incorporated (the Parent Company) and its subsidianes (collectively, the Company) primarily sell supplemental
health and life insurance in the United States and Japan. The Company’s insurance busineas iz marketed and
administered through American Family Life Assurance Company of Columbus (Aflac), which operates in the United States
{Aflac U.S.) and as a branch in Japan {Aflac Japan). American Family Life Assurance Company of New York (Aflac New
York) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Aflac. Most of Aflac’s policies are individually underwritten and marketed through
independent agents. Additionally, Afiac U.S. markets and administers group products through Continental American
Insurance Company (CAIC), branded ag Aflac Group Insurance. Our insurance operations in the United States and our
branch in Japan senvice the two markets for our insurance business. Aflac Japan's revenues, including realized gains and
losses on its investment portfolio, accounted for 72% of the Company’s total revenues in 2014, compared with 74% in
2013 and 77% in 2012. The percentage of the Company's total assets atinbutable to Aflac Japan was 82% at
December 31, 2014, compared with 85% at December 31, 2013.

Basis of Presentation

WWe prepare our financial statements in accordance with U_S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
These principles are established primarily by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE). In these Notes to the
Conzclidated Financial Statements, references to GAAP izsued by the FASE are derived from the FASE Accounting
Standards Codification™ {ASC). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make
estimates when recording tranzactions resuliing from business operations based on cumently available information. The
mizst significant items on our balance sheet that invelve a greater degree of accounting estimates and actuarial
determinations subject fo changes in the future are the valuation of investments, deferred policy acquisition costs,
liabilities for future policy benefitz and unpaid policy claimg, and income taxes. These accounting estimates and actuarial
determinations are sensitive fo market conditions, investment yields, mortality, morbidity, commission and other
acquisition expenses, and terminations by policyholders. As additional information becomes available, or actual amounts
are determinakbie, the recorded estimates will be revised and reflected in operating results. Although some varability is
inherent in these estimates, we believe the amounts provided are adequate.

The conzclidated financial staterments include the accounts of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries and those entities
required to be conzolidated under applicable accounting standards. All material intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

Significant Accounting Policies

Translation of Foreign Currencies: The functional currency of Afiac Japan's insurance operations iz the Japanese
yen. We translate our yen-denominated financial statement accounts into LS. dollars as follows. Assets and liabilities are
tranzlated at end-of-pericd exchange rates. Realized gainz and loases on security transactions are franslated at the
exchange rate on the trade date of each transaction. Other revenues, expenses and cash flows are franslated using
average exchange rates for the period. The resulting cummency translation adjustments are reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income. We include in eamings the realized currency exchange gains and losses regulting from foreign
currency transactions.

Priar to October 1, 2013, Aflac Japan maintained an investment portfolio of dollar-denominated securities on behalf of
Aflac U5, which served as an economic currency hedge of a porion of our investment in Aflac Japan. The functional
currency for these investmentz wags the U.S. dollar. The related investment income and realized/unrealized investment
gains and losses were denominated in ULS. dollars. Since the functional currency of this porifolic was the U.S. dollar,
there was no translation adjustment to record in other comprehensive income for these investments when the yen/dollar
exchange rate changed. The foreign exchange gains and losses related to this portfolio continue to be taxable in Japan
and the U.5. when the securities matured or were sold. Until maturity or sale, deferred tax expense or benefit associated
with the foreign exchange gains or losses is recognized in income tax expense on other comprehensive income. As of
October 1, 2013, these investments were transfermred into the Aflac Japan investment porifolic. These investments began
to have remeasurement and translation effectz recorded in other comprehensive income in the fourth quarter of 2013.

a7
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WWe have designated a majority of the Parent Company's yen-denominated liabilities (Samurai and Uridashi notes and
yen-denominated loans) as non-derivative hedges and designated foreign cumency forwards and options as derivative
hedges of the foreign curmency expozure of our investment in Aflac Japan. Outztanding principal and related accrued
interest on these Parent Company liabilities and the fair value of these derivatives are franslated info U.S. dollars at end-
of-period exchange rates. Currency translation adjustmentz and changes in the fair value of these derivatives are
recorded as unrealized foreign currency translation gains (losses) in other comprehensive income and are included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.

Insurance Revenue and Expense Recognition: The supplemental health and life insurance policies we issue are
classified as long-duration contracts. The contract provisions generalty cannot be changed or canceled during the contract
pencd; however, we may adjust premiums for supplemental health policies issued in the United States within prescribed
guidelines and with the approval of state insurance regulatory authorities.

Insurance premiums for most of the Company's health and Iife policies are recognized ratably as earned income over
the premium payment periods of the policies. When revenues are reported, the related amounts of bensfits and expenses
are charged againat such revenues, so that profits are recognized in propartion to premium revenues during the period
the policies are expected to remain in force. This as=sociation is accomplished by means of annual additions to the: lability
for future policy benefitz and the deferral and subsequent amortization of policy acquisition costs.

Premiums from the Company's products with limited-pay features are collected over a significantly shorter pericd than
the period over which benefits are provided. Premiums for these products are recognized ratably over the scheduled
premium payment period. At the policyholder's option, customers can also pay discounted advanced premiums for certain
of these products. Advanced premiums are deferred and recognized ratably over the regularly scheduled premium
payment period. For the Company's limited-pay products, any gross premium in excess of the net premium is deferred
during the scheduled premium payment period and recognized into benefitz in a constant relationship with insurance in
force. Benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred. A liability for future policy benefits is recorded when
premiuma are recognized using the net premium method.

The calculation of deferred policy acquisition costs (DAC) and the liability for fulure policy benefits requires the use of
esfimates based on sound actuarial valuation technigues. For new policy izsues, we review our actuarial agsumptions and
deferrable acquisition costs each year and revise them when necessary to more closely reflect recent experience and
studies of actual acquisition costs. For policies in fores, we evaluate DAC by major product groupings to determine that
they are recoverable from future revenues, and any amounts determined not to be recoverable are charged against net
eamings. We have not had any material charges fo eamings for DAC that was determined not to be recoverable in any of
the years presented in this Form 10-K.

Advertizing expense is reported as incurred in insurance expenses in the consolidated staterents of eamings.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, money market instruments and
other debt instruments with a maturity of 20 days or less when purchased.

Investments: Our debt securities consist of ficed-maturity securities, which are classified as either held to maturity or
available for sale. Securities cdassified as held to maturity are securifies that we have the ability and intent to hold to
maturity or redemption and are carried at amoriized cost. All other fixed-maturity debt securities, cur perpetual securities
and our equity securities are classified as available for sale and are carmried at fair value. If the fair value is higher than the
amortized cost for debt and perpetual securities, or the purchase cost for equity securities, the excess is an unrealized
gain, and if lower than cost, the difference is an unrealized loss. The net unrealized gaing and losses on securifies
available for sale, plus the unamortized unrealized gains and losses on debt securnties fransfemed to the held-to-maturity
portfolio, less related deferred income taxes, are recorded through other comprehensive income and included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.

Amoriized cost of debt and perpetual 2ecurities is based on our purchaze price adjusted for accrual of dizcount, or
amorization of premium, and recognition of impairment charges, if any. The amortized cost of debt and perpetual
securifies we purchase at a discount or premiurm will equal the face or par value at maturity or the call date, if applicable.
Interest is reported az income when eamed and iz adjusted for amortization of any premium or discount.

We have investimenis in variable interest enfities (VIEs). Criteria for evaluating VIEs for conzolidation focuzes on
identifying which enterprize has the power to direct the aclivities of a varable interest entity that most significantly impact
the enfity's economic performance and (1) the obligation to absorb loases of the entity ar (2) the right to receive benefits
from the entity. We are the primary beneficiary of certain VIEs. While the VIEs generally operate within a defined set of

88
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documents, there are certain powers that are retained by us that are considered =significant in our concluzicn that we are
the primary bensficiary. These powers vary by structure but generally include the initial selection of the underlying
collateral or, for collateralized debt cbligations (CDOs), the reference credits to include in the structure; the ability to obtain
the underlying collateral in the event of default; and the ability to appoint or dismiss key parties in the structure. In
particular, our powers sumounding the underlying collateral were the most significant powers since those most significantyy
impact the economics of the VIE. We have no cbligation to provide any continuing financial support fo any of the entities
in which we are the primary beneficiary. Our maximum loss is limited fo our original investment. Mesther we nor any of our
creditors have the ability to obtain the underlying coliateral, nor do we have control over the instruments in the VIEs,
unless there iz an event of default. For those entities where we are the primary beneficiary, the assets consolidated are
fixed-maturity securities, perpetual securities and dervative instruments; collateral is reported separately under the
captions fixed maturities- and perpetual securiies- consclidated variable interest entities on our balance sheet.

For the collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO=) held in our fixed-maturity securities portfolio, we recognize income
using a constant effective yield, which is based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic life of the
securities. When eatimates of prepayments change, the effective yield is recalculated to refiect actual payments fo date
and anticipated future payments. The net investment in CMO securities is adjusted to the amount that would have existed
had the new effective yield been applied at the time of acquisition. This adjustment is reflected in net investment income.

We u=e the specific identification method fo determine the gain or loss from securities fransactions and report the
realized gain ar loss in the conzolidated statements of eamings. Securities transactions are accounted for baged on
values as of the frade date of the transaction.

An investment in a ficed maturity or perpetual security is impaired if the fair value falls below book value. We regularly
review our entire investment portfolio for declines in value. The majority of our investments are evaluated for other-than-
temporary impairment using our debt impaiment model. Our debt impairment model focuges on the ultimate collection of
the cash flows from our imvestments. The determination of the amount of impaiments under thiz model is based upon our
penodic evaluation and assessment of known and inherent risks associated with the respective securities. Such
evaluations and assessments are revised a5 conditions change and new information becomes available.

The determination of whether an impairment in value is other than temporary is based largely on our evaluation of
the issuer's creditworthiness. Our team of experienced credit professionals must apply considerable judgment in
determining the likelihood of the security recovering in value while we own it. Factors that may influence thig include the
overall level of interest rates, credit spreads, the credit quality of the underlying issuer, and other factors. This process
requires congideration of risks which can be controlled to a certain extent, such as credit rizsk, and risks which cannot be
controlled, such as interest rate risk.

If, after monitoring and analyzes, management believes that fair value will not recover to amortized cost prior to the
disposal of the security, we recognize an other-than-temporary impairment of the security. Once a security is considered
to be other-than-temporarily impaired, the impaiment loss is separated into two separate components: the portion of the
impairment related to credit and the porion of the impairment related to factors other than credit. We automatically
recognize a charge to eamings for the credit-related portion of other-than-ternporary impairments. Impaiments related {o
factors other than credit are charged fo eamings in the event we intend to sell the security prior to the recovery of its
amortized cost or if it is more likely than not that we would be required fo dispose of the security prior to recovery of its
amorized cost; otherwize, non-credit-related other-than-temporary impairments are charged to other comprehensive
income.

Owr investments in perpetual securities that are rated below investment grade are evaluated for other-than-temporary
impairment under our equity impairment model. Our equity impaiment model focuses on the severity of a security's
decling in fair value coupled with the length of time the fair value of the security has been below amortized cost and the
financial condifion and near-term prospects of the issuer.

We lend fixed-maturity securities o financial institutions in short-term secunty lending fransactions. These securifies
continue to be camed as investment assets on our balance sheet during the terms of the lcans and are not reported as
sales. We receive cash or other securities ag collateral for such loans. For loans involving unrestricted cash or securities
as collateral, the collateral is reported as an asset with a comesponding liability for the return of the collateral.

Other investments include policy loans and other short-term investments with maturities of one year or less, but
greater than 90 days, at the time of purchase and are stated at amortized cost, which approximates estimated fair value.

233/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

Derivatives and Hedging: Freestanding derivative instruments are reported in the conzolidated balance sheet at fair
value and are reported in other assets and other liabilities, with changes in value reported in eamings andfor cther
comprehensive income. These freestanding derivatives are interest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps, credit default
swaps (CDSs), foreign cumency forwards, foreign currency opfions, and options on interest rate swaps (or interest rate
swaptions). Interest rate and foreign currency swaps are uzed within YVIEs to hedge the risk arising from interest rate and
currency exchange risk, while the CD5z are used to increase the vield and improve the diversification of the porifolio.
Foreign currency forwards and options are used in hedging foreign exchange risk on U.S. dollar-dencminated securities in
Aflac Japan's portfolio. Foreign currency forwards and opfions are used to hedge certain portions of forecasted caszh fiows
denominated in yen. Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the variability of interest cash flows associated with our
variable interest rate notes, and cross-curmency interest rate swaps, also refered to as foreign currency swaps, are used
to econocmically convert certain dollar-denominated note obligaticns info yen-denominated principal and interest
obligations. Interest rate swaptions are used to hedge interest rate risk for certain U_S. dollar-denominated available-for-
sale zecurities. We do not uge derivatives for frading purposes, nor do we engage in leveraged derivative ransactions.

From time to ime, we purchase certain investments that contain an embedded dervative. We aszess whether this
embedded derivative is clearly and closely related to the asset that serves as its host contract. If we deem that the
embedded denvative's terms are not clearly and closely related to the host contract, and a separate instrument with the
same terms would qualify as a derivative instrument, the derivative iz separated from that contract, held at fair value and
reported with the host instrument in the consclidated balance sheet, with changes in fair value reported in eamings. If we
have elected the fair value option, the embedded derivative iz not bifurcated, and the entire inveztment is held at fair valus
with changes in fair value reported in eamings.

For those relationships where we seek hedge accounting, we formally document all relationships between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well a3 our risk-management objectives and strategies for undertaking various hedge
tranzactions. This process includes linking derivatives and nonderivatives that are designated as hedges to specific
assets or liabilities on the balance sheet. We also assess, both at inception and on an cngoing basis, whether the
dervatives and nonderivatives used in hedging activities are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged items. The assessment of hedge effectiveness determines the accounting treatment of noncash
changes in fair value.

Changes in the fair value of any of our derivatives that are designated and gualify as cash flow hedges are recorded
in other comprehensive income as long as they are deemed effective. Any hedge ineffectiveneas iz recorded immediately
in current period eamings within derivative and other gains (losses). Periodic derivative net coupon settiements are
recorded in the line itern of the consolidated statements of eamings in which the cash flows of the hedged item are
recorded.

Changes in the estimated fair value of derivative instruments that are degsignated and qualify as fair value hedges,
including amounts measured as ineffectiveness, and changes in the estimated fair value of the hedged item related to the
designated risk being hedged, are reported in current eamings within derivative and other gains (losses).

We have designated the majority of the Parent Company’s yen-denominated liabilities (Samurai and Uridashi notes
and yen-denominated loans) as nonderivative hedges and designated derivatives as hedges of the foreign currency
exposure to our investment in Aflac Japan. At the beginning of each quarier, we make our net investment hedge
designation. If the total of the designated Parent Company non-derivative and derivatives notional is equal to or less than
our net investment in Aflac Japan, the hedge is deemed to be effective, and the exchange effect on the yen-denominated
liabilites and the change in estimated fair value of the derivatives are reported in the unrealized foreign cumrency
component of other comprehenzsive income. Should these designated net investment hedge positions exceed our net
investment in Aflac Japan, the foreign exchange effect on the portion that exceeds our investment in Aflac Japan would be
recognized im current earmings within derivative and other gaing {losses).

Dernivatives that are not designated as hedges are camied at fair value with all changes in fair value recorded in
current period earnings within derivative and other gainz (logsesz). We include the fair value of all freestanding derivatives
in either other assets or other liabilities on the balance sheet.

We receive and pledge cash or other securities as collateral on open derivative positions. Cash received as collateral
iz reported as an asset with a corresponding liability for the retumn of the collateral. Cash pledged as collateral is recorded
as a reduction to cash, and a comesponding receivabile iz recognized for the retum of the cash collateral. We generally
can repledge or resell collateral obtained by us, although we do not typically exercise such rights. Securities received as
collateral are not recognized unless we were to exercize our right to 22l that collateral or exercize remedies on that
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collateral upon a counterparty default. Securities that we have pledged as collateral continue to be camied as investment
aszets on our balance sheet.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs: Cerfain direct and incremental costs of acquiring new business are deferred and
amorized with interest owver the premium payment periods in proportion to the ratio of annual premium income to total
anticipated premium income. Anticipated premium income is estimated by using the same mortality, persistency and
inferest assumptions used in computing kabilities for future policy benefits. In this manner, the related acquisition
expenses are matched with revenues. Deferred costs include the excess of cumment-year commigsions over uliimate
renewal-year commigsions and certain incremental direct policy issue, underwriting and sales expenses. All of these
incremental costs are directly related to successful policy acquisition.

For some products, policyholders can elect to modify product benefits, features, rights or coverages by exchanging a
contract for a new contract or by amendment, endorsement, or rider to a contract, or by the election of a feature or
coverage within a contract. These transactions are known as intemal replacements. For internal replacement fransactions
where the resulting contract is substantially unchanged, the policy is accounted for ag a continuation of the replaced
contract. Unamortized deferred acquisition costs from the onginal policy continue to be amortized over the expected life of
the new policy, and the costs of replacing the policy are accounted for as policy maintenance costs and expensed as
incurred. Intemal replacement transactions that regult in a policy that is not substantially unchanged are accounted for az
an extinguizhment of the original policy and the issuance of a new policy. Unamaortized deferred acquisition costs on the
onginal policy that was replaced are immediately expensed, and the costz of acquiring the new policy are capitalized and
amorized in accordance with our accounting policies for deferred acquisition costs.

We meazure the recoverability of DAC and the adequacy of our policy reserves annually by performing grogs premium
valuations on our business. Our testing indicates that our DAC is recoverable and our policy liabilites are adequate. (See
the following discussion for further information regarding pelicy liabiliies.)

Policy Liabilities: Future policy benefits represent claims that are expected to occur in the future and are computed
by a net level premium method using estimated future investment yields, persistency and recognized morbidity and
micriality tables modified to reflect our experience, including a provision for adverse deviation. These assumptions are
generally established at the fime a policy is issued.

Unpaid policy claims are estimates computed on an undiscounted basis using statistical analyses of historical claims
expenence adjusted for cument trends and changed conditions. The ultimate liability may vary significantly from such
esfimates. We regularly adjust these esfimates as new claims experience emerges and reflect the changes in operating
results in the year such adjusiments are made.

Other policy liabilities consist primarily of discounted advance premiums on deposit from policyholders in conjunclicn
with their purchase of certain Aflac Japan limited-pay insurance products. These advanced premiums are deferred upon
collection and recognized as premium revenue over the contractual premium payment period.

For infemal replacements that are detemmined to not be substantially unchanged, policy liabilities related to the original
policy that was replaced are immediately released, and policy liabilifies are established for the new insurance confract.

Reinsurance: We enter into reinsurance agreements with other companies in the normal course of business. For
each of our reinsurance agreements, we determine if the agreement provides indemnification against loss or liability
relating to insurance rigk in accordance with applicable accounting standards. Reinsurance premiums and benefitz paid or
provided are accounted for on bases consistent with those used in accounting for the original policies issued and the
terms of the reinsurance confracts. Premiums, benefits and DAC are reported net of insurance ceded. See Mote B of the
Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statements for additional informaticn.

Income Taxes: Income tax provisions are generally based on pretax eamings reported for financial statement
purposes, which differ from those amounts used in preparing our income tax retums. Deferred income taxes are
recognized for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and income tax basis of assets and liabilities,
bhased on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which we expect the temporary differences
to reverse. We record defemmed tax assets for tax positions taken based on our assessment of whether the tax position is
miore likely than not to be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. A valuaticn allowance is established for
deferred tax assets when it is more likely tham not that an amount will not be realized.
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Ag discuszed in the Translation of Foreign Currencies section above, Aflac Japan maintains certain dollar-
denominated investments that, prior to October 1, 2013, did not have any foreign currency translation adjustments
recognized in other comprehensive income. However, the defemmed tax expense or benefit associated with foreign
exchange gains or losses on these investments is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) until the securities
miature or are sold. Total income tax expense (benefit) related to items of other comprehengive income (loss) included a
defermed tax expense of 35614 million in 2013 and 34392 million in 2012 for theze dollar-denominated investments.
Excluding these amounts from total taxes on other comprehensive income would result in an effective income tax rate on
pretax other comprehensive income (logs) of 31% in 2013 and 32% in 2012.

Policyholder Protection Corporation and State Guaranty Association Assessments: In Japan, the govermment
has required the insurance industry to contribute fo a policyholder protection corporation. We recognize a charge for our
estimated share of the indusiry's obligation once it iz determinable. We review the estimated liability for policyholder
protection corporation contributions on an annual basis and report any adjustments in Aflac Japan's expenses.

In the United States, each state has a guaranty association that supports insolvent insurers operating in thoze states.
To date, our state guaranty association assessments have not besn material.

Treasury Stock: Treasury stock is reflected as a reduction of shareholders’ equity at cost. We use the weighted-
average purchase cost fo determine the cost of treasury stock that is reizsued. We include any gains and losses in
additional paid-in capital when treasury stock is reissued.

Share-Based Compensation: We measure compensation cost related to our share-based payment transactions at
fair value on the grant date, and we recognize those costs in the financial statements over the vesting period during which

the employes provides service in exchange for the award.

Eamings Per Share: We compute basic eamings per share (EPS) by dividing net eamings by the weighted-average
nurnber of unrestricted shares outstanding for the perod. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net eamings by the
weighted-average number of shares outstanding for the period plus the shares representing the dilutive effect of share-
based awards.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to prior-year amounts to conform to current-year
reporting classifications. Components of our deferred inventory were reclassified to separately reflect deferred foreign
currency gains and losses which were previously apportioned to each component of the deferred inventory, see Mote 10
of the Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements. These reclassifications had no impact on net eamings or total
shareholders’ equity.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopied Accounting Pronouncemernis

Presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss cammyforward, a similar tax loss, ora
tax credit carmmyforward exists: In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance to amend the financial statement presentation of
an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carmyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carmyforward exists.
The new guidance essentially states that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax benefit, should
be presented in the financial statements as a reduction fo a defermed tax asset for a net operating logs carmyforward, a
similar tax loss, or a tax credit cammyforward. However, to the extent a net operating loss carmyforward, a similar tax loss, or
a tax credit carryforward ig not available at the reporting date under the tax law of the applicable jurizdiction fo settle any
additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax position ar the tax law of the applicable
jurisdiction does not require the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for such
purpose, the unrecognized tax benefit should be presented in the financial statements as a liability and should not be
combined with deferred tax assets. This accounting standard applies to all entities that have unrecognized tax benefits
when a net operating logs camyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit camyforward existz at the reporting date. This
guidance iz effective for annual reporting peniods beginning on or after December 15, 2013, and inferim periods within
those annual periods and requires prospective presentation for all comparative periods presented. We adopted this
guidance as of January 1, 2014. The adoption of this guidance did not have a significant impact on our financial
statements.

Derivatives and hedging: In July 2013, the FASE issued an update which allows enfities to use the Federal Funds
Effective Swap Rate, also referred to as the Ovemnight Index Swap Rate (OI5), a2 a benchrark interest rate for hedge
accounting purpozes. Previously the only acceptable benchmark rates for hedge accounting purposes under GAAP weres
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U.S. Treasury rates and the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) swap rate. This update refiects the evolution of
market hedging practices and iz intended to provide more flexibility for hedge accounting purposes. We adopted this
guidance in the third quarter of 2013 on a progpective basis for qualifying new or redesignated hedging relationships
entered into on or after the effective date of July 17, 2013. The adoplion of the guidance had no impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

Reporting of amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income: In February 2013, the
FASB izzued guidance that requires reclassification adjustments for items that are reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income to net income to be presented in statements where the components of net income and the
components of other comprehensive income are presented or in the footnotes to the financial statements. Additionally, the
amendment requires cross-referencing fo other disclosures currently required for other reclassification items. We adopted
this guidance as of January 1, 2013. The adoption of this guidance impacted our financial statement disclosures, but it did
niot have an impact on owr financial position or results of operations.

Digclosures about offsetting assets and liabilities: In December 2011, the FASB isaued guidance to amend the
dizclosure requirements about offsetting assets and liabilities. The new guidance essentially clanfies the FASBE's intent
concerning the application of existing offsetting disclosure requirements. Entities are required to disclose gross and net
information about both instruments and fransactions eligible for offzet in the statement of financial posgition and
instruments and transactions when those aclivities are subject to an agreement similar to a master netfing arrangement.
The scope of this guidance was clarified and revised in January 2013 to apply to derivatives, repurchaze agreements,
reverse repurchase agreements, securities bommowing and securnties lending arrangements. The objective of this
disclosure is fo move toward consistency between US. GAAP and Intemmational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
We adopied this guidance as of January 1, 2013. The adoption of thiz guidance impacted our financial statement
disclosures, but it did not have an impact on our financial position or results of cperations.

Fees paid to the federal government by health insurers: In July 2011, the FASB issued guidance on the
accounting for fees owed by health inzurers as mandated by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act as amended
by the Health Care and Education Reconciliafion Act (the Aciz). The Acts impose an annual fee on health insurers for
each calendar year beginning on or after January 1, 2014. A health insurer's portion of the annual fee is payable by
September 30 of the applicable calendar year once the entity provides health ingurance for any U.S. health risk in that
year. The annual fee for the health insurance industry will be allocated to individual health insurers based on the ratio of
the amount of an entity's net premiumns written during the preceding calendar year to the amount of health insurance for
any U.3. health rizk that is written during the preceding calendar year. The accounting guidance specifies that the liability
for the fee should be estimated and recorded in full in the applicable calendar year in which the fee is payable with a
comezponding deferred cost that is amortized to expense using a straight-fine method of allocation unless another method
better allocates the fee over the calendar year that it is payable. This guidance is effective for calendar years beginning
after December 31, 2013. We adopted this guidance as of January 1, 2014. The adoption of this guidance did not have a
significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Presentation of comprehensive income: In June 2011, the FASE igsued guidance to amend the presentafion of
comprehensive income. The amendment requires that all non-owner changes in shareholders' equity be presented either
in a single continuous statement of comprehenzive income or in fwo separate but consecutive statements. 'We adopted
thiz guidance as of January 1, 2012 and elected the option to report comprehensive income in two separate but
consecutive statements. The adoplion of this guidance did not have an impact on our financial position or results of
operafions.

Fair value measurements and disclosures: In May 2011, the FASE izsued guidance to amend the fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements. Maost of the amendments are darifications of the FASE's intent about the
application of existing fair value measurement and disclosure requirements. Other amendments change a particular
principle or requiremeant for measuring fair value or disclosing information about fair value measurements. The new fair
value measurement disclosures include additional quantitative and qualitative disclosures for Level 3 measurements,
including a qualitative sensitivity analysis of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs, and categorization by fair value
hierarchy level for items for which the fair value is only dizclosed. We adopted this guidance as of January 1, 2012. The
adoplion of this guidance impacted our financial statement disclosures, but it did not affect our financial pogition or results

of operations.

Accounting for costs agsociated with acquiring or renewing insurance contracts: In October 2010, the FASB
izsued amended accounting guidance on accounting for costs associated with acquiring or renewing insurance contracts.
Under the previous guidance, costs that varied with and were primarily related to the acquisition of a policy were:
deferrable. Under the amended guidance, only incremental direct cosis associated with the successful acquisition of a
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new or renewal contract may be capitalized, and direci-rezponse advertising costs may be capitalized only if they meet
certain criteria. This guidance is effective on a prospective or retrospective basis for interim and annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2011. We retrospectively adopied thiz guidance as of January 1, 2012. The refrogpective adoption of
thiz accounting standard resulted in an after-tax cumulative reduction to retained eamings of 3391 million and an after-tax
cumulative reduction to unrealized foreign currency franslation gaing in accumulated other comprehenaive income of 367
million, resulting in a fotal reduction to shareholders' equity of 3458 million as of December 31, 2009, the opening balance
sheet date in the period of adoption. The adoption of this accounting standard had an immatenial impact on net income in
2011 and all preceding years.

Accounting Pronouncements Pending Adoption

Derivatives and Hedging - Determining whether the host contract in a hybrid financial instrument issued in
the form of a share is more akin to debt or equity: In Movember 2014, the FASE izsued guidance to clarify how to
evaluate the economic characteristics and rizks of a host confract in a hybnid financial instrument that is issued in the form
of a share. The guidance also clarifies that an entity should azsess the substance of the relevant termz and features
when considering how to weight those terms and features. The guidance is effective for annual penods and interim
pericds beginning after December 15, 2015, The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant impact on our
financial position or results of operations.

Prezentation of Financial Statements - Going Concemn - Digclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s ability to
continue as a going concemn: In August 2014, the FASE issued this amendment that provides U.S. GAAP guidance on
management's responsibility in evaluating whether there iz substantial doubt about a company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and about related footnote disclosures. For each reporting period, management will be required to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about a company's ability to continue as a going
concern within one year from the date the financial statements are issued. The amendment iz effective for annual periods
ending after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within annual pericds beginning after December 15, 2016. Early
application is permitted for annual or interim reporting periods for which the financial statements have not previously been
izsued. The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant impact on our financial position or resulis of operations.

Receivables - Troubled debt restructurings by creditors - classification of certain government-guaranteed
maortgage loans upon foreclosure: In August 2014, the FASE issued updated guidance for froubled debt restructurings
affecting creditors that hold government-guarantesd mortgage loang, including those guaranteed by the FHA and the VAL
The guidance requires that a morigage loan be derecognized and a separate other receivable be recognized upon
foreclosure if certain conditions are met The new guidance is effective for annual pericds and interim periods within those
annual periods, beginning after December 13, 2014. The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant impact on
our financial position or resulis of operations.

Compensation - Stock Compensation - Accounting for share-based payments when the terms of an award
provide that a performance target could be achieved after the requisite service period: In June 2014, the FASB
izzued this amendment that provides guidance on certain ghare-bazed payment awards that require a specific
performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a
performance condition. A reporting entity should apply existing guidance to awards with performance conditicns that affect
vesting to account for such awards. The performance target should not be reflected in estimating the grant-date fair value
of the award. Compenszation cost should be recognized in the peried in which it becomes probable that the performance
target will be achieved and should represent the compenzation cost attributable to the period(s) for which the requizite
service has already been rendered. If the performance target becomes probable of being achieved before the end of the
requisite service period, the remaining unrecognized compensation coat should be recognized prospeciively over the
remaining requisite service penod. The total amount of compensation cost recognized during and after the reguisite
senvice period should reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest and should be adjusted to reflect those
awards that ultimately vest. The requisite service period ends when the employee can ceaze rendering senvice and still be
eligible to vest in the award if the performance target is achieved. The guidance is effective for annual pericds and interim
percds within those annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015, Early adoplion is permitted. The adoption of thiz
guidance will not have a significant impact on our financial position or resultz of ocperations.

Transfers and Servicing, Repurchase-to-Maturity Transactions, Repurchase Financings, and Disclosures: In
June 2014, the FASB issued updated guidance for repurchaze agreement and security lending transactions to change the
accounting for repurchage-fo-maturity transactions and linked repurchase financings to be accounted for as secured
lormowings, cansistent with the accounting for other repurchase agreements. The amendments also require new
dizclogures to increase transparency about the types of collateral pledged in repurchase agreements and similar
tranzactions accounted for az secured borrowings. The new guidance is effective for annual pericds and interim perods

o4

238/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2014. The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant
impact on our financial position or resulis of operations.

Revenue from contracts with customers: In May 2014, the FASE issued updated guidance that affects any entity
that either enters into contracts with customers to transfer goods or services or enters into contracts for the transfer of
nonfinancial azsets unless those contracts are within the scope of other standards (e.g., insurance contracts or lease
contracts). The core principle of the guidance i that an entity should recognize revenue fo depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expectz to be entifled in
exchange for those goods or services. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim perods within that reporting perod. Eardy application iz not permitted. The adoption
of this guidance will not have a significant impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Receivables - Troubled debt restructurings by creditors - Reclassification of residential real estate
collateralized consumer mortgage loans upon foreclosure: In January 2014, the FASE issued updated guidance for
troubled debt restructurings clarifying when an in substance repossession or foreclogure occurs, and when a creditor is
considered to have received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage
loan. The new guidance is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after
December 15, 2014. The adoption of this guidance will not have a significant impact on our financial position or results of
operations.

Recent accounting guidance not discussed above is not applicable, did not have, or iz not expected to have a material
impact to our business.

2. BUSINESS SEGMENT AND FOREIGN INFORMATION

The Company consists of two reporiable insurance business segments: Afiac Japan and Aflac U.S., both of which sell
supplemental health and life insurance. Operating business segments that are not individually reportable and buginess
acfivities not included in Aflac Japan or Aflac U_S. are included in the "Other business segmentz” category.

We do not allocate conporate overhead expenses o business segments. We evaluate and manage our business
segments using a financial performance measure called pretax operating earnings. Our definition of operating eamings
includes interest cash flows associated with notes payable and excludes the following items from net eamings on an after-
tax basiz: realized investment gainsfioszes (securities tranzactions, impairments, and the impact of derivative and hedging
activities), nonrecurring items and other non-operating income (loss). We then exclude income taxes related fo operations
to armive at pretax operating earnings. Informaticn regarding operations by segment for the years ended December 31
follows:
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{In mmillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Afiac Japan:
et eamed premiums:
Cancer % 5,596 % 6,123 % 7,537
Medical and cther health 3,770 4 282 5,244
Life insurance 4,495 4 577 4370
Met investment income 2,662 2851 2 B45
Other income 32 55 57
Total Aflac Japan 16,555 17,688 20,053
Aflac U5
Eamed premiums:
Accident/disability 2,303 2284 2213
Cancer 1,279 1,283 1,282
Other health 1,371 1,334 1,259
Life insurance 258 252 242
Met investment income 645 632 613
Other income 3 i 19
Total Aflac U.S. 5,859 5,79 5,628
Other business segments 43 49 46
Total business segment revenues 22,457 23,528 20,727
Realized investment gains (loszes) m ™ 3@8 ™ (349)
Corporate 281 302 269
Intercompany eliminaticns (248) (308) (276)
(Other non-operating income (loss) [iT) 28 (7}
Total revenues $ 22,728 5 23,939 § 25,364

MEm'wﬁrgagaﬂwufﬂ#hEﬂHandsmmzﬂﬂmra‘edfa the infereat rafe component of the change in fair value of foreign currency
swape on nofes payable which iz classified ae an operating gain when analyzing segment opemtions
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{In millicns) 2014 2013 2012
Pretax eamings:
Aflac Japan $ 3458 $ 3628 5 3904
Aflac U.S. 1,073 1,038 997
Other business segments _[2] (1) (3
Total business segment pretax operating eamings 4,529 4 665 4 598
Interest expense, noninsurance operations (198) {198) {184}
Corporate and eliminations (78) (68) {56)
Pretax operating eamings 4,253 4 30959 4 658
Realized investment gains (lozzes) 71 ™ 3gg ™ (349)
Other non-operating income (loss) 67 28 {7}
Total eamings before income taxes $ 4.421 b 4,§1E 5 4302
Income taxes applicable to pretax operating eamings $ 1456 F 1,912 5 1,561
Effect of foreign currency translabon on uperatl'ig Eamings: (117} {357) 8

MExdwﬁrgagaﬂwuf&thﬂHandﬂﬂhZﬂiElﬂa‘edfa the infereaf rafe component of the change in fair value of foreign curency
swaps on notes payable which iz classiied as an operafing gain when analyzing segment operations

Agsets as of December 31 were as follows:

{In millions) 2014 2013 2012
Assets:
Aflac Japan $ 98,525 5102973 $113,678
Aflac U.S. 18,383 16,112 16,122
{Other business segments 128 155 154
Total business segment assets 117,036 119,240 129,954
Corporate 24,636 19,9509 20,318
Intercompany eliminaticns (21,905) (17.842) {19,178}
Total asseats $ 119,767 $121.307 $131,094

Yen-Translation Effects: The following table shows the yen/dollar exchange rates used for or during the periods
ended December 31. Exchange effects were calculated using the same yen/dollar exchange rate for the current year as

for each respective prior year.

2014 2013 2012
Statements of Eamings:
Weighted-average yen/dollar exchange rate 105.46 9754 881
en percent strengthening (weakening) {7.5)% (18.2)% (.1)%
Exchange effect on pretax operating eamings (in millions) $ (180) ¥ (334) F N
2014 2013
Balance Sheets:
Yen/dollar exchange rate at December 31 120.55 105.29
Yen percent strengthening (weakening) (12.6)% {17.8)%
Exchange effect on fotal assets (in millions) $ (10,706) 5(17,6836)
Exchange effect on fotal liabilities (in millions) {12,025) {19,808)

Transfers of funds from Aflac Japan: Aflac Japan makes payments to the Parent Company for management fees
and to Aflac U.5. for allocated expenses and profit repatriations. Information on transfers for each of the years ended
December 31 is shown below. See Mote 13 for information concemning restrictions on transfers from Aflac Japan.
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{in millions) 2014 2013 2012
Management fees § 39 5 37 5 30
Allocated expenses ™ T4 38
Profit repatriation 1,704 771 a4

Total transfers from Afiac Japan $ 1,814 5 882 5 510

Property and Equipment: The costs of bulldings, furniture and eqguipment are depreciated principally on a siraight-
line: bagis over their estimated useful lives (maximum of S0 years for buildings and 20 years for fumiture and equipment).
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incumed; expenditures for betterments are capitalized and

depreciated. Clazses of property and equipment as of December 31 were as fiollows:

{In millicns) 2014 2013
Property and equipment:
Land $ 1638 5 168
Buildings 393 444
Equipment and fumiture 305 329
Total property and equipment 866 941
Less accumulated depreciation 437 460
Met property and equipment $ 429 5 481

Receivables: Receivables consist primarily of monthly insurance premiums due from individual policyholders or their
employers for payroll deducticn of premiums, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. At December 31, 2014, 3386
million, or 45.8% of fotal receivables, were related fo Aflac Japan's operations, compared with 3731 million, or 82.9%, at

December 31, 2013,

3. INVESTMENTS

Het Investment Income

The components of net investment income for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

{In millions) 2014 2013 202
Fixed-maturity securities $3,29 $3210 % 3,248
Perpetual securities 141 153 233
Equity securities and other T T 17
Shart-term investments and cash eguivalents 2 1 2
Gross invesiment income 3,399 3.3M 3,520
Less investment expenses 80 T8 47
Met investment income $ 3,319 $ 3,293 53473
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Investment Holdings

The amortized cost for cur investments in debt and perpetual securities, the cost for equity securities and the fair
values of these investments at December 31 are shown in the following tables.

2014
Cost or Gross Gross .
N Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{In rrillicns) Cost Gains Los=es Value
Securities available for sale, carried at fair value: - T
Fixed maturities:
Yen-denominated:
Japan government and agencies $ 17,341 $1,740 $ 0 $19,081
Municipalities 88 9 0 97
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities. 351 35 0 386
Public utilities 1,691 226 5 1,912
Sovereign and supranational T99 163 0 962
Bankzffinancial institutions 2,752 325 189 2,588
Other corporate 3,479 531 48 3,962
Total yen-denominated 26,501 3,029 242 29,7688
Dollar-denominated:
U.S. govemnment and agencies 100 17 0 117
Municipalities 961 201 2 1,160
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities. 185 | 0 M6
Public utilities 5,061 960 36 5985
Sowvereign and supranational 343 111 0 454
Banksffinancial institutions 2,943 Ti5 8 3,710
Oiher corporate 22,291 2,682 330 24,643
Total dollar-denominated 31,884 4,777 376 36,285
Total fixed maturities 58,385 7,806 618 65,573
Perpetual securities:
Yen-denominated:
Banksffinancial institutions 2,132 223 92 2,263
Other corporate 183 48 0 2
Dollar-denominated:
Banksffinancial institutions 125 50 0 175
Total perpetual securities 2,440 321 az 2,669
Equity securities 19 9 0 28
Taotal securities available for sale % 60,844 $8,136 $ 710 $68,270
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2014
Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{In rmillions) Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities held to maturity, carried at amortized cost:
Fixed maturities:
Yen-denominated:
Japan government and agencies $20,023 $3,195 $ 0 §23,18
Municipalities 346 m 0 417
Martgage- and asset-backed securities 43 3 0 46
Public utilities 3,342 281 20 3,603
Sovereign and supranational 2,556 272 14 2,814
Banksfinancial instifuticns 4,932 iy 78 5,085
Other corporate 3,000 326 12 3314
Total yen-denominated 34,242 4379 124 38,497
Total securities held to maturity $34,242 $4.379 $ 124 538,497
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2013
Coostor Gross Gross )
. Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{In millions) Cost Gains Losses “alue
Securities available for sale, camied at fair value:
Fixed maturties:
Yen-denominated:
Japan government and agencies 514,936 5 4M 3 33 £1534
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 558 x5 0 LT
Public utilities 22681 100 18 2343
Sowvereign and supranational 978 85 28 1,035
Banksffinancial instituicns 2,799 220 242 2777
(Other corporate 3,956 151 185 3922
Total yen-denominated 25,488 1,016 506 25,938
Dollar-denominated:
U.S. govemment and agencies 92 10 4 S8
Municipalities 992 71 12 1,051
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities. 163 s o 184
Public utilities 4931 471 183 5219
Soversign and supranational 404 85 1 466
Bankaffinancial instifuticna 3318 447 33 3732
Other corporate 21,123 1,47 1,170 21,300
Total dollar-denominated 31,023 2452 1,403 2072
Total fixed maturities 56,511 3468 1,509 58,070
Perpetual securities:
Yen-denominated:
Bankafinancial instifuticns 2582 151 27 2516
Other corporate 209 L] 0 209
Dollar-denominated:
Bankafinancial instifuticns 196 a5 9 222
Total perpetual securities 2987 186 X26 2,547
Equity securifies 17 5 1 2
Total secunibies available for sale $59.515 53,659 32,136 $61,038
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2013
Cost or Gross Gross
Amoriized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
{In rmillions) Coat Gains Losses “Value
Securities held to maturity, carried at amortized cost:
Fixed maturities:
Yen-denominated:
Japan government and agencies 527362 51,347 5 1 $28,708
Municipalities 359 41 o 440
Martgage- and asset-backed securities 58 3 0 61
Public utilities 3,500 150 122 3,928
Sovereign and supranational 2541 17 T2 3,040
Banksfinancial instifuticns 6310 146 328 6,128
Other corporate 3,445 1583 ar 3,541
Total yen-denominated 44 415 2,041 610 45 846
Total securibies held to maturity 544415 52,041 5 610 545,846

The methods of determining the fair values of our investments in fixed-maturity securifies, perpetual securities and
equity securities are described in Mote 5.

During 2014, we reclassified three invesiments from the held-to-matunty porifolio to the available-for-sale porifolic as
a result of the issuers being downgraded fo below investment grade. At the time of the transfer, the securitiez had an
aggregate amortized cost of 3424 million and an aggregate unrealized loss of 354 million. During 2013, we reclassified
two investments from the held-to-maturity portfolio to the available-for-zale porifolio ag a result of the izsuer being
downgraded to below investment grade. At the time of the transfer, the securities had an aggregate amoriized cost of
3452 millicn and an aggregate unrealized loss of 5153 million. During 2012, we reclassified seven investments from the
held-to-maturity portfolio to the available-for-zale portfolio as a result of the izsuers being downgraded o below

investment grade. At the time of the transfer, the securiies had an aggregate amortized cost of $1.2 billion and an
aggregate unrealized loss of 5290 million.
Contractual and Economic Maturities

The contractual maturities of our investments in fived maturities at December 31, 2014, were as follows:

Aflac Japan Aflac U.S.
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
{In mmillicns) Cost Value Cost Value
Available for sale:
Due in one year or less ¥ 369 $ 390 5 65 5 69
Due after one year through five years 1,519 1,771 T24
Due after five years through 10 years 10,351 10,979 1472 1,561
Due after 10 years 34,018 38,595 9,103 10,240
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities. 405 451 36 45
Total fixed maturities available for sale 546,662 §52,196 511,34 512,940
Held to maturity:
Due after one year through five years 1,520 1,631 0 1]
Due after five years through 10 years 1,937 2130 0 1]
Due after 10 years 30,742 34 690 0 o
Martgage- and asset-backed securities 43 46 0 1]
Total fixed maturities held to maturity 534,242 538,497 5 1] 5 1]

At December 21, 2014, the Parent Company had a porifolio of available-for-sale fixed-maturity securities totaling $419
million at amortized cost and 5437 million at fair value, which iz not included in the table above.
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Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some issuers have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The majority of our perpetual securities are subordinated fo other debit obligations of the izsuer, but rank higher than
the iszuer's equity securities. Perpetual securities have characteristics of both debt and equity investments, along with
unique features that create economic maturity dates for the securities. Although perpetual securities have no contractual
maturity date, they have stated interest coupons that were fixed at their issuance and subsequently change to a floating
shart-ferm interest rate after zome period of time. The instrumentz are generally callable by the izzuer at the time of
changing from a fixed coupon rate to a new variable rate of interest, which is determined by the combination of some
miarket index plus a fixed amount of baszis pointz. The net effect is to create an expected economic maturity date for the
instrument. The economic maturities of cur investments in perpetual securities, which were all reporied as available for
sale at December 31, 2014, were as follows:

Aflac Japan Aflac U.S.
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
{In rrillicns) Cost Value Cost Value
Due in one year or less % 306 § 300 3 5 5 5
Due after one year through five years 624 674 0 1]
Due after 10 years 1,466 1,635 K] a5
Total perpetual securities available for sale 52 396 $2 609 3 44 $ 60

Investment Concentrations

Owr imvesiment process beging with an independent approach to underwriting each issuer's fundamental credit
guality. We evaluate independently those factors which we believe could influence an issuer's ability to make payments
under the contractual terms of our ingtruments. This includes a thorough analysis of a varety of items including the
izsuer's country of domicle (including political, legal, and financial considerations); the industry in which the issuer
competes (with an analysis of industry structure, end-market dynamics, and regulation); company specific izsues (such as
management, assefs, eamnings, cash generaticn, and capital needs); and contractual provisions of the instrument {such
as financial covenants and position in the capital structure). We further evaluate the investment considering broad
businezs and portfolio management objectives, including assetfliability needs, porifolio diversification, and expected
income.

Investment exposures that individually exceeded 10% of sharcholders’ equity as of December 31 were as follows:

2014 2013
Credit Amortized Fair Credit Amortized Fair
{In rmillions) Rating Cost Value Rating Cost Value
Japan Mational Government'™ A $37,021 $41,878 A 541924 $43.619

W JGEs or JGB-backed securties

Banks and Financial institulions

One of our largest investment sector concentrations as of December 31, 2014, was banks and financial institutions.
Within the counfries we approve for investment opportunities, we primarily invest in financial institutions that are
sirategically crucial to each approved country’s economy. The bank and financial insfitution sector is a highly regulated
industry and plays a atrategic role in the global econony.
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Ouwr total imvestments in the bank and financial institution sector as of December 31, including those classified as
perpetual securities, were as follows:

2014 2013

Total Investments in Total Investments in
Banks and Financial _Percentage of  Banks and Financial Percentage of
Ingtitutions Sector  Total Investment Institutions Sector Total Investment

{in millions) Portfolio {in millions) Portfolio
Fixed maturities:
Amortized cost $10,627 11% 312427 12%
Fair value 11,683 11 12,637 12
Perpetual securties:
Upper Tier II:
Amortized cost $ 1,554 2% 5 1,520 2%
Fair value 1,645 1 1913 2
Tier I:
Amortized cost 703 1 858 1
Fair value 793 1 825 1
Total:
Amortized cost $12,884 14% 515205 15%
Fair value 14,121 13 15,375 13

Realized Investment Gains and Losses

Information regarding pretax realized gains and losses from investments for the years ended December 31 follows:
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{In mmillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Realized investment gains (losses) on securities:
Fixed maturities:
Available for zale:
Groas gains from sales $ 192 3 36 5 4
Groas losses from sales {12) {B7) (48)
Met gaing {lozses) from redemptions M 4 2
Other-than-temporary impairment losses {31) {128) (T34)
Held to maturity:
Met gaing {lozses) from redemptions 1 0 4
Total fived maturities 184 135 (349)
Perpetual securities;
Available for sale:
Gross gains from sales 0 o 127
Gross losses from sales 0 {1 (98)
Met gains (loszes) from redemptions 0 0 &0
Other-than-temiporary impairment losses 0 (70} (243}
Total perpetual securifies 0 {71} (154}
Equity securities:
Other-than-temiporary impairment losses 0 (1) 1]
Total equity securities 0 (1) o
Derivatives and other:
Derivative gains (losses) K| 326 151
Cther 0 10 3
Total derivatives and other K3 | 336 154
Total realized investment gains (losses) $ 215 5 399 3 (349)
Other- Ji I t

The fair values of our debt and perpetual security investments fluctuate based on changes in interest rates, foreign
exchange, and credit spreads in the global financial markets. Fair values can also be heavily influenced by the values of
the assets of the izsuer and expected ulfimate recovery values upon a default, bankruptcy or other financial reatructuring.
Credit spreads are most impacted by the general credit environment and global market iquidity. Interest rates are driven
by numerous factors including, but not imited to, supply and demand, governmental monetary actions, expectations of
inflation and economic growth. We believe that fluctuations in the fair values of our investment securities related to
general changes in the level of credit spreads or interest rates have little bearing on underlying credit quality of the issuer,
and whether our investment iz ultimately recoverable. Generally, we consider such dedines in fair values to be temporary
even in situations where an investment remains in an unrealized loss position for a year or more.

However, in the course of our credit review process, we may determine that it is unlikely that we will recover our
investment in an issuer due fo factors specific fo an individual issuer, as ocpposed to general changes in global credit
spreads or interest ratez. In this event, we congider such a decline in the investment's fair value, to the extent it is below
the investiment's cost or amortized cost, 1o be an other-than-temporary impairment of the investment and reduce the book
value of the investment o its fair value.

In addition to the usual investment risk associated with a delbt instrument, our perpetual security holdings are largely
izsued by banks that are integral to the firancial markets of the sovereign country of the issuer. As a result of the issuer's
position within the economy of the sovereign country, our perpetual securities may be subject to a higher risk of
naticnalization of their izsuers in connection with capital injections from an issuer's soversign government. We cannot be
assured that such capital support will extend fo all levels of an izsuers capital structure. In addition, certain governments
or regulators may consider impesing interest and principal payment resfrictions on issuers. of hybrid securities to preserve
cazh and pregerve the izsuer's capital. Beyond the cash flow impact that additional deferralz would have on our portfolio,
such deferrals could result in ratings downgrades of the affected securities, which in tum could result in a reduction of fair
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value of the securities and increase our regulatory capital requirements. We consider these factors in our credit review
process.

¥When determining our intention to 2ell a security prior to recovery of its fair value to amortized cost, we evaluate facts
and circumstances such as, but not imited to, future cash flow needs, decigions to reposition our security porifolio, and
risk profile of individual investment holdings. We perform ongoing analyses of our liquidity needs, which includes cash
flow testing of cur policy liabilities, debt maturities, projected dividend payments and other cash flow and liquidity needs.
Our cash flow testing includes extensive duration analysis of our imvestment porifolio and policy liabilities. Bazed on our
analyses, we have concluded that we have sufficient excess cash flows to mest our liquidity needs without selling any of
our investments prior to their maturity.

The following table details our pretax other-than-temporary impairment losses by investment category that resulted
from our impaiment evaluation process for the years ended December 31.

{In millions) 2014 2013 2012
Perpetual securities $ 0 s 70 5 243
Corporate bonds H 102 343
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 0 0 3
Sovereign and supranational 0 26 386
Equity securities 0 1 0
Total other-than-temporary impaiment losses realized ™ $ 3 % 199 5 977

T inchudes $45 and 5597 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2042, respechively, for credit-related impaimments;
526 and §27 for the yearzs ended Decernber 31, 2013 and 2012, regpectively, for impaimentz due fo seventy and durafion
of decline in fair value; and §31, §128 and §353 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 20132, respectively, from change
in infent fo el securbes

Unirealized Investment Gaing and Losses

Information regarding changes in unrealized gains and losses from investments for the years ended December 31
follows:

{In millicns) 2014 2013 2012
Changes in unrealized gains (losses):
Fixed maturities:
Auvailable for sale $ 5629 3 (2,281) 5 1624
Transfemed fo held to maturity (10) ) (14}
Perpetual securities:
Available for sale 269 {129} 547
Equity securities 5 1 0
Tatal change in unrealized gains (losses) $ 5,893 5 (2418) F 2157

Effect on Shareholders' Equily

The net effect on shareholders' equity of unrealized gains and losses from investment securties at December 31 was
as follows:

{In millions) 2014 2013

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities availalie for sale £7,426 51523

Unamortized unrealized gains on securities transfermed to held to maturity 0 11

Deferred income taxes (2,754) (499)

“Shareholders’ equily, unrealized gains (05322 on iINvestment secunties $4,672 51,035
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Gross Uinrealized Loss Agi

The following tables show the fair values and gross unrealized losses of our available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments that were in an unrealized loss position, aggregated by invesiment categony and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31.

2014
Total Lezs than 12 months 12 months or longer
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
{In rnillions) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
Municipalities:
Dollar-denominated 75 2 53 1 2 1
Public utilities:
Dollar-denominated 1,004 36 164 T Bar 29
Yen-denominated 805 25 o8 1 To07T 24
Sovereign and supranational:
Yen-denominated 359 14 0 0 359 14
Banksffinamcial institutions:
Dollar-denominated 205 8 53 5 152 3
Yen-denominated 1,828 267 166 0 1,662 267
Other corporate:
Dollar-denominated 8,072 330 1,901 62 6,171 268
Yen-denominated 1,151 &0 122 2 1,029 58
Total fced maturities 13,496 T42 2,557 78 10,939 664
Perpetual securities:
Yen-denominated T83 92 194 5 589 87
Total perpetual securities T83 92 194 5 589 &7
Total $14.279 $ 834 § 2,7 § B3 $11,528 $ 75
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2013
Total Less than 12 months 12 monthes or longer
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
{In rrillicns) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
Japan government and agencies:
Yen-denominated % 8,869 P M § 8,869 F 34 5 0 5 0
Municipalities:
Dollar-denominated 177 12 145 8 32 4
Public utilities:
Dollar-denominated 2023 183 1,740 143 283 40
Yen-denominated 2519 140 1,816 od T03 886
Sovereign and supranational:
Dollar-denominated 12 1 12 1 0 0
Yen-denominated 1,152 100 791 34 361 66
Banksfinancial instituions:
Dollar-denominated 047 i3 454 i a3 10
Yen-denominated 4 533 ST 2322 107 221 453
Other corporate:
Dollar-denominated 11,588 1,170 8,504 733 3,084 437
Yen-denominated 33r2 72 2,296 152 1,076 120
U.S. government and agencies:
Dollar-denominated 36 4 36 4 0 0
Total fixed maturities 34828 25159 26,985 1,293 7843 1,226
Perpetual securifies:
Dollar-denominated 59 5 52 8 T 1
Yen-denominated 1,322 27 748 T4 574 143
Total perpetual securities 1,381 226 &00 52 581 144
Equity securities 5 1 3 1 1] 0
Total 536,214 32,7456 $27,790 51,376 5 8424 51,370

Analysis of Secuwnifies in Unrealized Loss Positions

The unrealized losses on our invesiments have been primarily related to general market changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, andfor the levels of credit spreads rather than specific concemns with the issuer's ability fo pay
interest and repay principal.

For amy significant declines in fair value, we perform a more focused review of the related izsuers’ eredit profile. For
corporate issuers, we evaluate their assets, business profile including industry dynamics and competitive positioning,
financial statements and other available financial data. For non-corporate issuers, we analyze all sources of credit
support, including issuer-specific factors. We utilize information available in the public domain and, for certain private
placement issuers, from consultations with the izsuers directly. We also consider rafings from Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organizationz (NRSROs), as well as the specific characteristica of the security we own including
seniority in the iBsuers capital structure, covenant predictions, or other relevant features. From these reviews, we
evaluate the izsuers' continued ability to service our investment through payment of interest and principal.
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The following table provides more information on our unrealized logs position as of December 31.

2014 2013
Groas (GI0EE.
Investmeants Gross Unrealizad Invesimenis GIOES Unrealzed
In an Unraalized Unreaiized Lozeas that are  In an Unreallzed Unrealzed Losses that are
{In millizns} Loas Position Logseas Investment Grade Lass Position Losses Invesiment Grade
Flxed Maturities:
Japan government
and agentles {15 % % 5% 1% 100%
Public utiliies 13 T 100 13 12 93
Soverelgn and
supranational 3 F 100 3 4 100
BanksMnancial
Insttutions 14 33 k) 14 22 B4
Other corporate E5 47 BB 41 53 L0
Tolal xed
maturities 5% B3% 96% 9%
Parpatual securities 5 1 100 4 B o0
Total 100°% 100% 100% 1007%

Agsuming no credit-retated factors, as investments near maturity, unrealized gains and losses are expected o
diminish. Based on our credit analysis, we believe that the issuers of our invesiments in the sectors shown in the table
above have the ability to service their obligations to us.

Perpefual Securities
The majority of our imlvestments in Upper Tier |l and Tier | perpetual securiies are in highly-rated global financial
ingtitutions. Upper Tier Il securties have more debtdike characteristics than Tier | securities and are senior o Tier |
securiies, preferred stock, and common equity of the issuer. Conversely, Tier | securities have more equity-like
charactenstics, but are senior to the common equity of the issuer, and they may also be senior to certain preferred shares;
depending on the individual gecurity; the issuer's capital structure and the regulatory jurisdiction of the i=suer.
Detailz of our holdings of perpetual securifies as of December 31 were as follows:

Perpetual Securities

2014 2013
Credit Amortized Fair Unrealized  Amorized Fair Unrealized
{In rnillicns) Rating Cost Value Gain (Loss) Coat Value Gain (Loss)
Upper Tier II:
A $§ 61 $ ar $ 26 5 145 5 183 $ 38
BBB 1,330 1,333 3 1,563 1,532 (31)
BB ar lower 163 225 62 212 198 (14)
Total Upper Tier Il 1,554 1,645 L | 1,520 1,913 (7}
Tier I
BEBB 519 556 w 746 T06 {40)
BE ar lower 184 237 53 112 119 7
Total Tier | 703 793 a0 858 825 {33)
Other subordinated
- non-banks:
BB ar lower 183 N 48 209 209 0
Total $2,440 $2,669 $ $2 987 52947 5 (40)

Agsuming no credit-retated factors develop, as investments near matunty, the unrealized gains or losses are expecied
to diminish. Based on our credit analysis, we believe that the issuers of cur investments in these sectors have the ability
to =envice their obligations to us.
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Variable Interest Entities (VIEs)

Ag a condition to our inviolvement or investment in a VIE, we enter info certain protective rights and covenants that
preclude changes in the structure of the VIE that would atter the creditworthiness of our investment or our beneficial
intereat in the VIE.

Owr involvernent with all of the VIEs in which we have an interest iz passive in nature, and we are not the amanger of
these entitiez. VWe have not been involved in establighing these entities, except as it relates to our review and evaluafion
of the structure of these VIEs in the nomal course of our investment decision-making process. Further, we are not, nor
have we been, required to purchasze any securities issued in the future by these VIES.

Our cwnership interest in the VIES is limited to holding the obligations isswed by them. All of the VIES in which we
invest are static with respect to funding and have no ongoing forms of funding after the initial funding date. We have no
direct or contingent obligations to fund the imited activities of these VIEs, nor do we have any direct or indirect financial
guarantees related to the limited activities of these VIEz. We have not provided any assistance or any other fype of
financing support to any of the VIEs we invest in, nor do we have any intention to do so in the future. The weighted-
average lives of our notes are very similar to the underlying collateral held by these \VIEs where applicable.

Owr risk of loss related fo our interests in any of our VIEs is limited to our imvestment in the debt secunties issued by
them.

VIEs - Consolidated

The following table presents the amorized cost, fair value and balance sheet caption in which the assets and liabilities.
of consolidated VIEs are reported as of December 31.

Investments in Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

2014 2013
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
{In millions) Cost Value Cost Value
Aszets:
Fixed maturities, available for sale $3,020 $4,166 54,109 54,843
Perpetual securities, available for sale 405 429 453 468
Freed maturities, held to maturity 83 84 237 236
Other assets 106 106 106 106
Total assets of consclidated VIEs $3,614 $4,785 4915 35,653
Liabilities:
Other liabilities $ 318 $§ 38 5 207 5 207
Total iabilities of consolidated VIEs $ 318 $ 318 5 207 3 207

WWe are substantively the anly imvestor in the consolidated VIEs listed in the table above. As the sole investor in these
VIEs, we have the power to direct the activities of a variable interest entity that most significantly impact the entity's
ecanomic performance and are therefore conzidered fo be the primary beneficiary of the VIEs that we conzolidate. We
alzo participate in substantially all of the variakility created by these VIEs. The activities of these VIEs are limited to
holding debt and perpetual securities and interest rate, foreign cumency, andfor CDSs, as appropriate, and utilizing the
cash flows from these securities to service our investment. Neither we nor any of our creditors are able to obtain the
underlying collateral of the VIEs unleas there iz an event of default or other apecified event. For those VIEs that contain a
swap, we are not a direct counterparty to the swap confracts and have no control over them. Our logs exposure to these
WIEs is limited to our original investment. Our consolidated VIEs do not rely on cutside or ongoing sources of funding fo
support their activiies beyond the underlying collateral and swap contracts, if applicable. With the exception of our
investment in 2enior 2ecured bank loans through unit trust structures, the underying collateral assets and funding of ocur
consolidated VIEs are generally static in nature: and the underlying collateral and the reference corporate entities covered
by amy CDS contracts were all investment grade at the time of issuance.

We are exposed fo credit logzes within any conzolidated CDOs that could result in principal logses to our investments.
YWe have mitigated our risk of credif loss through the structure of the VIE, which contractually reguires the subordinated
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tranches within these VIEs to absorb the majority of the expected losses from the underlying credit default swaps. We
currently own only senior mezzanine CDO tranches. Based on our statistical analysis models and the cumrent
subordination levels in our CDOs, each of these VIEs can sustain a reasonable number of defaults in the underying
reference entities in the COSs with no loss to our investment.

VIEs - Not Consalidafed

The table below refiects the amortized cost, fair value and balance sheet caption in which our investment in VIES not
consolidated are reported as of December 31.

Investments in Variable Interest Entities Mot Consolidated

2014 2013
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
{in millions) Cost Value Cost Value
Assets:
Fixed maturities, available for sale $ 6,104 $ 6,937 5 6724 5 6916
Perpetual securities, available for sale 324 330 3T 378
Fixed maturities, held to maturity 2,564 2,829 2,949 3,039
Total investments in VIES not consolidated $ 8,992 $10,096 510,043 510,333

The VIEs that we are not required to consolidate are investments that are in the form of debt obligations from the VIEs
that are irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed by their corporate parents or sponzors. Theze VIEs are the primany
financing vehicles used by their corporate sponsors fo raise financing in the intemational capital markets. The variable
interests created by these VIEs are principally or solely a result of the debt instruments issued by them. We do not have
the power to direct the aclivities that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance, nor do we have (1) the
obligation to absorb losses of the entity or (2) the right to receive benefits from the entity. As such, we are not the primary
bensficiary of these VIEs and are therefore not required to consolidate them. These VIE investments comprize securities.
from 191 separate izsuers with an average credit rating of BEB.

Securities Lending and Pledged Securities

We lend fixed-maturity securities o financial institutions in ghort-term security-lending transactions. These shor-term
security-lending armangements increase investment income with minimal risk. Our security lending policy requires that the
fair value of the securities andfor unrestricted cash received as collateral be 102% or more of the fair value of the loaned
securities. The following table presents our security loans outstanding and the corresponding collateral held as of
December 31:

{In rillions) 2014 2013
Security loans cutstanding, fair value $ 2149 $ 5,656
Cash collateral on loaned securities 2,193 5,820

Certain fixed-maturity securities have been pledged as collateral as part of derivative fransactions. For additicnal
infarmation regarding pledged securities related o derivative fransactions, see Mote 4.

At December 31, 2014, debt securities with a fair value of $13 million were on deposit with regulatory authorities in
the United States (including U_S. territories) and Japan. We retain ownership of all securities on deposit and receive the
related investment income.

For general information regarding our investment accounting policies, see Mote 1.
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4. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Ouwr freestanding dernvative financial instruments congist of- (1) foreign currency swaps, credit default swaps, and
interest rate swaps that are associated with investments in special-purpose entities, including VIEs where we are the
primary beneficiary; (2) foreign currency forwards and options used in hedging ﬁ:IFEI_II exchange rigk on U.S. dollar-
denominated securities in Aflac Japan's portfolio; (3) foreign cumency forwards and options used to hedge certain porfions
of forecasted cash flows denominated in yen; (4) swaps associated with our notes payable, consisting of an inferest rate
swap for our variable interest rate yen-denominated debt and crogs-curmmency interest rate swaps, alzo referred to as
foreign currency swaps, associated with certain senior notes and our subordinated debentures; and (3) options on interest
rate awaps (or interest rate swaptionz) and futures used to hedge interest rate risk for certain available-for-zale securities.
We do not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, nor do we engage in leveraged derivative
transactions. Some of our derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges, fair value hedges or net investment hedges;
however, other derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting. We utilize a net investment hedge to mitigate foreign
exchange exposure resulting from our net investment in Aflac Japan. In addition fo designating derivatives as hedging
ingtruments, we have designated the majority of our yen-denominated Samurai and Uridashi notes and yen-denominated
loans as nonderivative hedging instruments for this net investment hedge.

Derivative Types

We enter into foreign currency swaps pursuant to which we exchange an initial principal amount in one currency for
an initial principal amount of another currency, with an agreement to re-exchange the curmencies at a future date at an
agreed upen exchange rate. There may also be periodic exchanges of payments at specified intervals based on the
agreed upon rates and notional amounts. Foreign cumency swaps are used primarily in the consolidated VIEs in our Aflac
Japan porifolic to convert foreign-denominated cash flows to yen, the functional currency of Aflac Japan, in order fo
minimize cash flow fluctuations. We also use foreign currency swaps to economically convert certain of our dollar-
denominated senior note and subordinated debenture principal and interest obligations into yen-denominated obligations.

Foreign currency forwards and options with short-term maturities are executed for the Aflac Japan segment in order fo
hedge the curmency risk on the fair value of certain fixed-maturity dollar-denominated securities. In forward transactions,
Aflac Japan agrees with another party to buy a fixed amount of yen and gl a correzponding amount of U.S. dollars at a
specified future date. Aflac Japan also executes foreign currency option fransactions in a collar strategy, where Aflac
Japan agrees with another party to simultanecusly purchase a fixed amount of U5, dollar put options and sell U.S. dollar
call options. The combination of these two actions results in no net premium being paid (i.e. a costless or zero-cost collar).
The foreign currency forwards and oplions are used in fair value hedging relationships to mitigate the foreign exchange
risk associated with dollar-denominated investments supporting yen-denominated liabilities.

Foreign currency forwards and options are also used to hedge the currency rizsk associated with the net investment in
Aflac Japan. In these forward transactions, Aflac agrees with ancther party to buy a fixed amount of U.5. dollars and ==l a
comesponding amount of yen at a specified future date. In the option transactions, we use a combination of foreign
currency opticns to protect expected future cagh fiows by simultaneously purchasing yen put opions (opfions that protect
against a weakening yen) and selling yen call options (oplions that limit participation in a strengthening yen). The
combination of these two actions results in no net premium being paid (i.e. a costless or zero-cost collar). Aflac also
enters into foreign currency options that give it the right, but not the oiligation, to sell yen and buy U_S. dollars at specified
future dates at contracted prices.

Owr COSs are used to assume credit rigk related to an individual security or an index. The only CDS derivatives that
we have entered into relate to components of ceriain of our investments in VIEz. These CDS confracts entitle the
consolidated VIE to receive periodic fees in exchange for an obligaticn to compensate the dervative counterparties
should the reference security issuers expenence a credit event, as defined in the contract.

Interest rate swaps involve the periodic exchange of cash flows with other parties, at specified intervals, calculated
using agreed upon rates or other financial variables and notional principal amounts. Typically, at the time a swap is
entered into, the cash flow sireams exchanged by the counterpariies are equal in value. Mo cash or principal payments.
are exchanged at the inception of the contract. Interest rate swaps are primarily uzed to convert interest receipts on
floating-rate fixed-maturity securities contracts to fixed rates. These derivatives are predominantly used fo better match
cash receipts from assets with cash disbursements required to fund liabilites.

Interest rate swaplions are options on interest rate swaps. Interest rate collars are combinations of two swaption
positions and are executed in order to hedge certain dollar-denominated available-for-zale securities that are held in the
Aflac Japan segment. We use collars to protect against significant changes in the fair value associated with interest rate
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changes of our dollar-denominated available-for-sale securities. In order fo maximize the efficiency of the collars while
minimizing cost, we set the sirike price on each collar so that the premium paid for the ‘payer leq’ is offset by the premium
received for having =old the “receiver leg'.

Periodically, depending on general economic conditions, we may enter into other derivative transactions.
Credit Risk Assumed through Derivatives

For the interest rate, foreign currency, and credit default swaps associated with our VIE investments for which we are
the primary beneficiary, we bear the risk of foreign exchange or interest rate loss due to counterparty default even though
we are not a direct counterparty o those confracts. We are a direct counterparty to the interest rate and foreign curmency
swaps that we have entered into in connection with certain of our =enior notes, subordinated debentures, and Samurai
niotes; foreign currency forwards, foreign currency optiong; and interest rate swaptions, and therefore we are exposed to
credit rigk in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties in those contracts. The rizk of counterparty default for our
VIE swaps, foreign currency swaps, certain foreign currency forwards, foreign currency opions and interest rate
swaptions iz mitigated by collateral posting requirements the counterparties to those fransactions must meet. As of
December 31, 2014, there were 16 counterparties fo our denvative agreements, with five comprising 80% of the
aggregate notional amount. The counterparties to these derivatives are financial institutions with the following credit
ratings as of December 31:

2014 2013
Motional Asset Liability Motional Aaset Liability

- Amount Derivatives  Derivatives Amount Derivatives  Derivatives

(In milligns) of Derivatives _ Fair Value Fair Value _ of Derivatives  Fair Value Fair Value
Counterparties’ credit

rating:

AR $ 1,098 $ 39 § {36) 5 161 3 1 b {7

A 22 564 763 (2,387) 22314 487 (830)

Total $ 23,662 $ 802 5 (2,423) 5 22475 5 488 5 (B37)

¥We engage in derivative fransacfions directly with unaffiliated third parties under Intemational Swaps and Derivative
Asgsociation, Inc. (ISDA) agreementz and other documentation. Most of the 1SDA agreements alzso include Credit Support
Annex (C5A) provisions, which generally provide for two-way collateral postings, in certain cases at the first dollar of exposure
and in other cases once vanous rating and exposure threshold levels are triggered. We mitigate the risk that counterparties
to trangactions might be unable to fulfill their contractual obligations by monitoring counterparty credit exposure and collateral
value while generally requiring that collateral be posted at the outset of the transaction or that additional collateral be posted
upon the occurrence of certain eventz or circumatances. In addition, a significant porticn of the derivative transacfions have
provisions that require collateral to be posted upon a downgrade of our long-term debt ratings or give the counterparty the
right to terminate the transaction upon a downgrade of Aflac’s financial strength rating. The actual amount of collateral required
to be posted to counterparties in the event of such downgrades, or the aggregate amount of payments that we could be
required fo make, depends on market conditions, the fair value of outstanding affected fransactions, and other factors
prevailing at and after the time of the downgrade.

Collateral posted by us to third parties for derivative transactions was $1.6 billion at December 31, 2014, which
consisted entirely of pledged securities, compared with 38 million at December 31, 2013, which congsisted of 7 million of
pledged securities and $1 million of cash. This collateral can generally be repledged or resold by the counterparties. The
aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent features that were in a net liakility
position by counterparty was $2.1 billion and 318 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. If the credit-
risk-refated contingent features underlying these agreements had been triggered on December 31, 2014, we estimate that
we would be required to post a maximum of $482 million of additional collateral to these derivative counterparties.
Collateral cbtained by us from third parties for derivative transactions was $619 million and 5295 million at December 31,
2014 and 2013, rezpectively. We generally can repledge or resell collateral obtained by us, although we do not typically
exercise such rights.

Certain of our consolidated VIEs have credit default swap contracts that require them o assume credit risk from an
asset pool. Those consolidated VIEs will receive periodic payments based on an agreed upon rate and notional amount
and will only make a payment by delivery of associated collateral, which consists of highly rated aszet-backed securities, if
there iz a credit event. A credit event payment will typically be equal to the notional value of the swap confract less the
value of the referenced obligations. A credit event iz generally defined az a default on confractually obligated interest or
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principal payments or bankruptcy of the referenced entity. The diversified portfolios of corporate issuers are established
within sector concentration limits.

The following tables present the maximum potential sk, fair value, weighted-average years to maturity, and
underlying referenced credit obligation type for credit default swaps within consolidated VIE structures as of December 31.

014
Less than oine b Thres o Flvz 1o
ane year fhnes years {hie years f=n y=ars Tatal
Magimam Maximum Magimam Maximum Maximum
[0 maiental Esimated potzntial Estimaied polenial Estimated pobzniial Esimated pokential Estimatzd
[ illlicnes ] Rating risk Talr walue risk falr valne sk Tair value risk Tair value: risk fair waiue
Index sxposura:
Corporate bomds:
A i 4 L] o ¥ L {833 o ¥ 4 Ea) 4 a
Total § L] [] L a 3 {831 L a 9 ] B3l L]
a0z
Less tham One to Three to Flve 1o
one year fhree years iive years f=n y=ars Tatal
Mapimsm Maximum Maximsm Maximum Maximum
(Conexk poiental Esfmaksd pot=ntial Estimated EsfSmaked podertial Estimaisd
[ milllicnes] Rating risk Talr walue risk falr valne sk Tair value risk Tair value: risk fair waiue
Index sxposure:
Corporale bomds:
A - L1 1 o ¥ (112) % 1 5 o ¥ o % L1 1 o ¥ (112 % 1
EEE a =] '] a 4] a (=25} 4] (35} 4}
Tatal i 0 F o0 3 112) § 1 3§ o ¥ o % (=5 § 4] § 2070 3 (=3

Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments

Freestanding derivatives are carried in our consolidated balance sheets either as assets within other assets or as
liabilities within other liakilities at estimated fair value. See Note S for a discussion on how we determine the fair value of
our derivatives. Accruals on derivatives are recorded in accrued investiment income or within other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

If a derivative iz not designated as an accounting hedge or its use in managing risk does not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the estimated fair value of the derivative are generally reported within derivative and other gains
(losses), which iz a component of realized investment gains (losses). The fluctuations in estimated fair value of derivatives
that have not been designated for hedge accounting can result in volatility in net eamings.

Hedge Documentafion and Effectiveness Testing

To gualify for hedge accounting treatment, a derivative must be highly effective in mitigating the designated risk of the
hedged item. At the inception of the hedging relationship, we formally document all relationships between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well ag our fsk-management objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge
tranzaction. We document the designation of each hedge as either (i) a hedge of the variability of cash flows to be
received or paid related to a recognized azset or liability or the hedge of a forecasted trangaction ("cash flow hedge™); (1)
a hedge of the estimated fair value of a recognized asset or liability ("fair value hedge™); or (iii) a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation. The documentation process includes linking derivatives and nonderivatives that are
designated as hedges to specific assets or groups of assets or liabilities on the statement of financial position or fo
spechic forecasted trangactions and defining the effectivensess and ineffectivenssas testing methods to be used. At the
hedge's inception and on an ongoing quarterly basis, we also formally azssess whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions have been, and are expected to confinue fo be, highly effective in offsetting their designated risk.
Hedge effectiveness is azseszed uging qualitative and quantitative methods.

For aszessing hedge effectiveness of cash flow hedges, qualitative methods may include the comparison of crtical
terms of the derivative to the hedged item, and quantitative methods include regression or other statistical analysis of
changes in cash flows associated with the hedge relationghip. Hedge ineffectiveness of the hedge relationships is
measured each reporting pericd uging the "Hypothetical Derivative Method.” For derivative instruments that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the derivative is reported as a
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component of other comprehensive income (lo2s) and reclassified into earnings in the same period or periods during
which the hedged transaction affects eamings. Gains and losses on the derivative representing hedge ineffectiveness are
recognized im current eamings within derivative and other gaing (losses). All components of each derivative's gain or loss
are included in the assesament of hedge effectiveness.

For assessing hedge effectiveness of fair value hedges, qualitative methods may include the comparizon of critical
terms of the dervative to the hedged item, and quantitative methods include regreasion or other statistical analysis of
changes in cazh flows associated with the hedge relationzhip. Hedge ineffectiveness of the hedge relationships is
measured each reporting pericd using the dollar offset method. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify
as fair value hedges, changes in the estimated fair value of the derivative, including amounts measured as
ineffectiveness, and changes in the estimated fair value of the hedged item related to the designated risk being hedged,
are reported in current eamings within derivative and other gains (losses).

For the hedge of our net investment in Aflac Japan, we have designated Parent Company yen-denominated liabilities
as non-derivative hedging instruments and have designated certain foreign currency forwards and options as derivative
hedging instruments. We make our net investment hedge designation at the beginning of each quarter. For assessing
hedge effectiveness of net investment hedges, if the total of the designated Parent Company non-derivative and
derivatives notional iz equal to or less than our net investment in Aflac Japan, the hedge is deemed to be effective. If the
hedge is effective, the related exchange effect on the yen-denominated liakilities iz reported in the unrealized foreign
currency component of other comprehensive income. For derivatives designated as net invesiment hedges, Aflac follows
the forward-rate method. According to that methed, all changes in fair value, including changes related to the forward-rate
component of foreign currency forward contracts and the fime value of foreign curmency opfions, are reported in the
unrealized foreign currency component of other comprehensive income. Should these designated net investment hedge
positions excead our net investment in Aflac Japan, the foreign exchange effect on the porfion that exceeds our
investment in Aflac Japan would be recognized in current eamings within derivative and other gains (losses).

Discontinuance of Hedge Accounting

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) it is determined that the derivative iz no longer highly
effective in offsetting changes in the estimated cash flows or fair value of a hedged iter; (2} the derivative is de-
designated as a hedging instrument; or (3) the derivative expires or iz sold, terminated or exercised.

When hedge accounting is dizcontinued on a cash flow hedge or fair value hedge, the derivative iz camied in the
consolidated balance sheets at its estimated fair value, with changes in estimated fair value recognized in curment period
eamings. For discontinued cash flow hedges, including those where the derivative is sold, terminated or exercised,
amounts previously deferred in other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified into earmmings when eamings are
impacted by the cash flow of the hedged item.

Derivative Balance Sheet Classification

The tables below summarize the balance sheet classification of our derivative fair value amounts, as well as the gross
asset and liability fair value amounts, at December 31. The fair value amounis presented do not include income accruals.
The notional amount of derivative contractz represents the basis upon which pay or receive amounts are calculated. Motional
amounts are not reflective of credit risk.
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2014
L Asszet Liability
{In rnillions) Met Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
Motional
Hedge Designation! Derivative Type Amount Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Cash flow hedges:

Foreign cummency swaps $ 75 5 (15 $ 0 $ (15
Total cash flow hedges 75 (15} 1] {15}
Fair value hedges:

Foreign cumrency forwards 12,388 (1,791) 1] {1,791}

Foreign currency options 697 (32) 0 {32)

Interest rate swaptions 2,502 (159) 1] {159}
Total fair value hedges 15,687 {1,982) 0 {1,982}
Met investment hedge:

Foreign curmrency forwards 1,307 54 b6 (2)
Total net investment hedge 1,307 54 56 (2)
Mon-qualifying strategies:

Foreign cumrency swaps 5,765 443 746 (303)

Credit default swaps 83 0 0 0

Foreign currency forwards T84 (119) 0 (119)

Foreign currency options 53 (1) 0 (1)

Interest rate swaptions 8 (1) ] (1)
Total non-gualifying strategies 6,693 322 T46 (424)
Total derivatives $23,662 %(1,621) £802 $(2,423)

‘Balance Sheet Location
Other assets $ 6,531 $ 802 $802 5 [i]
Other liabilities 1713 (2,423) 0 {2,423)

Total derivatives

$23,662 $(1,621) $802 $(2,423)
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2013
L Azset Liability
{In millions) Met Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
Motional
Hedge Designation! Derivative Type Amount Fair Value Fair Valueg Fair Value
Cash flow hedges:
Foreign cumrency swaps 5 75 F 3 F 3 5 0D
Interest rate swaps 52 0 0 1]
Total cash flow hedges 127 3 3 ]
Fair value hedges:
Foreign cumrency forwards 11,2459 [582) 0 {582)
Interest rate swaptions 4 500 (12) 20 (32)
Total fair value hedges 15,749 (504 20 (614}
Met investment hedge:
Foreign currency forwards 356 17 17 o
Foreign currency options a5 3 4 (1)
Total net investment hedge 451 b1} | {1}
Mon-gualifying strategies:
Foreign cumrency swaps 55829 24 442 (218)
Credit default swaps 207 (3 1 {4)
Interest rate swaps 112 1 1 o
Total non-qualifying strategies 6,148 i) 444 {222)
Total derivatives 522475 $(345) 488 5(837)
Balance Sheet Location
Other assets $ 5,308 $ 488 5488 § D
Other liabilities 17,167 (837) 0 (837)
Total derivatives 522475 F(345) $488 5(837)
Cash Flow Hedges

Certain of our congolidated VIEs have foreign currency swaps that qualify for hedge accounting treatment. For thoze
that have qualified, we have designated the derivative as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a forecasted transaction
or of amounts o be received or paid related to a recognized asset ("cash flow” hedge). We expect to continue this hedging
activity for a weighted-average period of approximately 11 years. The remaining derivatives in our cansolidated VIEs that
have not qualified for hedge accounting have been designated as held for other investment purposes ("non-gualifying
sirategies”).

We had an interest rate swap agreement related to 5.5 billion yen vanable interest rate Samural notes that we izsued in
July 2011 and redeemed in July 2014 {see Note 9). By entering into this confract, we swapped the variable interest rate to
a fixed interest rate of 1.475%. We had designated this interest rate swap as a hedge of the vanability in cur interest cash
flows associated with the variable interest rate Samurai notes.

Fair Value Hedges

We designate and account for certain foreign currency forwards and options as fair value hedges when they mest the:
requirements for hedge accounting. These foreign currency forwards and options hedge the foreign cumency exposure of
certain dollar-denominated fixed maturity securities within the investment portfolio of cur Aflac Japan segment. We recognize
gains and losses on these derivatives and the related hedged items in cument eamings within derivative and other gains
(losses). The change in the fair value of the foreign currency forwards related to the changes in the difference between the
spot rate and the forward price ig excluded from the aszessment of hedge effectiveness. The change in fair value of the
foreign currency option related to the time value of the oplion is excluded from the assessment of hedge effectivensss.

We dezignate and account for interest rate swaptions as fair value hedges when they meet the requirements for hedge:
accounting. These interest rate swapiions hedge the interest rate exposure of cerfain dollar-denominated fixed maturity
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securities within the investment porifolio of our Aflac Japan segment. We recognize gains and losses on these derivatives
and the related hedged items in curment earnings within derivative and other gains {losses). The change in the fair value of
the interest rate swaptions related to the time value of the oplion is excluded from the azsessment of hedge effectiveness.

The following table presents the gains and losses on derivatives and the related hedged items in fair value hedges for
the years ended December 31.

Fair Value Hedging Relationships

Hedged

{In millions) Hedging Derivatives ltems

Gains

(Losses) Gaing

Excluded (Losses) Ineffectiveness

Total from Included in Recognized for
Hedging Gains Effectivencss Effectiveness Gains Fair Value
Derivatives Hedged ltems (Losses) Testing Testing {Losses) Hedge

2014:
Foreign cumrency  Fixed-maturity
forwards securities $ (1,835) $ (33 3 (1,797) § 1819 § 22
Foreign cume: Fixed-maturity
oplions ney securities (41) (4) (37) 38 1
Interest rate Fixed-maturity
swaphons securities (318) {36) {282) 316 34
2013:
Foreign curme: Fixed-maturity
forwards e securities F (1,735 3 (25) 3 {1,710y § 1,700 3 (10}
Interest rate Fixed-maturity
swaptions securities 17 7 0 0 0
2012
Foreign cumrency  Fixed-maturity
forwards securities 3 (535) % B8 35 (527) § 528 % 1

Het Investment Hedge

Owr primary exposure to be hedged is our net investment in Aflac Japan, which iz affected by changes in the yen/
dollar exchange rate. To mitigate this exposure, we have designated a majority of the Parent Company's yen-denominated
liabilites (Samurai and Uridashi notes and yen-denominated loans - see Mote 9) as nondernvative hedges and designated
foreign currency forwards and opfions as derivative hedges of the foreign currency exposure of our net investment in Aflac
Japan.

WWe used foreign exchange forwards and opfions to economically hedge foreign exchange risk on 52.5 billion yen and
50.0 billion yen of repatriation received from Aflac Japan in July 2014 and December 2014, respectively. As of
December 31, 2014, we had entered into foreign exchange forwards az part of an economic hedge on 1575 billion yen of
future profit repatriation.

Our net investment hedge was effective for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Hon-qualifying Strategies

For our derivative instruments in consolidated VIEs that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, all changes in
their fair value are reported in curent period eamings within derivative and other gains (losses). The amount of gain or loss
recognized in eamings for our VIES is atfributable fo the derivatives in those investment structures. While the change in value
of the swaps is recorded through current period earnings, the change in value of the available-for-sale fixed income or
perpefual securities associated with these swaps is recorded through other comprehenzive income.

We have cross-currency interest rate swap agreements related fo our 5750 million senior notes due Novemnber 2024,
F700 million zenior notes due June 2023, 3400 million genior notes due February 2017, 3350 million senior notes due February
2022, and 500 million subordinated debentures due September 2052. Changes in the values of these swaps are recorded
through current period earnings. For additional information regarding these swaps, ses Nofe 9.

118

262/331



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)
oOoOooodn

Impact of Derivatives and Hedging Instruments

The following table summarizes the impact to realized investment gains (lozzes) and other comprehengive income
(loss) from all derivatives and hedging instruments for the years ended December 31.

2014 2013 2012
Realized Other Reallzed Oiher Reallzed Other
{in mikon) Gling [Lo8sBe) incoms (LosRYY CANS [Losees) nCOE (LO)®  CAne[Losses)  income Losel
Gualllylng hedges:
Cash flow hedges:

Forelgn cumency swaps ¥ $ 07 3 2 § (10} 3 § (22)
Total cash flow hedges [2) {17} 2] (10} 12 22)
Fair value hedges:

Forelgn cumency forwards = (18} o [35) ] ] o

Forelgn cummency options 2 % ] ] ] i

Interess rate swaptions @ 2 1] 17 ] o i}
Total Talr value hedges 21) [ [18) i 7 [i
Mat Inveatment hedge:

Man-derivative hedging

Instruments o 39 a 155 u] a6

FOreign cumency swaps ] ] o {104} o i

Foreign cumency forwards ] 83 [ 24 ] il

Forelgn curmency aptions ] 13) o 4 1] ]
Total net Inveatment hedge o 125 a T i} 96
Non-gualifying strategles:

FOrelgn CUMency SWaps 151 ] ] 111 il

Foreign cumency forwards [11) [ ] ] o i

Forelgn cumency options ] o 1 o o o

Credit defaull swaps 3 o k| a 64 i}

Interacd rate swaps 1) ] 3 ] [14) il

Intenaed rate swaptons 1 ] [29) ] o o

Futures (53) [ 15) ] 1] il
Total non- qualifying sirategles 54 1] M6 1} 161 1]

Total L E ] $ 108 5 326 5 69 5 151 5 T4

Fcasn flow hedge fems are recorded 35 unrealized gains (lasse5) on dervatives and net Investman! hedge Rems are recorded in the wnraalized
forelgn currency iransiation gains (Msses) e in the consaiidated sfatement of comprehenshe Ncome (lass).
= jmpact shown net of eec of hedged #ems (see Falr Value Hedges seclion of s Nofe 4 for further defan)

There was no gain or loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into eamings related to
our designated cazgh flow hedges and net investiment hedge for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. As
of December 31, 2014, deferred gains and kosses on derivative instruments recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income that are expected o be reclassified to eamings during the next twelve months are immaterial.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments and Derivatives

Certain of the Company's derivative instruments are subject to enforceable master nefting armangements that provide
for the net settlement of all dervative contractz between the Company and a counterparty in the event of default or upon
the cccurrence of certain termination evenis. Collateral support agreements with certain of the master netting
amrangements provide that the Company will receive or pledge financial collateral in the event either minimum thresholds,
or in certain cases ratings levels, have besn reached.

We have securitieg lending agreements with unaffiliated financial institutions that post collateral to us in retum for the
use of our fixed maturity securities (ses Note 3). When we have entered into securities lending agreements with the same
counterparty, the agreements generally provide for net settlement in the event of default by the counterparty. This right of
set-off would allow us to keep and apply collateral received if the counterparty failed to retumn the securities bomowed from
us as contractually agreed. For additional information on the Company's accounting policy for securities lending, see
Mote 1.
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The tables below summarize our derivatives and securities lending transactions as of December 31, and as reflected
in the tables, in accordance with GAAP, our policy is fo not offset these financial instruments in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Derivative Assets

2014
Gross Amounts Mot Offset
in Balance Sheet
Gross Gross Met Amount of Can‘yl}
Amount of Assets Value
Recognized Offset in Presented in Financial Collateral Net
(In millicns) Assets Balance Sheet Balance Sheet  Instruments Received Amount
Derivative assets:
Foreign cumrency swaps $ T4 5 0 $ Ti6 $ 1] $ (568) $ 178
Foreign curmency forwards. L3 ] hE 0 (51) 5
Total derivative assets,
subject to a master
ng arrangement
or offsetting
arrangement 802 0 802 (] (613 183
Securities lending and
similar arrangements 2149 1] 2149 1] {2,149) o
Taotal $ 235 % 0 § 2951 § 1] % (2,768) § 183
|
™ consists of §T53 of pledged secwrities and §4006 of cash.
2013
Gross Amounts Not Offset
in Balance Sheet
Gross Gross Het Amount of
Amount of Amount Assets Value of
Recognized Offset in Presented in Financial Collateral Met
(In millicns) Assets ce Sheet Balance Sheet  Instruments Received Amount
Derivative assets:
Foreign curmency swaps ¥ 445 5 D 3 445 5 o F(2vE) 5 189
Foreign curmency forwards 17 o 17 o (16} 1
Foreign currency options 4 o 4 o (3 1
Credit default swaps 1 1] 1 o [u] 1
Interest rate swaps 1 o 1 o i} 1
Interest rate swaptions 20 o 20 o i} 20
Total derivative assets,
subject to a master
netting arrangement
amangement 488 0 4588 ] (205 ™ 183
Securities lending and
similar arrangements 5,658 1] 5,658 4] (5.656) 0
Taotal § 6,144 3 0 5 6,144 3 0 ¥ (5.851) 5 183
W Consists entirely of cash.
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Offsetting of Financial Liabilities and Derivative Liabilities

2014
Gross Amounts Not Offset
in Balance Sheet
Gross Gross Met Amount of Carrying
Amount of Amount Liabilities Value of
ized Offset in Presented in Fimancial Collateral Net
(In millizns) Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet  Instruments Pledged Amount
Derivative liabilities:
Foreign cumency swaps $ (318) $§ 0 $ (318) 5 0 $ 1] §(318)
Foreign currency forwards {1,912) 1] {1,912) 1] 1,439 {473)
Foreign currency options (23) 1] {33) L] 24 (1]
Interest rate swapfions {160} 1] {160} 1] 158 2)
Total derivative liabilities,
subject to a master
netti
ne ng a[rr:wnﬂ
arrangement (2.423) 0 (2,423) 0 1,621 " (802)
Securities lending and
similar arrangements (2,193) ] (2,193) 2,149 1] (44)
Total $(4,616) 5 0 $(4,616) 52149 $ 1624 5 (845)
W Consists entirely of piedged secuniies.
2013
Gross Amounts Mot Offset
in Balance Sheet
Gross G MNet A nt of Carryi
Amount of H.IIE:* Llall:lll:iuubes 'd‘ahel:g
. Renn*} ized Offset in Presented in Financial Collateral MNet
(In millicns) Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Instruments Pledged Amount
Derivative liabilities:
Foreign currency swaps 3 (21B) 5 0 ¥ (218) 3 D 3 1 5 (217)
Foreign currency forwards (582) W] (582} 1] i} (582)
Foreign curmency options (1) i) {1} 1] o] (1)
Credit default swaps () o () o o [4)
Interest rate swapbions. 32) i) [32) 1] ¥ (25)
Total derivative liabilities,
subject to a master
netting arrangement
or offsetting
arrangement (83T) o (83T} 0 g (226)
Securities lending and
similar arrangements (5,820) (] (5.820) 5 656 ] {164)
Total 5 (8,857) 5 0D $(8.657) $ 5,656 5 &8 5 (993)

T consists of §7 of pledged secunities and $1 of cash,

For additional information on our financial instruments, see the accompanying Motes 1, 3 and 5.

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair Value Hierarchy

GAAP specifies a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are
observable or unochservable. These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels. Level 1 valuations reflect
quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. Level 2 valuations reflect quoted market prices for
similar assets or liabilities in an active market, guoted market prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active
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marketz or model-derived valuations in which all significant valuation inputs are observable in active marketz. Level 3
valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant inputs are not chservable in an active market.

The following tables present the fair value hierarchy levels of the Company's assets and liakilities that are measured
and carmied at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31.

2014

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Significant

for Identical Observable  Unobservable Total
Assets Inputs Inputs Fair
{In millicns) [Level 1) (Lewvel 2) [Level 3) Value
Aszets:
Securities available for sale, carried at
fair value:
Fixed maturities:
Government and agencies $ 18,683 % G515 3 0 §19,198
Municipalities [i] 1,257 0 1,257
Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 0 79 223 602
Public utilities 0 7,897 0 7,897
Sovereign and supranational 0 1,416 0 1,416
Banks/financial institutions 0 6,572 26 6,508
Other corporate 0 28,605 1] 28,605
Total fixed maturities 18,683 46,641 249 65,573
Perpetual securities:
Banksffinancial instifutions 0 2,289 149 2,438
(Other corporate 0 231 0 23
Total perpetual securities 0 2,520 149 2,669
Equity securities 19 B 3 28
" Other assets:
Foreign cumrency swaps 0 640 106 746
Foreign currency forwards i L li] 56
Total other assetz 0 696 106 802
Other inveatmentz 171 [i] 0 17
Cash and cash equivalents 4,658 0 0 4,658
Total azsstz $ 23,5 $49,863 $ 507 §73,901
Liahﬁes:
Foreign cumency swaps % (] L1 (1] $ 38 § 38
Foreign currency forwards 0 1,912 1] 1,912
Foreign currency options 0 13 0 33
Interest rate swaptions 0 160 1] 160
Total liabilities 3 0 $ 2,105 $ 38 $ 2423
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2013
Cuoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Significant
for ldentical Observable Unobservable Total
Aszzots Inputs Imputs Fair
{In mmillicns) (Lewel 1) (Level 2) {Lewel 3) Walue
Asszets:
Securities available for sale, carried at
fair value:
Fixed maturities:
Govermment and agencies $14,925 5 o4 3 0 $15432
Municipalities 0 1,051 o 1.051
Martgage- and asset-backed securities 0 402 369 T
Public utilities 0 7,562 o T.062
Sovereign and supranational 0 1,523 1] 1,523
Banksffinancial instifuticns 0 6,486 23 6,509
Ciher corporate i] 25272 o 25222
Total fixed maturites 14,928 42 750 392 58,070
Perpetual securities:
Banksffinancial instifuticns 0 2 686 a2 2,738
Ciher corporate 0 209 o 209
Total perpetual securifies 0 2,895 a2 2,947
Equity securities 14 4 3 21
Other assets:
Foreign currency swaps 0 1 104 445
Foreign currency forwards 0 17 1] 17
Foreign currency options 0 4 1] 4
Credit default swaps 0 0 1 1
Interest rate swaps 0 0 1 1
Intereat rate swaptions 0 20 1} 20
Total other assets 4] 382 106 488
Other investments 463 0 o 463
Cash and cash equivalents 2,543 0 o 2543
Total assets 517,948 546,031 § 553 564,532
Liabilities:
Foreign cumrency swaps 3 0 3 15 3 203 F 218
Foreign currency forwards 0 582 o 282
Foreign cumrency options i) 1 (1] 1
Credit default swaps 0 0 4 4
Intereat rate swaptions 0 32 o 32
Total liabilities 3 0 § 63D 3 207 5 B3T
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The following tables present the carmying amount and fair value categorized by fair value hierarchy level for the
Company's financial instruments that are not carried at fair value as of December 31.

2014
Quoted Prices in
Active Markeis Significant Significant
for Identical Observable Unobzervable Total
Carmrying Asseis Inputs Inputs Fair
{In millicns) Value {Lewvel 1) (Level 2) {Lewvel 3) Value
Assets:
Securities held to maturity
carmied at amortized cost:
Fixed maturities:
Government and agencies $ 20,023 § 23,M8 $ 0 5 0 $ 23,218
Municipalities 346 0 47 0 a7
Martgage and asset-backed
secunties 43 0 15 | 46
Public utilities 3342 0 3,603 0 3,603
Sovereign and
supranational 2,556 0 2,814 0 2,814
Banksffinancial instifuticns 4932 0 5,085 0 5,085
Ciher corporate 3,000 0 3314 0 3314
Total azsets $ 34,242 $ 23,218 $ 15,248 $ | $ 38,497
Liabilities:
Oiher policyholders’ funds $ 603 $ 0 $ 0 $ 5905 $ 5905
Motes payable
{excluding capital leases) 5268 0 0 5,835 5,835
Total liabilities $ 11,299 5 0 5 0 $ 11,740 $ 11,740
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2013
Cuoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant Significant
for Identical Ob=ervable Unobservable Total
Carryi Aszeis Inputs Inputs Fair
{In millicns) ".-'gu& {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3) Walue
Assets:
Securities held to maturity,
carried at amortized cost:
Fixed maturities:
Government and agencies $ 27,362 528,708 5 0 3 0 528 708
Municipalities 399 0 440 0 440
Martgage and asset-backed
securities 58 0 20 41 61
Public utilities 3,900 0 3928 0 3528
Sovereign and
supranational 2041 0 3,040 0 3,040
Banksffinancial institutions 6,310 0 6,128 0 6,128
Oither corporate 3445 0 3541 0 3541
Total aszsets 544415 $28,708 $17,007 5 4 545,848
E—
Liabilities:
Other policyholders’ funds ¥ 58561 L 0 5 0 $ 5715 5 5715
Motes payable
{excluding capital leases) 4 891 0 0 5,241 5241
Total liabilies $ 10,752 3 0 5 0 $10,956 510,956

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

U.5. GAAP requires disclosure of the fair value of certain financial instruments incduding those that are not camied at
fair value. The cammying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, other investments, receivables, accrued investment
income, accounts payable, cash collateral and payables for security transactions approximated their fair values due to the
short-termn nature of these instruments. Liabilities for future policy benefits and unpaid policy claims are not financial
instruments as defined by GAAP.

Fixed matwifies, perpetusl securifies, and equity securities

We determine the fair values of our fixed maturity securities, perpetual securities, and privately issued equity
securifies using the following approaches or technigues: price quntes and valuationz fmrn third party pricing vendors
{(including quoted market prices readily available from public exchange markets) and non-binding price guotes we obtain
from outside brokers.

A third party pricing vendor has developed valuation medels to determine fair values of privately issued securities fo
reflect the impact of the persiztent economic environment and the changing regulatory framework. These models are
dizcounted cash flow {DCF) valuation models, but also use information from related markets, specifically the CDS market
to estimate expected cash flows. These models take info consideration any unique characteristics of the securities and
make various adjustments fo amrive at an appropriate issuer-specific loss adjusted credit curve. This credit curve is then
used with the relevant recovery rates to estimate expected cash flows and modeling of additicnal features, including
iliquidity adjustments, if necessary, to price the secunty by dizcounting those loss adjusted cash flows. In cazes where a
credit curve cannot be developed from the specific security features, the valuation methodology takes into consideration
ather market obaervable inputs, including: 1) the most appropriate comparable security(ies) of the issuer; 2) issuer-
specific CDS spreads; 3) bonds or COS spreads of comparable issuers with similar characteristics such as rating,
geography, or sector; or 4) bond indices that are comparative in rating, industry, maturity and region.

The pricing data and market quotes we obtain from cutside sources, including third party pricing services, are
reviewed intemally for reazonableness. If a fair value appears unreazonable, we will re-examing the inputs and assess the
reasonablensss of the pricing data with the vendor. Additicnally, we may compare the inputs fo relevant market indices
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and other performance measurements. The output of this analysis is presented to the Company’s Valuation and
Classifications Subcommittee, or VC5. Based on the analysis provided fo the VC5, the valuation is confirmed or may be
revised if there is evidence of a more appropriate estimate of fair value based on available market data. We have
performed verification of the imputs and calculations in any valuation models to confirm that the valuations represent
reazonable estimates of fair value.

The fixed maturities classified as Level 3 consist of securties for which there are limited or no obeervable valuation
inputs. For Level 3 securities that are investment grade, we estimate the fair value of these securties by obtaining non-
kinding broker quotes from a limited numier of brokers. These brokers base their quotes on a comiination of their
knowledge of the current pricing environment and market conditionz. We consider theze inputs to be unobservable. For
Level 3 investments that are below-investment-grade securities, we consider a variety of significant valuation inputs in the
valuation process, including forward exchange rates, yen swap rates, dollar swap rates, interest rate volatilities, credit
spread data on specific iesuers, assumed default and default recovery rates, and certain probability assumptions. In
aobtaining these valuation inputs, we have determined that certain pricing assumptions and data used by our pricing
sources are difficult fo validate or corroborate by the market andfor appear to be internally developed rather than
observed in or comoborated by the market. The use of these unobservable valuation inputs causes more subjectivity in
the valuation process for these securities.

Historically, we have not adjusted the quotes or prices we obiain from the pricing services and brokers we use.

The following tables present the pricing sources for the fair values of our fixed maturities, perpetual securties, and
equity securnties as of December 31.
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2014
Guoted Prices In
Active Markets Slgnificant Signmcant
for Identical Dbaanvable Unohaarvable Total
Azaats Inputa Inputs Falr
{In millizns} [Lavel 1) [Laval 2) [Level ) Valug
Sacurifies avallable for sale, carriad at fair walue:
Fived maturities:
Govemment and agencles:
Third party pricing wendor % 18,283 $ 515 % [} % 15138
Tatal government and agencies 18,683 515 o 15,138
Munizipalties:
Third party pricing vendor [] 1,257 [} 1,257
Tatal municipalities Li] 1.257 o 1.257
Morigage- and asset-backed secunbias:
Third party pricing wendor L] 373 [} 373
Brokeriother Li] L] 223 2x3
Tatal mortgage- and assat-backed sacurtties Li] k] 223 &2
Public utiisies:
Third party pricing wendor [] 7,897 [} 7,897
Tatal public utities L] 7,897 1] 7,837
Sowereign and supranationak
Third party pricing vendor [] 1,416 [} 1416
Tatal soweraign and supranational L] 1.416 1] 1416
BanksMnancial insfiutions:
Third party pricing vendor ] £.514 [} £514
Broken'ofher L] 58 26 B4
Tatal banksfnancial Insttutions L] E.5T2 26 €558
Oiher cormporate:
Third party pricing vendor ] 28,505 [} 28,505
Tatal ather carporate L] 28,605 o 28,605
Total Nxed maturkies 18,683 46,641 243 85,573
Parpetual securitias:
BanksMnancial insitutions:
Third party pricing vendor (] 2,289 [} 2,289
Broken'other L] L] 143 143
Tatal banksMnancial Institutions L] 2,283 143 2438
other corporate:
Third party pricing vendor L] Fxial o Fxa)
Tatal ather corporake L1} s o 2N
Total perpetual securities L] 2,500 143 2,663
Equity securities:
Third party pricing wendor 13 [ [} 25
Broker'other ] a 3 3
Tatal equity securibles 13 [ 3 28
Tofal secunties avalable for sale $ 18,702 % 49,167 £ 401 $ 68270
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2014
Guoted Prices In
Active Markats Slgnificant Signincant
Tor ldentical DObaanvable Uncbearvable Total
Agaats Inputs Inputs Falr
{In milkzns} {Lavel 1) [Lavel 2) {Leval 3} Valus
Sacurities held to maturity, carried at amortized cost:
Fixed maturitiesa:
Govemment and agencles:
Third party pricing vendor $ 1378 [ 0 $ 0 $ 23218
Tatal government and agencies 23,18 L] 1] 23,218
Municipalties:
Third party pricing vendor 0 "7 0 M7
Tatal municipalities o 47 o 417
Morigage- and asset-backed securibies:
Third party pricing vendor 0 15 0 15
Brokerfather ] L] H #
Tatal martgage- and asset-backed securliies o 15 H 46
Public uthites:
Third party pricing vendor 0 3,803 0 3,603
Tatal public utiities ] 3,603 o 3,603
Sowerelgn and supranational:
Third party pricing vendor 0 2814 0 2814
Tatal sowerelgn and supranational o 2,814 o 2814
BanksMnancial insffutions:
Third party pricing vendor 0 5,085 (1] 5,085
Tatal banksfnancial Insttutions o 5,085 o 5,085
oiher comporate:
Third party pricing vendor 0 3,287 0 3,287
Brokeriather ] ar o T
Tatal ather corporate o 3314 o 3314
Tatal securities held to maturity § 238 $ 15248 £ # $ 38497
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2013
Qwoted Prices In
Active Markets Slgnificant Significant
Tor Identical Observable Uncbservable Total
ABEElE Inputs Inputs Falr
{In millens) [Lewel 1} [Level 2 [Level 3) Value
Sacurities avallable Tor saks, carried at fair value:
Fixed maturities:
Govemment and agencies:
Thind party pricing wendor § 14,525 ¥ S04 3 0 F 15432
Tatal government and agencies 14,528 S04 1] 15432
Munizipalties:
Third party pricing wendor ] 1,051 o 1,051
Tatal municipalitias a 1,031 L 1,051
Muorigage- and asset-backed securibies:
ThIrd party pricing wendor ] 402 0 402
Brokenather a a 363 363
Tatal martgage- and asset-backed securities a 402 369 7T
Public utlikkes:
Third party pricing wendor ] 7,562 0 7,562
Tatal public utiities a T.562 1] T.562
Sovereign and supranationak
Thind party pricing wendor ] 1,523 o 1,523
Tatal sewerelgn and supranational a 1,523 0 1,523
BanksMnancial Insdiutions:
Thind party pricing wendor ] £,486 0 6,466
Brokerfather a a 3 3
Tatal banksMnancial Insitutions a 6,485 23 6,509
Oiver corporate:
Third party pricing wendor ] 25,220 o 25,270
Brokeriather a 2 1] 2
Tatal ather corporate a 25,222 LV 25,222
Tatal ixed maturiies 14,528 42,750 32 58,070
Parpetual gecurities:
BanksMnancial Insfiutions:
Third party pricing wendor ] 2,686 52 2,728
Tatal banksfnanclal Insttutions a 2,686 52 2,738
Oitver corporate:
Third party pricing wendor ] 209 0 209
Tatal ather carporate a 209 0 209
Tatal perpatual securlics ] 2.E05 52 2,047
Equity securlties:
Third party pricing wendor 14 4 o 18
Brokeriather a a 3 3
Tatal equity securities 14 4 3 2
Tofal securities avallable far sale § 14,042 § 45649 3 447 F 61,038
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2013
Qwoated Prices in
Actve Markats Significant Significant
far identical Obsensable Uniobsernable Total
Assels Inputs Inputs Falr
{In millans} (Lewel 1} [Lewel 2} [Lavel 3) Value
Sacurities held to maturity, carried at amortized cost:
Fixed maturitiesa:
Govemment and agencles:
Third party pricing wendor 5 28,706 3 o 3 1] 3 28,708
Tatal government and agencies 28,T0E o 1] 28,78
Municipaliies:
Third party pricing vendor o 440 440
Tatal municipalities ] 440 440
Morigage- and asset-backed securibies:
Third party pricing vendor o I 0 20
Brokerfather o a 41 41
Tatal martgage- and asset-backed securliies ] 20 41 &1
Public uthites:
Third party pricing vendor o 3,028 0 3,028
Tatal public utiities o 3,523 1] 3,928
Sowerelgn and supranational:
Third party pricing vendor o 3,040 0 3,040
Tatal sowerelgn and supranational ] 3,040 L] 3,040
BanksMnancial insffutions:
Third party pricing vendor o 6,123 1] 6,128
Tatal banksfnancial Insttutions ] B 123 1] 6,128
oiher comporate:
Third party pricing vendor o 3,500 0 3,500
Brokeriather ] 32 L] 32
Tatal ather corporate o 3,541 L] 3,541
Tatal securities held to maturity § 23,708 3 17,087 3 41 F 45848
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The following is a dizcussion of the determination of fair value of our remaining financial instruments.
Derivatives

We use derivative instruments to manage the risk associated with certain assefs. However, the derivative instrument
may not be classified in the same fair value hierarchy level as the associated asset. Inputs used fo value derivatives
include, but are not limited to, interest rates, credit spreads, foreign currency forward and spot rates, and interest volatility.

The fair values of the foreign currency forwards, options, and interest rate swaptions associated with ceriain fixed-
miaturity securities; the fareign currency forwards and oplicns used to hedge certain portions of forecasted yen cash flows;
the foreign currency swaps associated with cerfain senior notes and ocur subordinated debentures; and the interest rate
swap associated with our yen-denominated notes are based on the amounts we would expect fo receive or pay. The
determination of the fair value of these derivatives is based on observable market inputs, therefore they are clazsified as
Level 2.

For derivatives associated with VIEs where we are the primary beneficiary, we are not the direct counterparty to the
swap contracts. As a result, the fair value measurements incorporate the credit nsk of the collateral associated with the
VIE. We receive valuationz from a third party pricing vendor for these derivatives. Baged on an analyzis of these
derivatives and a review of the methodology employed by the pricing vendor, we determined that due to the long duration
of these swaps and the need to extrapolate from short-term obgervable data to derive and measure long-ferm inputs,
certain inputs, assumptions and judgments are required to value future cash flows that cannot be comoborated by current
inputs or current cbservable market data. As a result, the derivatives associated with our consolidated VIEs are classified
as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Other policyholders” funds

The largest component of the other policyholders' funds liability is our annuity line of business in Aflac Japan. Our
annuities have fixed benefits and premiums. For thiz product, we estimated the fair value to be equal to the cash
surrender value. This is analogous to the value paid to policyholders on the valuation date if they were to surender their
policy. We perodically check the cash value against dizcounted cash flow projections for reasonableness. We congsider
our inputs for this valuation to be unobservable and have accordingly classified this valuation as Level 3.

Notes payable

The fair values of our publicly iesued notes payable classified as Level 3 were obtained from a limited number of
independent brokers. These brokers base their quotes on a combination of their knowledge of the current pricing
emvironment and market conditions. We consider these inputs o be unobservable. The fair values of our yen-
denominated lcans approximate their camying values.
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Level 3 Rolforeard and Tranefers between Hiararchy Levals

The fiollowing tables present the changes In falr walue of our avallabke-for-sale Investments and dervatives clazsilad a5 Level 2 as of Decamber 21,

2
Parpebual [Equity
Fhind Maturitee Sequrities  Ssourtise Dertvabives™
Azl Soreereign Sank Eanks ini=rest  Forsign Credd
Eacked Eubde ard Financsl Cether Fnacal Fals  Cumency  Defsul
{in milions) Seruriles  LHMes  Supmnaforal | Insthuions Coporste  Insthiions Smaps  Swapr Swaps Tolal
Halance, beginning of perkd 5 *3 5 0 § 0§ - 0§ 2 5 £l 1 % @9 F 3§ 34
L g@ins (osses} Inchoded
I Eamings ] a a a o o o SN 1811 3 hl:=]
Unrealized gains (osses) nouced In oiter
Income 134 a a 3 ] ] o a {7 o [ham
Furchases, lssuanoss, sals and setfsments
Eurchases ] a a a ] o o a a o o
Isuances ] a a a o o o a a o o
Salmg o a a a ] e0y o a a ] B0
Setiamentz 2 a a a ] o o a 85 ] ]
Transfers Inko Lesssl 37 ] a a a o 148 o a a o s
Transhers out of Level 3 o a a a ] ] 1] a a ] 1]
Balance, end of period 5 Z 5 0 § 0§ ] (K3 143 5 3§ 0§ 32D § 0 5 i
mlnmmmm
Lied 3 assats ancl abies S8 hedd ot
huﬂdhmﬁhﬂmhm
__Puestment gains (osses) L] 0 5 0§ L 3 a5 o s 03 03 1 % 0191 % 31§ (s
i and fabifies ane presenfed net
Wmmwumm:m
132
23
Mgt Soreereign Sanks Eanks inierest  Forsign Credi
Backed Publc and Finardal Cher Finardal Sal= Curency  Defaulk
{in milions) Serurifes UHMer  Supmeaforal | Instiutions Coporste  Insthitions Smmps Swapr Ewapms ol
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Transfers into andfor cut of Level 3 are atiributable fo a change in the observability of inputs. The most significant
transfer out of Level 3 into Lewvel 2 during 2013 related to our callable reverse dual-curmency bonds (RDCs). RDCs are
securities that have principal denominated in yen while paying U.S. dollar {USD) coupons. The market standard approach
iz to uze implied volatility to value options or instruments with optionality because historical volafility may not represent
current market participants’ expectations about future volatility. Under our previous valuation approach, we used historical
foreign exchange volatility as an input for valuing these investments. Given the importance of this input to the overall
valuation of these RDCs and the determination of this input to be uncbeervable, we made the decision at December 31,
2011 to move these holdings to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. During the first quarter of 2013, we implemented a new
valuation methodology for theze securities that relies on comparable securities in the market, the observable forward
foreign exchange curve and other market inputs. Given that the significant inputs fo the valuation of these items are now
based on cbeervable data, in the first quarter of 2013, we transferred these bonds from Level 3 to Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

In addition to the callable RDCs, we trangfermed ceriain other corporate securities from Level 3 to Level 2 in the first
quarier of 2013. Prices for these securities were previously obtained from brokers andfor amrangers with minimal
tranzparency around how the valuation was determined. Similar fo the RDCs, these securities are now valued using the
same methodology described above for our other privately issued securities.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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Failr Value Sansltivity
Leval 3 LUnobsensabie [ Sen

The following tables summarnize the significant unobsenable Inpuis used Inthe valuation of our Level 3 avallable-Tor-sale Invesiments and denvatives a5 of
December 31. Included In the fables are the Inputs or range of possibie Inputs that have an effect on he owverall valuation of the Mnanclal instruments.

4
Aangs
{ir. milizne) Fair Valus Valuation Teohnigueis) Unobesrvable Input  [weighisd Avarags)
Ascebe:
‘Bepurithes avallable for cals, sarrisd af fair walua:
Flxad maturiise:
Mortgage- and asset-backed secLries E 223 Consensus pricing Offered quobes. A l
BanksMnancial Instiuticns 28 Consensus micing Offered quotes WA il
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BanksMnancial Instiuticns 148 Caonsensus sicing Offered quotes WA L
Equity sagurtties 3 NEt aszet vaus Offered quotes $1- 5677 (56)
Dthar azsie:
Forelgn cumency saaps B Discounizd cash fiow Interes rates (UBD) 135%-2.70% O
Interest rates (JPY) 3w - 1w M
CO2 spreads 16 - 105 bps
Forelgn exchange ratzs 20.50% L
B8 Discounisd cash Tiow Interest rabes (WS D) 2zewm-z70% M
Interest rates. (JFY) sam-1am M
Forelgn exchange ratzs 20.50% H
Total assets 3 GOT
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& inpty deriemd o Jana IEngHEnT mAss 0 BCTomVRDCalE iong ML TakVE OF GUF SHIRS
) Basmd on £ year volaii: of JPVALSD sxchanges e
i 1 peprasErts Secunties whane e receve Lnacfushed Broder guofes g for Which S 500 fansoanency o Me providers’ fechnigy pus.
135
14
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" Discounizd cash fiow Interest rates (UED) 238%-270% ©
Inter=st mbes (JPY) E3% - 134w M
CO2 spreads 13 - 145 bps
£t Discounizd cash fiow Interest rates (UED) 22e%-270% M
Interes rates (JFY) 3w - 13w M
Foreign exchange rates 20.50% i
Total llahiities 3 318
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FIE]
Fangs
{Im milions) Fair Valus Valuation Teohnigusis) Unobearvable Input  (Welghisd Average)
Ascobe:
‘Bepuritles avallable for cals, sarrisd af fair walua:
Flxad maturitine:
Momgage- and asset-backed securfles s 389 Consensus pricing Offered quotes A .
EanksMnancial Instiutions 23 Consensus pricing Oiffered quobes BUA M
Perpatual ssouriflss:
EanksMnancial Instiutions 52 Consensus pricing Oiffered quobes BUA -
Equity sssurttiss 3 et asset valus Offered quobes F1-5774 (§7)
Othar asssis:
Forelgn cumency Swaps 30 Disoounted cash flow Interesf rakes (IS 3105% - 3.96% L
Interest rates (JPY) 3% -2 M
COE spreads 16 - 141 bps
Foreign exchange rates 21.16% "'
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S Discounied cash fiow Interest rakes (USD) 1% -3.96% M
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Forelgn exchange ratzs 21.AE% “
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013
Range
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The following is a dizcussion of the significant unobservable inputs or valuation technique used in determining the fair
value of securities and derivatives classified as Level 3.

Metf Asset Value

¥WWe hold certain unlisted equity securties whose fair value is derived based on the financial statements published by
the investee. These securities do not trade on an active market and the valuations derived are dependent on the
availability of timely financial reporting of the investee. Met azset value is an unobservable input in the defermination of fair
value of equity securties.

Offered Quofes

In circumzstances where our valuation model price iz ovemidden because it implies a value that iz not consistent with
current market conditions, we will solicit bids from a limited numier of brokers. We also receive unadjusted prices from
brokers for our morgage and asset-backed securitiez. These guotes are non-binding but are reflective of valuation best
estimates at that parficular point in time. Offered quotes are an unobservable input in the detemmination of fair value of
maortgage- and asset-backed securites, certain banksffinancial institutions, certain other corporate, and equity securities
investments.

Interest Rates, CDS Spreads, Foreign Exchange Rafes

The significant drivers of the valuation of the interest and foreign exchange swaps are interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and COS spreads. Our swaps have long maturities that increage the sengitivity of the swaps to interest rate
fluctuations. Since most of our yen-denominated cross cumency swaps are in a net liability position, an increase in interest
rates will decrease the liabilities and increaze the value of the swap.

Foreign exchange swaps alzo have a lump-sum final settliement of foreign exchange principal receivables at the
termination of the swap. An increase in yen interest rates will decrease the value of the final setilement foreign exchange
receivables and decrease the value of the awap, and an increase in USD interest rates increase the swap value.

A gimilar senaitivity pattem iz cbaenved for the foreign exchange ratez. When the spot LS. dollarfJapanese yen
(USDVJPY) foreign exchange rate decreases and the swap is receiving a final exchange payment in JPY, the swap value
will increase dus to the appreciation of the JPY. Most of our awaps are designed to receive payments in JPY af the
termination and will thus be impacted by the USDIJPY foreign exchange rate in this way. In cases where there iz no final
foreign exchange receivable in JPY and we are paying JPY as interest payments and receiving USD, a decrease in the
foreign exchange rate will lead to a decrease in the swap value.

The extinguisher feature in mosat of our swaps results in a cessation of cash flows and no further payments between
the parties to the swap in the event of a default on the referenced or underlying collateral. To price this feature, we apply
the survival probability of the referenced entity to the projected cash flows. The survival probability uses the COS spreads
and recovery rates to adjust the present value of the cash flows. For extinguisher swaps with positive values, an increase
in CO% spreads decreases the likelihood of receiving the final exchange payments and reduces the value of the swap.

Due to the long duration of these swaps and the need fo extrapolate from shori-term observable data to derive and
measure long-term inputs, certain inputs, assumpiions and judgments are required to value future cash flows that cannot
be comoborated by current inputs or cumrent obeervable market data.

Interest rates, CDS spreads, and foreign exchange rates are uncheervable inputs in the determination of fair value of
foreign currency swaps.
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Base Correlations, CDS Spreads, Recovery Rafes

QOur CDOs= are tranches on baskets of single-name credit default swaps. The rigks in theze types of synthetic CDOs
come from the single-name CDS risk and the comelations between the single names. The valuation of synthetic CDOs is
dependent on the calibration of market prices for intereat rates, single name CDS default probabiliies and base
comelation uging financial modeling tools. Since there is limited or no observable data available for these tranches, these:
hase comelations must be obtained from commonly traded market tranches such as the COX and iTraxx indices. From the
higtorical prices of these indices, base comelafions can be obtained fo develop a pricing curve of CDOs with different
seniorifies. Since the reference enfities of the market indices do not match those in our portfolio underlying the synthetic
CDO to be valued, several processing steps are taken fo map the securities in our porifolio to the indices. With the base
comelation determined and the appropriate spreads selected, a valuation is calculated. An increase in the CDS spreads in
the underlying portfolio leads to a decrease in the value due to higher probability of defaulis and losses. The impact on the
valuation due to base correlation depends on a number of factors, including the riskiness between market franches and

the modeled franche based on our portfolio and the eguivalence between detachment points in these franches. Generally
speaking, an increase in baze comelation will decreaze the value of the senior tranches while increaging the value of
junior tranches. This may result in a positive or negative value change.

The CDO tranches in our portfolio are junior tranches and, due to the low level of credit support for these tfranches,
exhibit equity-like behavior. Az a result, an increase in recovery rates tends fo cause their values to decrease.

Owr interesat rate swaps are linked to the underying synthetic CODOs. The valuation of these awaps is performed using
a similar approach to that of the synthetic CDOs themselves; that is, the base correlaticn model is used to ensure
consistency between the synthetic CDOs and the swaps.

Base comelations, CDS spreads, and recovery rates are unobservable inputs in the determination of fair value of
credit default swaps and interest rate swaps.

For additional information on our investments and financial instruments, see the accompanying Motes 1, 3 and 4.

6. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS AND INSURANCE EXPENSES

Consolidated policy acquisition costs deferred were 51.3 billion in 2014, compared with 51.4 billion in 2013 and $1.7

hillion in 2012. The following table prezents a roliforward of defermed policy acquisition costs by segment for the years
ended December 31.

2014 2013
{In rmillions) Japan U.5. Japan Us.
Deferred pﬂicy a[:quisﬁun costs:
Balance, beginning of year §$5819 $2979 $6,601 F2.8357
Capitalization 790 L5 893 553
Amortization (6:49) (459) (641} (433)
Foreign currency transiation and other (749) () (1.234) 0
Balance, end of year $5211 $3,062 $5.8159 F2979

Commizsions deferred as a percentage of total acquisition costs defermed were 77% in 2014, compared with 81% in
2013 and 84% in 2012.

Perzonnel, compenzation and benefit expenszes as a percentage of insurance expenses were 52% in 2014, compared
with 51% in 2013 and 2012, Adverfizing expense, which iz included in insurance expenzes in the consolidated statements
of eamings, was as follows for the years ended December 31:

{In millicns) 2014 2013 2012

Advertising expense:
Aflac Japan $ 103 5 112 5127
Aflac LS. 126 128 127
Total advertising expense $ 229 3 240 5254
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Depreciation and other amortization expenses, which are included in insurance expenses in the consolidated
statements of eamings, were az follows for the years ended December 31:

{In millions) 2014 2013 2012
Depreciation expense § a7 % 56 § 60
Other amortization expense 8 13 T

Total depreciation and other amortization expense § 56 F B9 3 67

Lease and rental expense, which are included in insurance expenses in the consolidated statements of earnings, were
as follows for the years ended December 31:

{In millions) 2014 2013 2012

Lease and rental expense:
Aflac Japan $ &2 3 55 F 7
Aflac US. 15 10 9
Other 1 1 1
Total lease and rental expense § 68 3 66 F 81

Advertizing, lease and rental expense decreased for Aflac Japan in 2014 and 2013 compared with 2012 due to the
weakening of the yen relative to the U.S. dollar.

7. POLICY LIABILITIES

Paolicy liakilities conzist of future policy benefitz, unpaid policy claims, uneamed premiums, and other policyholders’
funds, which accounted for 78%, 4%, 11% and 7% of total policy liabiliies at December 31, 2014, respectively. We
regularly review the adeguacy of our policy liabilities in total and by component.

The liability for future policy benefitz as of December 31 consisted of the following:
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Liability Amounts Intereat Rates
Policy Year of In 20
{In rnillions) lzsue Year 2014 2013 lzsue Years
Health insurance:
Japan: 2002 - 2014 $ 3,900 5 3370 1.25-25 % 1.25-25 %
1974 - 2013 3,449 3,880 27-275 235275
1908 - 2014 10,641 11,763 3.0 3.0
19097 - 1999 2,461 2,842 35 35
1904 - 1996 3,023 3483 40-45 40-45
1987 - 1994 14,3094 16,727 55 55
1985 - 1991 1,923 2,262 525-6.75 5.25-55
1978 - 1984 2,260 2,699 B5 55
us: 2012 - 2014 588 345 30-375 30-375
2011 276 243 475 475
2005 - 2010 2,951 2,897 55 55
1988 - 2004 T06 725 B0 6.0
19686 - 2004 1,293 1,301 6.0 6.0
1981 - 1986 183 190 E5-T7.0 55-85
1958 - 2004 1,260 1,237 70 7.0
Oiher M x2
Life insurance:
Japan: 2013 - 2014 312 50 15-1.75 15-1.75
2001 - 2013 3674 3,009 1.65-1.85 1.65- 185
2011 -2014 2,298 1,584 20 20
2009 - 2011 1,890 1,648 225 225
2005 - 2011 1,214 1,211 25 25
1985 - 2006 2,006 2,303 27 225
2007 - 2011 1,010 1,025 275 275
1995 - 2011 1,944 2,164 3.0 3.0
1996 - 2009 633 721 35 3.5
1954 - 1996 884 1,021 40-45 40-45
us: 1956 - 2014 452 396 35-6.0 35-60
Total $ 65,646 3 69,136

The weighted-average interest rates reflected in the consolidated statements of earnings for future policy bensefits for
Japanese policies were 3.8% in 2014, compared with 3.9% in 2013 and 4.0% in 2012; and for U.5. policies, 5.7% in 2014,
compared with 5.8% in 2013 and 6.0% in 2012.
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{In mmillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Unpaid supplemental health claims, beginning of year $ 3,537 $3781 §3.749
Less reinsurance recoverables 9 10 0
Met balance, beginning of year 3,528 3 3,745
Add claims incurmed during the year related to:
Current year 6,866 7215 8,013
Prior years (201) (238) (173}
Total incumred 6,565 6,979 7,840
Less claims paid during the year on claims incurmsd during:
Current year 4,532 4834 5453
Prior years 1,873 1931 2,082
Total paid 6,405 6,765 7535
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on unpaid claims (283) {457) {283}
Met balance, end of year 3405 3528 3.
Add reinsurance recoverables T 9 10
Unpaid supplemental health claims, end of year 3412 3537 3,781
Unipaid life claims, end of year 218 226 253
Total liability for unpaid policy claims § 3,630 53763 54,034

The incurred claims development related to prior years reflects favorable development in the unpaid policy claims
liakility. This favorable development i2 primarily in owr lines of businezs in Japan.

Ag of December 31, 2014 and 2013, unearned premiums congisted primarily of discounted advance premiums on
deposit. Discounted advance premiums are premiums on deposit from policyholders in conjunction with their purchase of

certain Aflac Japan limited-pay insurance products. These advanced premiums are deferred upon collection and

recognized as premium revenus over the contractual premium payment period. These advanced premiums represented
80% of the December 31, 2014 and 52% of the December 31, 2013 uneamesd premiums balances.

Ag of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the largest component of the other policyholders” funds liability iz our annuity line
of business in Aflac Japan. Our annuities have fixed benefits and premiums. These annuities represented 38% of the

December 31, 2014 and 93% of the December 31, 2013 other policyholders' funds liability.
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8. REINSURAMCE

Effective October 1, 2014 and September 30, 2013, we entered info coingurance reinsurance transactions whereby
we ceded 16.7% and 33.3%, respectively, of the hospital benefit of one of Aflac Japan's closed medical in-force blocks of
business. We recorded the gain related to these fransactions as a deferred profit liability on business sold through
reinzurance on our conzolidated balance sheets. The deferred profit liability of 3820 million, as of December 31, 2014,
included in future policy benefits in the consolidated balance sheet, is being amortized into income over the expected lives
of the policies. The corresponding reinsurance recoverable is included in other assets in the conzolidated balance sheet
and totaled $838 million as of Decembxer 31, 2014,

Effective December 31, 2014, we entered into a refrocession coinsurance reinsurance transaction whereby we
assumed 8.35% of the reinsured hospital benefit of one of Aflac Japan's closed medical in-foree blocks of business
through our subsidiary CAIC. The agreement had no impact on the conzolidated balance sheet and statement of
operafions as of December 31, 2014.

The following table reconciles direct premium income and direct benefits and claims to net amounts after the effect of
reinsurance for the years ended December 31.

{In millicns) 2014 2013
Direct premium income § 19,412 $ 20,233
Ceded to ofher companies:

Ceded Aflac Japan cloged medical block (311) (76}

Other (39) (34}
Azgzumed from other companies 10 12
Met premium income § 19,072 $ 20,135
Direct benefits and claims § 13,235 $ 13,903
Ceded benefite and change in reserves for future benefits:

Ceded Aflac Japan cloged medical block (276) (6T)

Oher {Z7) (31)
Azszumed from other companies 5 &
Benefitz and claims, net $ 12,937 $ 13813

Reinsurance does not relieve us from our obligations to policyholders. In the event that the reinsurer is unable to meet
their obligations, we remain liable for the reinsured claims.
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9. NOTES PAYABLE

A summany of notes payable az of December 31 follows:

{In rmillions) 2014 2013
3.45% senior notes due August 2015 $§ 300 5 300
2.65% senior notes due February 2017 653 ™ gss M
8.50% senior notes due May 2019 850 850
4.00% senior notes due February 2022 35 @ 349 @
3.625% senior notes due June 2023 700 700
3.625% senior notes due November 2024 749 ¥ 0
B.90% senior notes due December 2039 g7 @ 3g6 ®
B.45% =enior notes due August 2040 448 ¥ 445 ®
5 50% subordinated debentures due September 2052 500 S0
Yen-denominated Uridashi notes:
2 26% notes due September 2016 (principal amount & billion yen) 66 76
Yen-denominated Samurai notes:
1.47% notes paid July 2014 (principal amount 28.7 billion yen) 0 272
1.84% notes due July 2016 (principal amount 15.8 billion yen) 13 150
\ariable interest rate notes paid July 2014 (1.30% in 2013, principal amount
5.5 billion yen) 0 52
Yen-denominated loans:
3.60% loan due Juby 2015 (principal amournt 10 billion yen) 83 95
3.00% loan due August 2015 (principal amount 5 billion yen) 4 48
Capitalized lease obligations payable through 2019 14 5
Total notes payabie $ 5,282 5 4,897

“:'Fﬁnc:palammphs an igsuance premium that is being amortized over the life of the notez
# Principal amount net of an fzsuance discount that iz being amorfized over the [ife of the notes

In Movember 2014, the Parent Company issued 3750 million of senior notes through a U.S. public debt offering. The
niotes bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.625% per annum, payable semi-annually, and have a ten-year maturity. These
notes are redeemable at our option in whole at any time or in part from time to time at a redemption price equal to the
greater of: {i) the aggregate principal amount of the notes to be redeemed aor (i) the amount equal to the sum of the
present values of the remaining scheduled payments for principal of and interest on the notes to be redesmed, not
including any portion of the payments of interest accrued as of such redemplion date, discounted to such redemption date
on a semiannual basis at the freasury rate plus 20 hasis points, plus in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the
principal amount of the notes fo be redeemed to, but excluding, such redemption date. We entered into cross-cumency
interest rate swaps to reduce interest expense by converting the dollar-denominated principal and interest on the senior
notes we iBsued info yen-denominated obligations. By entering into the swaps, we economically converted our 3750
million liability into an 85.3 billicn yen liability and reduced the interest rate on this debt from 3.625% in dollars to 1.00% in
yen.

In June 2013, the Parent Company izsued 5700 million of senior notes through a U.S. public debt offering. The notes
bear interest at a fixed rate of 2.625% per annum, payable semi-annually, and have a ten-year maturity. These notes are
redeemabile at our option in whole at any time or in part from time to time at a redemption price equal fo the greater of: (i)
the aggregate principal amount of the notes to be redeemed or (i) the amount equal to the sum of the present values of
the remaining scheduled payments for principal of and interest on the notes fo be redeemed, not including any portion of
the payments of interest accrued as of such redemption date, dizcounted to such redemplicn date on a semiannual basis
at the treasury rate plus 20 basis points, plus in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the principal amount of the
notes to be redeemed to, but excluding, such redemption date. We entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps to
reduce interest expense by converting the dollar-denominated principal and interest on the senior notes we issued into
yen-denominated obligations. By entering into these swaps, we economically converted our 5700 million liability into a
9.8 billion yen liability and reduced the interest rate on thiz debt from 3.625% in dollars to 1.50% in yen.
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In September 2012, the Parent Company issued $450 million of subordinated debentures through a U.S. public delt
offering. The debentures bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.50% per annum, payable quarterly, and have a 40-year maturity.
In five years, an or after September 26, 2017, we may redeem the debentures, in whole or in part, at their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date of redemption; provided that if the debentures are not
redeemed in whole, at leaat 325 millicn aggregate principal amount of the debentures must remain outstanding after
giving effect to such redemption. The debentures may only be redeemed prior to September 26, 2017, in whole but not in
part, upon the occurrence of certain tax events or certain rating agency events, as specified in the indenture governing the
terms of the debentures. We entered into crogs-curmency interest rate swaps to convert the dollar-denominated principal
and interest on the subordinated debentures we issued into yen-denominated obligations. By entering info these swaps,
we economically converted our S450 million lakility into a 352 billion yen liability and reduced the interest rate on thizs
debt from 5.50% in dollars fo 4.41% in yen. The swaps will expire after the initial five-year non-callable pericd for the
debentures. Im October 2012, the underwriters exercised their option, pursuant to the underwriting agreement, fo
purchaze an additicnal 320 million principal amount of the debentures dizcussed above. We entered into a cross-
currency interest rate swap to economically convert thiz 320 million liakility into a 3.9 killion yen liability and reduce the
interest rate from 5.50% in dollars to 4.42% in yen. The swap will expire after the initial five-year non-callable pericd for
the debentures.

In February 2012, the Parent Company izsued two =eries of senior notes fotaling 5750 million through a LS. public
debt offering. The first series, which fotaled $400 million, bears interest at a fixed rate of 2.65% per annum, payabile
semiannually, and has a five-year maturity. The second seriesg, which totaled 5350 million, bears interest at a fixed rate of
4 06 per annum, payable semiannually, and has a 10-year maturity. These notes are redeemabile at cur option in whole
at any time or in part from time to time at a redempiion price equal to the greater of: (i) the principal amount of the notes or
(i) the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest fo be redeemed, discounted to the
redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest. We entered into cross-cumrency interest rate swaps to reduce interest
expense by converting the dollar-denominated principal and inferest on the senior notes we issued into yen-denominated
obligations. By entering into these swaps, we economically converted our 3400 million liability into a 30.9 billion yen
liakility and reduced the interest rate on this debt from 2.65% in dollars fo 1.22% in ven. We also economically comverted
our 350 million liability into a 27.0 billion yen ability and reduced the interest rate on this debt from 4 .00% in dollars to
207% in yen. In July 2012, the Parent Company issued 5250 million of senior notes that are an addition to the original
first series of senior notes izzwed in February 2012. These notes have a five-year maturity and a fixed rate of 2 65% per

annum, payable semiannually.

In July 2011, the Parent Company izsued three senies of Samurai notes totaling 50 billion yen through a public debt
offering. The first serieg, which totaled 28.7 billion yen, and the third series, which totaled 5.5 billion yen, were redeemed
in July 2014. The second series, which fotaled 15.8 billion yen, bears interest at a fixed rate of 1.84% per annum, payable
semiannually, and has a five-year maturity. These Samurai notes are not available to ULS. persons.

In 2010 and 2009, we izsued senior notes through ULS. public debt offerings; the details of these notes are as follows.
In August 2010, we issued 3450 million and $300 milion of senior notes that have 30-year and five-year maturties,
rezpectively. In December 2009, we izsued 3400 million of senior notes that have a 30-year maturity. In May 2009, we
issued 850 million of senior motes that have a 10-year maturity. These senior notes pay interest semiannually and are
redeemabile at our option in whole at any time or in part from time to time at a redemption price equal fo the greater of: (i)
the principal amount of the notes or (i) the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and inferest to
be redeemed, discounted to the redemption date, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

In September 2006, the Parent Company issued a franche of Urdashi notes fotaling 10 billion yen with a 10-year
maturity. These Uridashi notes pay inferest semiannually, may only be redeemed prior to maturity upon the occcurrence of
a tax event as specified in the respective bond agreement and are not available to U.S. persons. During 2009, we
extinguizhed 2.0 billion yen {par value) of these Uridashi notes by buying the notes on the open market at a cost of 1.4
hillion yen, yielding a gain of .6 billion yen.

For our yen-denominated notes and loans, the principal amount as stated in dollar termz will fluctuate from period to
perncd due to changes in the yen/dollar exchange rate. We have designated the majority of our yen-denominated notes
payable as a nondervative hedge of the foreign currency exposure of our investrment in Aflac Japan.
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The aggregate confractual maturities of notes payable during each of the years after December 31, 2014, are as
follows:

Capitalized Total

Long-term Lease Notes
{In rmillions) Debt Obligations Payable
2015 3 424 34 F 428
2016 197 4 201
2017 650 3 653
2018 o 2 2
2019 B850 1 B51
Thereafter 3,150 0 3,130
Total 55,27 314 F5.285

In October 2014, the Parent Company and Aflac entered into a 264-day uncommitted bilateral line of credit that
provides for borrowings in the amount of $100 million. Borrowings will bear interest at the rate quoted by the bank and
agreed upon at the time of making such lcan and will have a three-month maturity period. There are no related facility
fees, upfront expense or financial covenant requirements. Borrowings under this credit agreement may be used for
general corporate purpozes. Az of December 31, 2014, we did not have any bomowings ocutetanding under cur $100
million credit agreement. Borrowings under the financing agreement will mature no later than three months after the last
drawdown date of October 15, 2015.

The Parent Company and Aflac have a senior unsecured revolving credit facility agreement with a syndicate of
financial institutions that provides for bomowings in the amount of S0 killion yen. Thiz credit agreement provides for
lomowings in Japanese yen or the equivalent of Japanese yen in U.5. dollars on a revolving basis. Bomowings will bear
intereat at LIBOR plus the applicable margin of 1.125%. In addition, the Parent Company and Aflac are required to pay a
facility fee of .125% on the commitments. As of December 31, 2014, we did not have any bomowings outstanding under
our 50 billion yen revolving credit agreement. Borrowings under the credit agreement may be used for general corporate
purpoges, including a capital contingency plan for our Japanese operationz. Bomowings under the financing agreement
mature at the termination date of the credit agreement. The agreement requires compliance with certain financial
covenants on a quarterly basis. This credit agreement will expire on the earlier of March 29, 2018, or the date of
termination of the commitments upon an event of default as defined in the agreement.

We were in compliance with all of the covenants of our notes payable and lines of credit at December 31, 2014. Mo
events of default or defauliz occurmed during 2014 and 2013,

10. INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense (benefit) applicable to pretax earnings for the years ended December 31
were as follows:

{In rillions) Foreign s, Total
2014
Current $ 995 § B84 $1,079
Deferred 125 336 461
Total income tax expense $1,120 § 420 % 1,540
2013
Current 5 934 § 302 $1.236
Defermed 299 123 477
Total income fax expenze 51,233 5 425 3 1,658
i1
Current 5 513 % 303 3 818
Defermed 950 (330)

Total income tax expense $ 1,463 (27N 31436
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Japan enacted an income tax rate reduction effective for fiscal years beginning after March 31, 2012. The rate was
reduced fo 33.3% effective April 1, 2012, and an additional reduction to 30.8% became effective January 1, 2015. The
esfimated reversal of the temporary differences regulted in a decrease fo deferred taxes in Japan of 3744 million and a
comesponding increase in U.5. deferred taxes, due to the loss of foreign tax credits, of $744 million as of December 31,
2011. Ba=sed on the actual reversal pattern of these temporary differences, we revised our estimate of the impact of the
tax rate reduction, rezulting in an increase to defemred taxes in Japan of 3374 million and a comresponding decrease in
U.S. deferred taxes of $374 million as of December 31, 2012.

Income tax expense in the accompanying statements of eamings vanes from the amount computed by applying the
expected U.S. tax rate of 35% to pretax earnings. The principal reasons for the differences and the related tax effects for
the years ended December 31 were as follows:

{In mmillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Income taxes based on LS. statutory rates $1,572 % 1,685 % 1,506
Utilization of foreign tax credit {32) (37 {53)
Mondeductible expenses 5 6 8
Oiher, net {5) 4 [253)
Income tax expense 51,540 51,658 51436

Total income tax expense for the years ended December 31 was allocated as follows:

{In rriillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Statements of eamings $ 1,540 £ 1,658 51436
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized foreign currency translation gains (los=es) during pericd {4193) 253 363

Unrealized gains (loszes) on investment secunties:
Unrealized holding gaing (logses) on investment
s dur I

uring 2,237 (004) op4
Reclassification adjustment for realized (gaing) losses
on investment securities included in net eamings 19 19 (174)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivafives during period {3) (4] (8}
Pension liability adjustment during period {31) a5 ]
Total income tax expense (benefit) related to tems of
other comprehensive income (loss) 1,803 (581) 1,078
Additional paid-in capital (exercise of stock opbons) 7) 8 [12)
Total income taxes $ 3,336 5 1,069 $ 2,502

The tax effect on other comprehensive income (loss) shown in the table above included a defemed income tax
expense of 5514 millicn in 2013 and $452 million in 2012, related to certain dollar-denominated investmients that Aflac
Japan maintained on behalf of Aflac U.S. As discussed in Note 1, prior to October 1, 2013, there was no translation
adjustment to record in pretax other comprehensive income for the porifolio when the yenddollar exchange rate changed,
however defermed tax expense or benefit associated with the foreign exchange translation gains or losses on these dollar-
denominated investments iz recognized in total income tax expense on other comprehensive income until the securities
miature or are sold. Excluding the tax amounts for these dollar-denominated investments from total taxes on other
comprehensive income would result in an effective income tax rate on pretax other comprehensive income (loss) of 31%
in 2013 and 32% in 2012,

The income tax effects of the temporary differences that gave rise to deferred income tax assefs and liabilities as of
December 31 were as follows:
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{In millicns) 2014 2013
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred policy acquisition costs §2,209 52,406
Unrealized gains on investment securities 2584 533
Premiums receivable 139 134
Policy benefit reserves 1,376 1,451
Diepreciation 5 o4
Other 20 22
Total deferred income tax liabilities 6,379 4 600
Deferred income tax assets:
Other basiz differences in investment securifies 1,331 1,129
Unfunded retirement benefits 16 16
Ciher accrued expenses 4 23
Policy and confract claims a9q 111
Foreign currency loz2s on Japan branch 327 189
Deferred compensation 226 1682
Capital loss carryforwards 26 o14
Total deferred income tax asseis 2,029 2,164
Met deferred income tax liability 4,350 24365
Current income tax liability _ 943 1,282
Total income tax liability § 5,293 33718

Under LS. income tax rules, only 25% of non-life operating logses can be offzet against life insurance taxable income
each year. For cument U.S. income tax purposes, there were non-life operating loss camyforwards of 518 million, $17
miillion, $2 millicn and 51 million expiring in 2031, 2032, 2033 and 2034, respectively, and no tax credit carryforwards
available at December 31, 2014. The Company has capital loss carnyforwards of 573 million available to offset capital
gains, which expire in 2016.

We file federal income tax refurns in the United States and Japan as well as state or prefecture income tax retums in
various jurisdictions in the two countries. U5, federal income tax retums for years before 2010 are no longer subject fo
examination. In Japan, the National Tax Agency (NTA) has completed exams through tax year 2011.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefifz is as follows for the years ended
December 31:

{In millions) 2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $328 F401
Additions for tax positions of prior years 2 1
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (21) (74)

Balance, end of year $309 3328

Included in the balance of the liability for unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2014, are 3307 million of tax
positions for which the ulimate deductibility is highly certain, but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such
deductibility, compared with 5327 million at December 31, 2013. Becauze of the impact of deferred tax accounting, other
than interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax
rate, but would accelerate the payment of cash fo the taxing authority to an earlier period. The Company has accrued
approximately 52 million as of December 31, 2014, for permanent uncertainties, which if reversed would not have a
material effect on the annual effective rate.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.
We recognized approximately 511 million in interest and penalties in 2014 and 2013, and 57 million in 2012, The

Company has accrued approximatehy $30 million for the payment of interest and penalties as of December 31, 2014,
compared with 526 million a year ago.
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As of December 31, 2014, there were no material uncertain tax positions for which the total amounts of unrecognized
tan benefits will significantly increase or decrease within the next 12 months.

11. SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

The following table is a reconciliation of the number of shares of the Company's common stock for the years ended
December 31.

{In thousands of shares) 2014 2013 2012
Common stock - issued:
Balance, beginning of period 667,046 665,239 BE3 630
Exercize of stock options and issuance of restricted shares 1,086 1,807 1,600
Balance, end of pericd 668,132 667,046 665,239
Treasury stock:
Balance, beginning of period 207,633 197,453 197,329
Purchases of treasury stock:
Open market 19,660 13,212 1,048
Other 157 222 360
Digpogitions of treasury stock:
Shares issued to AFL Stock Plan {1,251) {1,365) {1,670}
Exercise of stock oplions (391) {1,734) (387}
Oither {121) {135} (127}
Balance, end of pericd 225,687 207,633 197 453
Shares u.lxband'm end of pernicd 442 445 450 413 4E7 786

Outstanding share-based awards are excluded from the calculation of weighted-average shares used in the
computation of bagic EFS. The following table presents the approximate number of share-based awards to purchase
shares, on a weighted-average basis, that were considered to be anti-dilutive and were excluded from the calculation of
diluted eamings per share at December 31:

{In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Anfi-dilutive share-based awards 1,215 2,195 5,880

The weighted-average shares used in calculating eamings per ghare for the years ended December 31 were as
follows:

{In thousands of shares) 2014 2013 2012

Weighted-average outstanding shares used for calculating basic EPS 451,204 464 502 466,868
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 2,796 2,906 2419
Weighted-average outstanding shares used for calculating diluted EPS 454,000 457 408 469 287

Share Repurchage Program: During 2014, we purchaged 19.7 million shares of our common stock in the open
market, compared with 13.2 million shares in 2013 and 1.9 million shares in 2012. As of December 31, 2014, a remaining
balance of 20,6 milion shares of our common stock was available for purchase under share repurchase authorizations by
our board of directors.

Voting Rights: In accordance with the Parent Company’s arficles of incorporation, shares of common stock are
generally entitled fo one vote per share until they have been held by the same beneficial owner for a continuous period of
48 months, at which time: they become entitled to 10 votes per share.

Reclassifications from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The table below iz a reconciliation of accumulated other comprehensive income by component for the years ended
December 31.
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2014
Unrealized
Foreign Unrealized
Currency Gains Unrealized
Translation (Losses) Gains Pension
Gains on Investment %osses} Liability
{In rnillions) (Losses) Securities on Derivatives  Adjustment Total
Balance, beginning of period % (1,505) $ 1,035 $§ (13) % (81) % (563)
Other comprehensive
income before
reclassification {1,036) 3,672 (14) (44) 2,578
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income 0 [35) 0 (1) {36)
Met current-period other
comprehensive
income {1,036) 3,637 (14) {45) 2,542
Balance, end of period $ (2,541) $ 4672 $ (26) % (126) $ 1,979
AN amounfs in the fable above are nef of fax.
2013
Unrealized
Foreign Unrealized
Currency Gains Unrealized
Translation (Losses) Gains Pension
Gains on Investment [Losses) Liability
{In rmillicns) (Losses) Securities on Derivatives  Adjustment Total
Balance, beginning of period F 33 $ 2570 5 (5) 3 (183 $ 2715
Oiher comprehensive
income before
reclassification (1,833 {1,499) {7y 92 {3,247)
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income (5) (36) 0 10 (31)
Met current-period other
comprehensive
INcome {1,838) {1,535) (7) 102 {3,278)
Balance, end of period % (1,505) F 1,035 F (13 3 (81) 3 (563)

AN amounts in the fable abowve are nef of fax.

The table below summarizes the amounts reclassified from each component of accumulated other comprehensive
income based on source for the years ended December 31.
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Reclassifications Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

{In millicns) 2014
Amount Reclassified from
Detailz about Accumulated Other Accumulated Other Affected Line ltem in the
Comprehengive Income Components Comprehensive Income Statements of Earnings
Unrealized gains (loszes) on available-for-sale
securities $ &7 Sales and redemptions
@) onen ot
b4 Total before tax
{19) Tax (expense) or benefit™
$ 35 Met of tax
“Fmorization of delined benent pension items:
Actuarial gains (losses) $ (15 Acquisifion and operating expenses™
Prior service (cost) credit 17 Acquisition and operating expenses™
1) Tax (expense) or benefit™
$ 1 Met of tax
Total reclassifications for the period $§ 36 Net of tax
™ Based on 35% fax rate

# These accumulsfed other comprehensive income components are included in the computation of nef perfodic pension cost (zee
Note 14 for sdditional details).

{In millicns) 2013
Amount Reclassified
Details about Accumulated Other from Accumulated Other Affected Line ltem in the
Comprehensive Income Components Comprehensive Income Statements of Earnings
Unrealized foreign cumency transiation gains
(losses) 5 7 Sales and redemptions
) Tax (expense) or benefit™
3 3 Met of tax
Unrealzed gains (losses) on available-for-sale
securities 5 255 Sales and redemptions
Other-than-temporary impairment
(199) losses realized
o6 Total before tax
{20) Tax (expense) or benefit™
3 36 Met of tax
Amortization of defined benefit pension items:
Actuarial gains (losses) 5 (19) Acquisition and operating expenses'™
Prior service (cost) credit 4 Acquisition and operating expenses'™
5 Tax (expense) or benefit™
5 (10) Met of tax
Total reciassifications for the period s 3 Net of tax

™ Bazed on 35% fax rate
ﬁmmﬁwmﬁmmﬁmMMthhm&nﬂMMMﬁE
Note 14 for additional details).
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12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Az of December 31, 2014, the Company has outstanding share-based awards under two long-term incentive
compensation plans.

The first plan, which expired in February 2007, is a stock option plan which allowed grants for incentive stock options
(150s) to employees and non-gualifying stock options (NQS0s) to employees and non-employee directors. The options
have a term of 10 years. The exercize price of options granted under thiz plan is equal fo the fair market value of a share
of the Company's common stock at the date of grant. Options granted before the plan's expiration date remain
outstanding in accordance with their terms.

The second long-term incentive compensation plan allows awards to Company employees for 150s, NQ5S0s,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, and stock appreciation rights. Mon-employee directors are eligible for grants of
MQS0s, restricted stock, and stock appreciation Aghtz. The 150s and MQS0s have a term of 10 years, and the share-
hased awards generally vest upon time-based conditions or time- and performance-based conditions. Time-bazed vesting
generally occurs after three years. Performance-based vesting conditions generally include the attainment of goals related
to Company financial performance. As of December 31, 2014, approximately 11.2 million shares were available for future
grants under this plan, and the only performance-based awards izssued and outstanding were restricted stock awards.

Share-based awards granted o U.5.-based grantees are seftied with authorized but unissued Company stock, while
those issued to Japan-based grantees are setiled with treasury shares.

The following table presents the impact of the expense recognized in connection with share-based awards for the
pericds ended December 31.

{In millions, except for per-share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Impact on eamings from continuing operations [3 4 F 37 537

Impact on eamings before income taxes 4 =T ar

I an net eani 28 25 26
on eamings per share:

Basic § .06 F.05 5.06

Diluted 06 05 06

We estimate the fair value of each stock option granted using the Black-Scholes-Merion multiple opfion approach.
Expected volatility is based on historical perieds generally commensurate with the estimated terms of the options. We use
hizgtorical data to estimate opfion exercize and termination patterns within the model. Separate groups of employees that
have similar historical exercise patterns are stratified and conzsidered separately for valuation purpozes. The expected
term of options granted iz derived from the output of our option model and represents the weighted-average period of time
that oplicns granted are expected fo be outstanding. We base the risk-free interest rate on the Treasury note rate with a
term comparakie to that of the estimated term of the opfions. The weighted-average fair value of oplions at their grant
date waz 51624 per share for 2014, compared with $14.25 for 2013 and 516.84 in 2012, The following table presents the
assumptions uzed in valuing options granted during the years ended December 31.

2014 2013 2012
Expected term (years) 6.3 6.6 6.5
Expected volatility 300 % 340 % 380 %
Annual forfeiture rate 27 16 16
Rizk-free interest rate 28 18 21
Dividend yield 23 26 13

The following table summarizes stock option activity.
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Stock Weighted-Average
(ﬁltion Exercise Price
{In thousands of shares) Shares Per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 14,563 5 4276
Granted in 2012 784 47.25
Canceled in 2012 [134) 4859
Exercised in 2012 (2,476) 32.27
Ouitstanding at December 31, 2012 12737 45.00
Granted in 2013 703 52 86
Canceled in 2013 {179) 4479
Exercised in 2013 {3,281) 40.52
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 9,980 47.03
Granted in 2014 678 61.81
Canceled in 2014 {115) 52.01
Exercised in 2014 {1,238) 41.04
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 9,307 $ 48.34
{In thousands of shares) 2014 2013 2012
"Shares exercizable, end of year 7,497 8,042 10,635

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercizable at December 31, 2014.

{In thousands of shares) Options Outstanding Options Exercizsable
Range of Stock Option E‘nﬂtngm-ﬁ:% %&“ ' Stock Option ell'::?:eu.
Exercise Prices Shares Confractual Price Shares Price
Per Share Outstanding Life (¥rs.) Per Share Exercisable Per Share
§ 1499 - § 4307 2028 3.8 $ 34.46 1,945 § 3420
4328 - 4725 2144 31 4593 2048 4593
4733 - 319 1,883 54 4897 1,109 4886
5214 - 8181 2479 45 5865 2,296 58.79
61.84 - B76T 773 8.5 6285 101 6463
$ 14.99 - § 67.67 9,307 4.5 § 458.84 7497 5 47.51

The aggregate infrinsic value represents the diference between the exercize price of the stock options and the quoted
cloging commion stock price of $61.09 as of December 31, 2014, for those awards that have an exercise price currently
below the closing price. As of December 31, 2014, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding was $116
million, with a weighted-average remaining term of 4.5 years. The aggregate infrinsic value of stock options exercizable at
that same date was $103 millicn, with a weighted-average remaining ferm of 3.6 years.

The following table summarizes stock option activity during the years ended December 31.

{In rmillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Total intringic value of options exercized $ 25 5 66 54
Cash received from options exercised 34 113 35
Tax benefit realized as a result of options exercised and

restricted stock releases 17 30 24

The value of restricted stock awards is based on the fair market value of our common stock at the date of grant. The
following table summarizes restricted stock activity during the years ended December 31.
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Weighted-Average

Grant-Date

Fair Value

{In thousands of shares) Shares Per Share
Restricted siock at December 31, 2011 1,350 34092
Granted in 2012 637 4818
Canceled in 2012 (SE) 4822
Vested in 2012 (SE8) 26.13
Restricted stock at December 31, 2012 1,363 50.19
Granted in 2013 782 5277
Canceled in 2013 (56) 48 63
Vested in 2013 (418) 4749
Restricted stock at December 31, 2013 1,671 52.12
Granted in 2014 584 62.12
Canceled in 2014 127) 52.66
Vested in 2014 (348) 56.95
Restricted stock at December 31, 2014 1,880 $ 54.33

As of December 31, 2014, fotal compensation cost not yet recognized in our financial statements related fo restricted
stock awards was 345 million, of which $20 million (849 thousand shares) was related to restricted stock awards with a
performance-hased vesting condition. We expect to recognize these amounts over a weighted-average period of
approximately 1.2 years. There are no other confractual terms covering resiricted stock awards once vested.

13. STATUTORY ACCOUNTING AND DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to repaort their results of operations and financial position to state insurance
regulatory authorities on the basis of statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by such authorities. Statutory
accounting practices primarily differ from U.S. GAAP by charging policy acquisition coats to expense as incurmed,
establishing future policy benefit liabiliies using different actuarial assumptions as well as valuing investments and certain
assets and accounting for deferred taxes on a different basis.

Aflac, the Company's mest significant insurance subsidiary, reports statutory financial statements that are prepared on
the bagiz of accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the Nebraska Depariment of Ingurance (MEDOI). The NEDOI
recognizes statutory accounting principles and practices prescribed or pemmitted by the state of Mebraska for determining
and reporting the financial condition and resuliz of operations of an insurance company, and for determining a company's
solvency under Nebraska insurance law. The Mational Azsociation of Insurance Commissioners' (NAIC) Accounting
Practices and Procedures Manual (SAP) has been adopted by the state of Mebraska as a compenent of those prescribed
or permitied practices. Additionally, the Director of the NEDOI has the right fo permit other specific practices which deviate
from prescribed praclices. Aflac has been given explicit permission by the Director of the NEDOI for two such permitted
practices. These permitied practices, which do not impact the calculation of net income on a statutory basis or prevent the
triggering of a regulatory event in the Company's risk-bazed capital calculation, are as follows:

+ Aflac has reported as admitted assets the refundable lease deposits on the leases of commercial office space
which house Aflac Japan's sales operations. These lease deposits are unigue and part of the ordinary course of
doing business in the country of Japan; these asasts would be non-admitted under SAP.

+  Aflac ulilized book value accounting for certain guaranteed separate account funding agreements instead of fair
value accounting as required by SAP. The underlying separate account aszets had an unrealized gain of $35

million as of December 31, 2013, In June 2014, the guaranteed separate account funding agreements were
settled and at that time, Aflac's separate account assets were transferred to the general account.
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A reconciliation of Aflac's capital and surplus between SAP and practices permitted by the state of Nebraska is shown
below:

{In millizns) 2014 2013
Capital and surplus, Nebraska state basis $10,839 $ 9,630
State Permitted Practice:
Refundable lease deposits — Japan (36) (41}
Separate Account Funding Agreements 0 33
Capital and surplus, NAIC basis $10,803 $ 9624

Az of December 31, 2014, Aflac’s capital and surplus significantly exceeded the required company action level capital
and surpluz of $1.2 billion. As determined on a U.5. statutory accounting basis, Aflac's net income was $2.4 billion in 2014
and 2013 and 52.3 billion in 2012

Aflac Japan must report its results of operations and financial position fo the Japanese Financial Services Agency
(F3A) on a Japaneze regulatory accounting basis as prescribed by the FSA. Capital and surplus of the Japan branch,
hased on Japanese regulatory accounting practices, was $5.6 billion at December 31, 2014, compared with 34.2 billion at
December 31, 2013, Japanese regulatory accounting practices differ in many respects from LS. GAAP. Under Japaness
regulatory accounting practices, policy acquisition costs are expensed immediately; deferred income tax liabilities are
recognized on a different basis; policy benefit and claim reserving methods and assumptions are different; premium
income ie recognized on a cagh basgig; reinsurance iz recognized on a different basiz; and investments can have a
separate accounting classification and freatment referred fo as “policy reserve matching bonds,” or “PRM."

The Parent Company depends on its subsidiaries for cash flow, primarily in the form of dividends and management
fees. Consclidated retained eamings in the accompanying financial statements largely represent the undistributed
eamings of our insurance subsidiary. Amounts available for dividends, management fees and other payments to the
Parent Company by its insurance subsidiary may fluctuate due to different accounting methods required by regulatory
authorities. These payments are alzo subject to various regulatory restrictions and approvals related to safeguarding the
interests of insurance policyholders. Our insurance subsidiary must maintain adequate risk-based capital for U.S.
regulatory authorities and our Japan branch must maintain adequate solvency margins for Japanese regulatory
authorities. Additionally, the maximum amount of dividends that can be paid to the Parent Company by Aflac without pricr
approval of Nebraska's director of insurance is the greater of the net income from operations, which excludes net realized
investment gaing, for the previous year determined under statutory aceounting principles, or 10% of statutory capital and
surplus as of the previous year-end. Dividends declared by Aflac duning 2015 in excess of $2.4 hillion would require such
approval. Aflac declared dividends of $1.5 billion during 2014.

A portion of Aflac Japan eamnings, as determined on a Japanese regulatory accounting basis, can be repatriated each
year to Aflac U5, after complying with solvency margin provigions and satisfying various conditions imposed by Japanese
regulatony authorities for protecting policyholders. Profit repatriations o the United States can fluctuate due fo changes in
the amounts of Japanese regulatory earnings. Among other itemns, factors affecting regulatory earnings include Japanese
regulatony accounting practices and fluctuations in curmency franslation of Aflac Japan's dollar-denominated investments
and related investment income into yen. Profits repatriated by Aflac Japan to Aflac U.S. were as follows for the years
ended December 31:

In Dollars In Yen
{In millions of dellars and billicns of yen) 2014 2013 Z'DE 2914 2_1]13 2012
Profit repatriation $1,704 5771 3422 181.4 76.8 331

We had entered into foreign exchange forwards and optionz as part of an economic hedge on 52.5 billion yen of profit
repatriation received in July 2014 and 50.0 killion yen of repatriation received in December 2014, resulting in 57 million
and 345 million of additional funds received, respectively, when the yen was exchanged into dollars. As of December 31,
2014, we had foreign exchange forwards as part of a hedging strategy on 1575 billion yen of fulure profit repatriation.
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14. BENEFIT PLANS

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

We have funded defined benefit plans in Japan and the United States, which cover substantially all of our full-time
employees. Additionally, we maintain non-gualified, unfunded supplemental refirement plans that provide defined pension
benefits in excess of limits imposed by federal tax law for certain Japanese, U 5. and former employees. Effective
October 1, 2013, the U_S. tax-gualified defined benefit plan was frozen to new employees hired on or after October 1,
2013 and fo employees rehired on or after Ociober 1, 2013, During the fourth quarter of 2013, active participants in this
plan were given the option to exit the benefit plan and receive a nonelective 401(k) employer contribution. Additicnalhy,
effective January 1, 2015, the U.5. non-gualified supplemental retirement plan was frozen to new paricipants.

We provide ceriain health care benefits for eligible U.S. retired employees, their beneficiaries and covered
dependents ("other postretirement benefitz"). The health care plan is confributory and unfunded. On October 1, 2013, a
change waz made fo postretirement medical benefits to limit the eligikility for the benefits beginning January 1, 2014 fo
include the following: (1) active employees whose age plus service, in years, equals or exceeds 80 (rule of 80); (2) active
employees who are age 55 or clder and have met the 15 years of service requirement; (3) active employees who will
mieet the rule of 80 in the next five years; (4) active employees who are age 55 or older and who will meet the 15 years of
service requirement within the next five years; and (5) current retirees. Effective October 1, 2013, this change was
accounted for as a negative plan amendment and resulfed in a reduction to the postretirernent benefit obligation of
approximately $51 million, with an offset to accumulated other comprehensive income (AQCIH). Starting in the fourth
quarter of 2013, thiz reduction iz being amortized as a reduction to net periodic benefit cost over three years. The
postretirement plan obligation was remeasured using a dizcount rate of 4.75% as of October 1, 2013. For certain
employees and former employees, additional coverage is provided for all medical expenses for life.

Information with respect to our benefit plans' assetz and obligations as of December 31 was as follows:
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Pension Benefits Oither
Japan us. Posfrefirement Benefits
{In millicns) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 270 g 33 $ 601 5613 $ 46 598
Service cost 15 16 20 x 1 5
Interest coat 9 10 s 23 2 3
Plan amendmentz 0 0 0 4) 0 {51)
Actuarial (gain) loss 21 (3) 74 (37} (3) 7
Benefits and expenses paid ]| 8) (16) (16} 2 (2)
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes {39) {o8) 0 1] 0 0
Benefit obligation, end of year 267 270 77 601 44 46
Plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets,
beginning of year 182 187 33 261 0 0
Actual retumn on plan assets 12 13 26 a5 0 0
Employer contributicns 24 26 18 prat 2 2
Benefits and expenses paid ]| 8) (16) (16} (2 (2)
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes {26) {36) 0 1] 0 ]
Fair value of plan assets, end of year 183 1a2 34 33 0 0
Funded status of the plﬂllsm 5 (84) g (88) $(376) $(288) 5(44) F({46)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehengive income:
Met actuarial {gain) loss $ 40 g 33 $ 167 511 £19 525
Prior service (credit) cost (2) {2y (4) 4) (28) {45)
Transition obligation 0 1 0 0 0 0
Total included in accumulated
other comprehensive income $ 38 5 32 $163 5107 $(9 $(20)
‘Accumulated benefit obligation $ 235 § 239 $611 5514 NA ®  NA T
@ Recognized in ather iabilifies in the conzofidated balance sheets
® pot applicable
Pension Benefits Other
Japan L.5. Postrefirement Benefits
2014 2013 2032 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Diiscount rate - net periodic
benefit cost 2.25% 2.25% 2.25% 4. T5% 4.25% 4.75% 4.75% 4 25% 4 75%
Dliscount rate - benefit
obligafions 1.75 225 225 4.50 475 425 4.50 475 425
Expected long-termn retum o @ i
on plan assets 2100 2.00 250 T50 T.50 T.50 NIA MFA MiA
ﬁﬁﬁm o wa oA oA ™ a0 4.00 4.00 WA 7 oA M s
Heslth care costtrendrates WA ™ wa ™ wa ™ wm ™ owa ™ owa P 570 P san P s70 @

7 Not applicabie

mFor#aeyearsEﬂH, 2013 and 2012, the health care cost trend rates are expecfed fo trend down to 4.6% in 78 years, 4 6% in
78 years, and 4. 7% in 79 years, respectively
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We determine our dizcount rate assumption for ocur pension retirement obligations based on indices for A& corporate
bonds with an average duration of approximately 20 years for the Japan pension plans and 17 years for the U.5. pension
plans, and determination of the U.S. pension plans discount rate ufilizes the 85-year extrapolated yield curve. In Japan,
participant salary and future salary increases are not factors in determining pension benefit cost or the related pension
benafit obligation.

We base our assumption for the long-term rate of retum on assets on historical trends {(10-year or longer historical
rates of retum for the Japanese plan assets and 15-year historical rates of retum for the U3, plan aszets), expected
future market movement, as well as the portfolio mix of securities in the asset portfolio including, but not limited to, style,
class and equity and fixed income allocations. In addition, our consulting actuaries evaluate our assumptions for long-term
rates of retum under Actuarial Standards of Practice (AS0P). Under the ASOP, the actual porifolio type, mix and class is
modeled to determine a best estimate of the long-term rate of returmn. We in tum use these results to further validate our

own assumplions.
Agzumed health care cost frend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan. A

one-percentage point increase and decrease in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects as
of December 31, 2014:

{In millions)
One percentage point increase:

Increase in total service and interest costs 50
Increase in postretirement benefit obligation 3
One percentage point decrease:

Decrease in total service and interest costs 0
Decreasze in postrefirement benefit obligation 2

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Pension and other posiretirernent benefit expenses, included in acquisition and cperating expenses in the
consolidated statements of eamings for the years ended December 31, included the following components:

Pensicn Benefits Other
Japan .S, Postretirement Benefits
{In millicns) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Service cost §15 316 318 $20 22 518 $1 53 §6
Interest cost 9 10 7 38 23 24 2 3 4
Expected retum on plan
assets 4 {3) 4) (20} {17}y {16} 0 0 0
Amortization of net actuanal
loss 1 2 3 11 15 11 3 2 1
Amortization of prior senvice
cost (credit) 0 0 o 0 0 0 17) (4) 0
Met periodic (benefit) cost 51 525 F24 $49 543 537 $(11) 56 N

Changes in Accumuiated Other Comprehensive Income
The following table summarizes the amounts recognized in ofther comprehensive loss (income) for the years ended
December 31:
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Pension Benefitz Other
Japan Us. Postretirement Benefits
{In millins) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Met actuarial loss (gain) %12 3 (14) 3(10) $ &7 5(59) 545 $(33 s 55
Amortization of net actuarial
loss (1 (2) 3 (11} (13} (11} 3 (2 (1
Prior service cost (credit) 0 0 1] 0 (4) (1) 0 (51) 2
Amortization of prior
service cost 0 0 1] 0 0 0 v 4 0
Total $ 11 % (16) 5(13) §$ 56 5(78) 533 $ 11 3(06) 36

Prior service credits of $51 million were incurred in 2013 for the plan amendment retated to the change in eligibility for
postrefirement medical benefitz mentioned above. Mo transition obligations aroge during 2014, and the fransition
obligations amortized fo expense were immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Amoriization
of actuarial losses to expense in 2015 is estimated to be 51 million for the Japanese plans, $15 million for the U.5. plans
and 32 million for the other postretirement benefits plan. Amortization of pricr service credits in 2015 is estimated fo be
F17 million for the other postretirement benefits plan due to the negative plan amendment in 2013. The amoriization of
prior service costs and credits for other plans and transition obligations for all plans is expected to be negligible in 2015.

Benefit Payments
The following table provides expected benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate.
Pension Benefits Oiher

{In millions) Japan us. Posfretirement Benefits
2015 57 3 20 52
2016 11 M 2
2017 B 28 3
2018 7 26 3
2019 9 27 4
2020-2024 63 159 )

Furnding

We plan to make contributions of $19 million to the Japanese funded defined benefit plan and 510 million fo the LS.
funded defined benefit plan in 2015. The funding policy for our non-gualified supplemental defined benefit pension plans
and other postretirement benefits plan is to confribute the amount of the benefit payments made during the year.

Flan Assets

The investment cbjective of our Japanese and U.S. funded defined benefit plans is to preserve the purchasing power
of the plan's assets and eam a reasonable inflation-adjusted rate of return over the long term. Furthermore, we seek to
accomplish these objectives in a manner that allows for the adegquate funding of plan benefitz and expenses. In order to
achieve these objectives, our goal is to maintain a conservative, well-diversified and balanced porifolio of high-quality
equity, ficed-income and money market securities. Az a part of our sirategy, we have establizhed sirict policies covering
quality, type and concentration of investment securities. For our Japanese plan, these policies include imitations on
investments in dervatives including futures, opiions and swaps, and low-liquidity investments such as real estate, venture
capital investments, and privately issued securities. For our U.S. plan, these policies prohibit investments in precious
metals, limited parinerships, venture capital, and direct imvestments in real estate. We are alzo prohibited from trading on
mangin.

The plan fiduciaries for our funded defined benefit plans have developed guidelines for azset allocations reflecting a
percentage of total aszets by asset class, which are reviewed on an annual basis. Azset allocation targets as of
December 31, 2014 were as follows:
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Japan us.

Pension Pensicn

Domestic equities 0% 40%
Intemational equities 15 20
Fixed income securities 70 40
Ciher 15 o

Total 100% 100%

The following table presents the fair value of Aflac Japan's pension plan assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurming basiz as of December 31. All of these aszets are classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, except cash
and cash eguivalents which are classified as Level 1.

{In millions) 2014 2013
Japan pension plan assets:
International equity securities $ 34 g ¥
Fixed income securities:
Japanese bonds T2 60
Interniational bonds 44 43
Mutual funds 0 |
Insurance contracts 22 24
Cash and cash equivalents 11 0
Total 51383 %152

The following table presents the fair value of Aflac L.S."s pension plan assets that are meazured at fair value on a
recurming basis as of December 31. All of these assets are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

{In millions) 2014 2013
LS. penzsion plan assets:
Mutual funds:
Large cap equity funds § 116 5110
Mid cap equity funds 14 19
Real estate equity funds 10 9
Interniational equity funds 61 68
Fixed income bond funds 136 103
Aflac Incorporated common stock 4 4
Total 53N 533

The fair values of our pension plan investments categorized as Level 1, consisting of mutual funds and common
stock, are based on quoted market prices for identical securities traded in aclive markets that are readily and regulariy
available to us. The fair values of our pension plan investments classified as Level 2 are basad on quoted prices for
sirmilar assets in markets that are not active, other inputs that are obeervable, such as interest rates, yield curves,
volatiliies, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks, and default rates, or other market-cormoborated inputs.

401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan in which we match a porion of U5, employees” contributions. The plan
provides for salary reduction confributions by employess and, in 2014, 2013, and 2012, provided matching contributions

by the Company of 50% of each employee's confributions which were not in excess of 6% of the employee's annual cash

compensation.

On January 1, 2014, the Company began providing a nonelective contribution to the 401(k) plan of 2% of annual cash

compensation for employees who elected fo opt out of the future benefits of the U.S. defined benefit plan during the:
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election period provided during the fourth quarter of 2013 and for new U.S. employees who started working for the
Company after September 30, 2013

The 401(k) contributions by the Company, included in acquisition and operating expenses in the consolidated
statements of samings, were 57 million in 2014 and $5 million in both 2012 and 2012, The plan trustee held
approximately two million 2hares of our common stock for plan participants at December 31, 2014.

Stock Bonus Plan

Aflac U.S. maintaing a stock bonus plan for eligible 1.5, sales associates. Plan participants receive shares of Aflac
Incorporated common stock based on their new annualized premium sales and their first-year persistency of substantialby
all new insurance policies. The cost of this plan, which was capitalized as defemred policy acquisition costs, amounted to
536 million in 2014, compared with 538 million in 2013 and 2012.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

YWe have three cutzourcing agreements with a technology and consulting corporation. The first agreement provides
mainframe computer operaticns and support for Aflac Japan. it has a remaining term of one year and an aggregate
remaining cost of 4.8 billicn yen (340 milion using the December 31, 2014, exchange rate). The second agreement
provides distributed mid-range server computer operations and support for Aflac Japan. It has a remaining term of one
year and an aggregate remaining cost of 3.9 billion yen ($32 million using the December 31, 2014, exchange rate). The
third agreement provides application maintenance and development services for Aflac Japan. It has a remaining term of
three years and an aggregate remaining cost of 4.4 billion yen (336 million uzing the December 31, 2014, exchange rate).

We have an outsourcing agreement with a management consulting and technology services company to provide
application maintenance and development services for our Japanese operation. The agreement has a remaining term of
three years with an aggregate remaining cost of 3.3 killion yen (331 million uging the December 31, 2014, exchange rate).

YWe have two outsourcing agreement with information technology and data services companies to provide application
maintenance and development services for our Japanese cperation. The first agreement has a remaining term of two
years with an aggregate remaining cost of 2.3 billion yen (319 million usging the December 31, 2014, exchange rate). The
second agreement has a remaining term of three years with an aggregate remaining cost of 2.3 billion yen (519 millicn
using the December 31, 2014, exchange rate).

We lease office space and equipment under agreements that expire in vanous years through 2022 Future minimum
leaze payments due under non-cancelable operating leazes at December 31, 2014, were as follows:

{In millicns)
2015 3 55
2016 29
2017 19
2018 11
2019 T
Thereafter B
Total future minimum lease payments $129

We are a defendant in various lawsuits considered fo be in the nomal course of business. Members of our senior
legal and financial management teams review ftigation on a quarterly and annual basis. The final results of any ltigation
cannot be predicted with certainty. Although some of this lilgation is pending in states where large punitive damages,
kearing little relation to the actual damages sustained by plaintiffs, have been awarded in recent years, we believe the
outcome of pending Itigation will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows.
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16. UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED GUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

In management's opinion, the following quarterly financial information fairly prezents the resultz of operations for such
percds and is prepared on a basiz consistent with our annual audited financial statements.

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

{In millions, except for per-share amounis) 2014 2014 2014 2014
Net premium income §4,854 $4,888 $4,841 $4,480
Met investment income 827 843 B 808
Realized investment gains (losses) {46) 102 16 143
Other income 5 5 38 74

Total revenues b, 640 5,838 5,736 5514
Total benefits and expenses 4,536 4,600 4,662 4,439
Eamings before income taxes 1,104 1,238 1,074 1,075
Total income tax 372 428 368 irz
Net earnings § 732 $ 310 % 706 $ 703
Net earnings per basic share § 1.61 $ 1.79 % 1.56 $ 1.57
Net eamnings per diluted share 1.60 1.78 1.56 1.57

Quarferly amountz may nof agree in folal to the coresponding annual amoundz due fo rounding.

March 31, June 30, Septemibxer 30, December 31,

{In millions, except for per-share amounis) 2013 2013 2013 2013
Met premium income £5,184 £5,013 55,028 54510
Met investment income 833 313 821 826
Realized investment gains (losses) 156 20 2 20
Other income 35 17 15 45

Total revenues 6,205 6,044 5,885 5,801
Total benefits and expenzes 4 847 4 GE6 4817 4773
Earmnings before income taxes 1,381 1,358 1,065 1,028
Total income tax 469 469 357 353
Met eamings £ 892 % 889 3 02 3 675
Met eamings per basic share g 19 19 5 151 5 146
Met eamings per diluted share 1.90 1.80 150 1.45

Guartenly amountz may nof agree in tofal fo fhe comesponding annual amounts due fo roundimg.
17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subseqguent to December 31, 2014, in the execution of planned investment porifolio diversification, we expanded our
investments in bank loans, high yield corporate bonds and middle market loans. We increased the allocation to our bank
loan investment program by approximately 5720 million, of which approximately 5700 million has been funded; our high
yield corporate bonds program by approximately $500 million, of which approximately $135 million has been funded; and
our middle market loan program by approximately 3300 million, of which approximately $5 million has been funded. The
Company is beginning to invest in high yield corporate bonds and middle market loans as new as set classes that help
diversify the imnvestment porifolic within the guidelines of our strategic asset allocation model.
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SCHEDULE Il
CONDENSED FINANMCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

Aflac Incorporated (Parent Only)
Condensed Statements of Eamings

Years ended December 31,

{In millicns) 2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Dividends from subsidiaries™ $1,483 5 962 5 0
Management and service fees from subsidiaries™ 272 292 249
Met investment income 13 11 20
Interest from subsidiaries™ [ T 7
Realized investment gainz (losses) 45 10 1
Change in fair value of the cross-cumency interest rate swaps M4 274 154
Other income (loss) {11} 1 {7}
Total revenues 2122 1,557 424
Operating expenses:
Interest expenss 243 208 184
Other operating expenses 88 79 T2
Total operating expenses 33 287 256
E:Tbﬁﬁtﬂmﬂ income taxes and equity in undistributed eamnings of 1,791 1.270 168
Income tax expense (benefit):
Current 1 0 1
Defemred 120 a8 S0
Total ncome taxes 121 o8 51
Eamings before equity in undistributed eamings of subsidianes 1,670 1172 117
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries™ 1,281 1,986 2,749
Met earnings $ 2,951 3158 % 2 866

W Eliminated in consolidation
See the accompanying Notez fo Condensed Financial Siatements.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing Firm.
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SCHEDULE Il
CONDEMSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
Aflac Incorporated (Parent Only)
Condenszed Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Years ended December 31,
{In rrillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Met eamings %2951 $ 3,158 % 2 866
Other comprehensive income (loss) before income taxes:
Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Unrealized foreign cumency translation gains (losses)
during period - parent 39 48 95
Equity in unrealized foreign currency translation gaing (losses) of
subsidianies during period (1,494) {1,636) (382)
Unrealized gains (losses) on investment secunties:
Unrealized holding gains (logses) on investment securities
during period - parent only 9 (12) 15
Equity in unrealized holding gains (losses) on investment securities
held by subsidiaries during period 5,938 {2,350) 1,645
Equity in reclassification adjustment for realized (gains) losses of
subsidiaries included in net eamings [54) (S6) 497
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives during period {17 {10} (22)
Pension liability adjustment during period (T6) 157 {20)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) before
income taxes 4,345 {3,853) 1,825
Income tax expense (benefit) related to items of other comprehensive
income (loss) 1,803 {581) 1,078
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income faxes 2,542 (3,278) 750
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 5,493 F (120) 53616

See the accompanying Notezs fo Condensed Rinancial Slatementa.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing Firm.
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SCHEDULE Il
CONDEMSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
Aflac Incorporated (Parent Only)
Condensed Balance Sheets
December 31,
{In millions, except for share and per-share amounts) 2014 2013
Assets:
Invesiments and cash:
Fixed maturity securities available for sale, at fair value
(amortized cost 53419 in 2014 and 5322 in 2013) $ 437 § 33z
Investments in subsidiares™ 21,430 17,678
Ciher invesiments 24 313
Cash and cash equivalents 1,638 1,081
Total imvestments and cagh 23,529 19,404
Due from subsidiaries™ 116 128
Other azzets 766 464
Total aszets $24411 $19, 5996
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Liakilities:
Income taxes 7 6 s (1200
Employes benefit plans 282 246
Motes payable 5,285 4,910
Oiher liabilities 491 340
Total liabilities 6,064 5,375
Ehareholders' equity:
Common stock of $.10 par value. In thousands: authorized 1,900,000 shares in
2014 and 2013; issued 668,132 shares in 2014 and 667 045 shares in 2013 [:7) &7
Additional paid-in capital 1,711 1,644
Retained eamings 22156 19,885
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized foreign cumency franslation gains (2,541) {1,505)
Unrealized gains {loszes) on investment securities 4,672 1,035
Unrealized gains {losses) on derivatives (26) {(12)
Pension liability adjustment (126) (81)
Treasury stock, at average cost (7,566) (6,413)
Total shareholders' equity 18,347 14,620
Total liabiliies and shareholders' equity $24,411 519,996

M Eliminated in conaoldation
See the accompanying Notezs fo Condensed Rinancial Slatementa.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accownfing Firm.
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SCHEDULE Il
CONDEMSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
Aflac Incorporated (Parent Only)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31,
{In rrillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Met eamings $ 2,951 $ 3,158 %2866
mmm to remncie net eamnings to net cash provided from
Equity in undistributed eamings of subsidiaries™ (1,281) {1,986) (2 7493)
Change in income tax liabilities 115 155 1
Other, net {72) 11 (242)
Met cazh provided (used) by operating activities 1,713 1,338 (14}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Fixed maturity securities sold 38 B 13
Fixed maturity securities purchased (105} (206} {26}
Other investments scld (purchased) 290 (298) {3)
Met cazh provided {used) by investing activities 223 {496) {16}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchases of treazury stock (1,210} (813) {118)
Proceeds from borrowings 750 700 1,506
Principal payments under debt cbligations (335) 0 (380)
Dividends paid to shareholders (654) (B35) (603)
Treasury stock reissued 33 Fati] 70
Proceeds from exercize of stock opfions 23 41 y |
Met change in amount due tofrom subsidiaries™ 14 28 {21)
Met cazh provided {used) by financing activities (1,379) (591) 475
Met change in cash and cash equivalents BRT 251 445
Cash and cazh equivalents, beginning of period 1,081 B30 3385
Caszh and cash equivalents, end of pericd $ 1,638 $ 1,081 § 830

T Elirminated in consolidation
See the accompanying Notez fo Condensed Financial Siatements.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing Firm.
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SCHEDULE Il
CONDENSED FINAMCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

Aflac Incorporated (Parent Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

The accompanying condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consclidated financial
statements and notes thereto of Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries included in Part 11, em & of this report.

(A) Notes Payable
A summany of notes payable az of December 31 follows:

{In millicns) 2014 2013
3.45% =enior notes due August 2015 $ 300 $ 300
2.65% senior notes due February 2017 653 ™ G55 ™
5.50% senior notes due May 2019 850 850
4.00% senior notes due February 2022 350 & 349 ™@
3.625% senior notes due June 2023 700 700
3.625% senior notes due Movember 2024 749 0
£.90% senior notes due December 2039 gy =@ agg @
6.45% senior notes due Auwgust 2040 443 @ 445 ™
5.50% subordinated debentures due September 2052 500 500
“Yen-denominated Uridashi notes:
2_26% nofes due September 2016 (principal amount 10 billion yen) 83 a5
Yen-denominated Samurai notes:
1.47% notes paid Juhy 2014 (principal amount 28.7 billion yem) 0 72
1.84% notes due July 2016 {principal amount 15.8 billion yen) 1M 150
Variable interest rate notes paid July 2014 (1.30% in 2013, principal amount
5.5 hillion yen) 0 52
fen-denominated loans:
3.60% lcan due July 2015 {principal amount 10 billicn yen) 83 95
3.00% lcan due August 2015 (principal amount S billion yen) 4 45
Total motes payable §5,285 54,910

Nﬁﬂupa.l'anm;ﬂm an igsuance premium that is being amortized over the life of the notez
# Principal amount net of an fzsuance discount that iz being amorfized over the [ife of the notes

During 2009, Aflac Japan bought on the open market 2.0 billion yen of yen-denominated Urndashi notes issued by the
Parent Company which are outstanding as of December 31, 2014, In consolidation, those notes have been extinguished,
however, they remain an cutstanding lability for the Parent Company until their maturity date.

The aggregate contractual maturities of notes payable during each of the years after December 31, 2014, are as
follows:

{in milliors)

2015 5 424
2016 24
2017 850
2018 0
2019 850
Thereafter 3,150
Total 55,288

For further information regarding notes payable, see MNote 9 of the Motes to the Conzolidated Financial Statements.
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(B) Derivatives

At December 31, 2014, the Parent Company’s cutstanding freestanding dernvative contracts were swaps associated
with our notes payable, congisting of cross-currency intereat rate swaps, also referred fo as foreign cumrency swaps,
associated with our senior notes due in February 2017, February 2022, June 2023 and November 2024, and subordinated
debentures due in September 2052, We do not use denvative financial instruments for frading purpeses, nor do we
engage in leveraged dervative transactions. For further information regarding these derivatives, see Motes 1, 4 and 9 of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(C) Income Taxes

The Parent Company and its eligible U.3. subsidiaries file a consolidated U.5. federal income tax return. Income tax
ligbilities or benefits are recorded by each principal subsidiary based upon separate refurn calculations, and any
difference between the conzolidated provizion and the aggregate amounts recorded by the subsidiaries is reflected in the
Parent Company financial statements. For further information on income taxes, ses Mote 10 of the Notes to the
Conszclidated Financial Statements.
(D} Dividend Restrictions

See Note 13 of the Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements for informaticn regarding dividend restrictions.

(E} Supplemental Dizclosures of Cash Flow Information

{in rriillicns) 2014 2013 2012
Interest paid $ 1 5 205 3 18
Noncash financing activities:

Treazury stock iszued for shareholder dividend reimvestment 26 25 25
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SCHEDULE i
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Years ended December 31,
Defemred Policy Future Palicy Other
- Acquisition Benefits & Unpaid Uneamed Policyholders'
iin millions) gusts Palicy Claims Premiums unds
2014:
Aflac Japan $ 5211 $ 60,036 % 8,509 $ 6,030
Aflac L.S. 3,062 9,239 117 0
All other 0 1 0 1
Total $ 8273 $ 69,276 $ 8,626 $ 6,03
IS
Afiac Japan $ 5819 % 64122 % 10,520 $ 5,660
Aflac US. 2979 8,775 122 m
All other 0 2 0 1]
Total % 8798 § 72899 5 10,642 $ 5,861

Segmenf amountz may nof agree in total fo the comesponding conaalidated amounts due fo rounding.

Years Ended December 31,

Met Met Amaortization of Other
N Premium  Investment Benefits and Defemed Pgé% Cperating  Premiums
{In rmillions) Revenue: Income Claimsz, net  Acguisifion Expenzes Written
2014%
Aflac Japan $ 13,861 $ 2,662 $ 10,084 $ 649 $ 2364 $ 13,352
Aflac U.5. h211 645 2,853 459 1,474 5,198
All other 0 12 0 0 354 0
Total § 19,072 § 3,319 $ 12,937 $1,108 $ 4192 $§ 18,550
2013
Afiac Japan §F 145982 §F 265 3 10924 3 B4 F 2495 F 15960
Affac U.S. 5,153 632 2,685 433 1,431 5,144
All other 0 10 0 0 30 0
Total F 20135 F 3,293 F 13813 31,074 4238 F 21,104
2012
Afiac Japan F 17,13 F 2,843 5 12456 3 118 F 2937 § 23662
Affac U.S. 4 996 613 268344 400 1,387 4 988
All other 1 15 0 1 281 o
Total 3 22148 2 F 3473 ¥ 15330 31,117 F 4615 § 28650

Segmenf amountz may nof agree in tofal fo fhe comesponding conaalidated amounts due fo rounding.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing Firm.
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SCHEDULE IV
REINSURANCE

Aflac Incorporated and Subsidiaries
Years Ended December 21,

Percentage
Ceded to Aszumed of Amourt
Gross OCther fram Other Met Assumed
{In millicns) Amount Companies  companies Armnount fo Met
2014:
Life insurance in force § 144,374 § 3,298 $ 0 $ 141,076 0%
Premiums:
Health insurance $ 14,648 § 31 $ 10 $ 14,319 0%
Life insurance 4,764 11 0 4,753 0
Total earned premiums § 19,412 § 350 $ 10 $ 19,072 0%
.1 5
Life insurance in force % 157,022 $ 3245 3 0 $ 153,777 0%
~ Premiums:
Health insurance F 15,393 5 a8 3 12 F 15,307 0%
Life insurance 4 840 12 0 4 B28 0
Total eamned premiums § 20,233 F 110 F 12 F 20,135 0%
2012
Life insurance in force 5 173,71 § 3,867 3 O § 169,924 0%
Premiuns:
Health insurance F 17,541 5 19 3 14 5 17,536 0%
Life insurance 4 626 14 0 4612 0
Total eanned premiums 5 22167 ] 33 3 14 5 22148 0%

Premiums by fype may nof agree in tofal fo the cormesponding consalidated amounts due fo roundimg.
See the accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accownting Firm.
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@
2015 1 1
2014 12 31
2015 3 2 10 1
550 5 ( 2.40 ) 2 450 10
( 3.25 )
550
670 2.40 0.24
450 550 3.25
0.82
2015 4 2015 3 10 2019 5
( 8.50 ) 850
230
@
1
( ) 1 2 3 4
(2014 1 1 (2014 1 1 (2014 1 1 (2014 1 1
2014 3 31 2014 6 30 2014 9 30
2014 12 31
$5,640 $11,478 $17,214 $22,728
\689,941 \1,404,104 \2,105,789 \2,780,316
$1,104 $2,342 $3,416 $4,491
\135,052 \286,497 \417,879 \549,384
$732 $1,542 $2,248 $2,951
\89,546 \188,633 \274,998 \360,996
1 $1.61 $3.40 $4.96 $6.54
\196.95 \415.92 \606.76 \800.04
1 $1.60 $3.38 $4.93 $6.50
\195.73 \413.48 \603.09 \795.15
( ) 1 2 3 4
(2014 1 1 (2014 4 1 (2014 7 1 (2014 10 1
2014 3 31 ) 2014 6 30 ) 2014 9 30 ) 2014 12 31 )
1 $1.61 $1.79 $1.56 $1.57
\196.95 \218.97 \190.83 \192.06
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\195.73 \217.75 \190.83 \192.06
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®)
25
1. 2014 4
2. 2014 9
3. 2013 2014 18
4. 2014 18
5. 2014 18
6. 2014 18
7. 2014 9
19 2 9
8. 2014 9
9. 2014 1 2014 6
10. 2014 6
11. 2014 6
12. 2013 2014 16
13. 2014 16
14. 2014 16
15. 2014 10
19 2 2
16. 2014 10
17. 2014 15
19 2 1
18. 2014 15
19. 2014 26
19 2 2

323/331



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00ooO0O0oOoO(ees776)

ooooodn

20. 2014 8 26

21. 2014 2 2014 9 5

22. 2014 9 5

23. 2014 9 5

24. 2014 10 8
19 1

25. 2014 10 8

26. 2014 3 2014 12 5

27. 2014 12 5

28. 2014 12 5

29. 2015 1 15
19 2

30. 2015 1 15

31. 2015 3 9
19 1

32. 2015 3 9
19 2

33. 2015 3 9

34. 2015 4 9
19 1

35. 2015 4 9
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2014 2013 12 31
2014 12 31 3 ()
2015 2 26

KPMG LLP

2015 4 15
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2014 2013 12 31 2014 12 31 3
C0S0 (2013) 2014 12 31
2015 2 26
KPMG LLP

2015 2 26
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Aflac Incorporated:

We consent to the use of our reports dated February 26, 2015 with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Aflac
Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of earnings,
comprehensive income (loss), shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2014, and all related financial statement schedules, included herein.

We also consent to the reference of our firm under the heading “Financial Condition” in the Securities Report.

/SSKPMG LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
April 15, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Aflac Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Aflac Incorporated and subsidiaries (the Company) as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income (10ss),
shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2014. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosuresin the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal financia statement presentation. We believe

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of Aflac Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Aflac Incorporated s internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 26, 2015, expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/[SSKPMG LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
February 26, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Aflac Incorporated:

Under date of February 26, 2015, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Aflac Incorporated and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2014, and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive
income (loss), shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2014, which are included herein. In connection with our audits of the af orementioned consolidated financial statements, we
also audited the related consolidated financial statement schedules aslisted in Section V1.1(7). These financia statement
schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statement schedules based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as awhole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/SSKPMG LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
February 26, 2015
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